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MAJOR EVENTS
==L

On 3 September, the Culture and Tourism Department of Henan Province held a
ceremony marking the resumption of work and production in Henan's culture and
tourism industry at “Unique Henan, Land of Dramas”. Government leaders and
representatives of scenic spots in the province gathered in the theater cluster. The
official accounts of scenic spots in the province and authoritative media such as
Xinhua News Agency, Cnr.cn and Dahe.cn, 30 media and 68 platforms broadcast
live simultaneously, with total views of more than 17 million and media reports of
more than 150.
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MIST SPA at Sky Mansion officially opened on 25 September. MIST SPA originating
from Yanling Jianye The Mist Hot Spring Hotel has a mission of adding colour to life
with super joyful spa experience. It integrates the essence of Eastern and Western
spas. MIST SPA at Le Méridien Zhengzhou, Pullman Kaifeng Jianye and Sky Mansion
has opened successively since 2018, leading the new fashion of spa in central
China.
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The second village cooking carnival in Central China Yichuan Green House was held
in September. After a month of visiting, tasting and screening, more than ten dishes
were finally selected from nearly 300 dishes, and the merchants were among the
second batch to set foothold in Yichuan green base, where they can enjoy
preferential policies and subsidies. The event was reported by more than 20 official
mainstream media such as CCTV News Channel, CCTV Agricultural and Rural
Channel, CCTV Live News, Farmers’ Daily and Henan Daily.
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On 1 October, Jianye Housekeeper launched “Yue Lin Mei Jia” housekeeping service
platform and established 4+6 standard operating specifications and a supplier
control mechanism. Through online and offline service channels, its business
covers 17 cities, with 11 types of service items, including household cleaning, home
appliance cleaning, sanitation management, air pollution control, laundry care,
nanny service, home maintenance, and storage and sorting. It explored customer
needs and enhanced the reputation of its service brand, with a view to building the
Group's own housekeeping service brand .
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In October, CCNL introduced “Jianye blue drinking water” and selected high-quality
water sources in Henan: Chenhuadian in Yanling (national geographic indication
protection demonstration zone), volcanic landscape in Shangyu, Hebi (ancient
volcanic mantle belt with a depth of 1,498 metres) and Duijiuyu village in Luoning
(Chinese Academy of Sciences’ environmental health experimental base), in order
to market products with the concept of “Central China water for people in central
China”.
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CCNL's real estate agent brand — Xinye leasing flagship store for rental and sale —
opened at Xinye Forest Peninsula in Nanyang City on 22 November. Compared with
traditional second-hand house intermediary agent stores, Xinye flagship store for
rental and sale, relying on the Jianye Housekeeper platform, takes root in
communities and starts with rental service to connect the service chain before,
during and after rental and sale. It provides more diverse community value-added
services around the life of home owners.
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On 18 December, “Building a Red Property and Lighting Up a Beautiful Life - Jianye
Vehicle Life, Ken Chi Gui Daily Fresh Grocery, and Consumers Canteen Joint Trial
J ecember Operation Ceremony” was successfully held in Zhengzhou Jianye City Garden. The
:ﬁ business model of Ken Chi Gui Daily Fresh Grocery, lianye Vehicle Life, and Consumers
Canteen is an innovation and extension of the “Jianye +" large service system.
Enterprise strategic advantages, brand advantages and resource superposition
advantages create a happy life in the whole scene of community business.
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On 31 December, Henan Central China Property Management Co., Ltd. (“Central
China Property Management”) (the Purchaser), a wholly-owned subsidiary of CCNL,
an independent individual (the Vendor) and Henan Tianming Property Management
Co., Ltd. (the Target Company) entered into an equity transfer agreement.
According to the terms and conditions of the agreement, the Vendor has agreed to
sell and the Purchaser has agreed to acquire 51% equity interest in the Target
Company at a cash consideration of RMB33.66 million. Upon completion of the
acquisition, the share capital of the Target Company will be held by the Purchaser
as to 51% and the Vendor as to 49%. Henan Tianming Property Management Co.,
Ltd. was established as a limited liability company on 23 September 2005. It is a
property management service provider that provides property management
services for projects in Zhengzhou, Luoyang, Zhoukou, Shanggiu, Luohe, Xuchang,
Xinzheng, etc., covering an area of about 4,007,000 sg.m..
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The fifth Golden Hong Kong Stocks Awards Ceremony organised
by Zhitongcaijing was held in Shenzhen on 6 January 2021. CCNL
was honoured as the “Best Property Management Company” and
one of the “Most Popular IPOs among Investors”.
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The China Best Employer Annual Award Ceremony 2020 cum
International Management Forum of Human Capital (Northern
China) themed on “Endogenous Power, New Life” were held in
Qingdao on 9 January 2021. CCNL was awarded the title of “2020
China Best Employer — Most Promising Employer in Zhengzhou”.
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The Press Conference on Research Results of “2021 Top 100
Property Management Companies in China” cum the 14th
Summit on China’s Top 100 Entrepreneurs in Property
Management Service Sector were organised by China Index
Academy (/R 38 #f 3t Bt ) and China Real Estate TOP10 Research
Group (7 B = b Z= TOP104ff 5t 48), in Beijing on 22 April 2021.
CCNL ranked 11th among the “China’s Top 100 Property
Management Companies (2021 B %] 2£ iR % & 58 1 )" with
outstanding performance, and won the title of “2021 China’s
Leading Property Management Companies in terms of Growth
Potential”. Both CCNL and Taihua Jinye Life Service Co., Ltd.
(“Taihua Jinye") broke into the top 100 list. Taihua Jinye ranked
55th among “2021 China Top 100 Property Management
Companies” and won the title of “Outstanding Red Property
Management Company in China”. CCNL'S new eco-city in
Yanling, Xuchang was named a “Demonstration Base in China’s
Property Management Service Industry in 2021". Forest Peninsula
in Xicheng, Luohe and the New Town Peninsula in Zhumadian
were honoured as “Five-star Property Management Service
Projects in China in 2021".
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The 2021 Property Management Industry Brand Building Forum

(m) was held in Shanghai on 10 May 2021, during which the 2021

b ol Research Report on Brand Value of Property Management

202 1 e R IR 26 4K o 203 Service Companies was officially unveiled. CCNL broke into “2021
2021 Top 20 Branded Property Management Companies in Central China TOD 100 MOSt va|uab|e Bl’andS Of China Pl’Operty Management

R ETERSEIRAR Service” and the “2021 Top 20 Branded Property Management
i Companies in Central China” and won the title of “2021 Featured
Brand of China Property Management Service — Central China

Happy Times”.
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5] = 1" The fourth China Real Estate Finance Summit, organised by EH
Think Tank and Jiahe Jiaye and co-organised by Guru Club, was
k held in Shenzhen on 20 May 2021. CCNL was ranked among
Ao “2021 Top 10 Chinese Property Management Companies in terms
2021hEY AR A of Operating Capacity” and “2021 Top 20 Listed Chinese Property
BEENTE Management Companies”, gaining widespread recognition in the

Bl E market.
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On 21 May 2021, the Press Conference on Research Results of
“China’s Listed Real Estate Companies in 2021” cum the 19th
— Industry-City Integration Investment and Financing Conference

o

kil L were organised by China Enterprise Evaluation Association,

Institute of Real Estate Studies of Tsinghua University and China
Index Academy, and co-organised by the China Real Estate Top10
Research Group and China Index Holdings (CIH) in Beijing. CCNL
was awarded the “2021 China TOP10 Listed Property Service
Companies by Comprehensive Strength (20217 BI#¥) %R
NREREENTOP10)", and the “2021 China Listed Property
Service Enterprise with Excellent Investment Value (20217 & =
MYERBEREEBEESRE)"
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held the Press Conference on Research Results of “2021 China
2021 FEPDL RS ol EA 208 Listed Real Estate and Property Management Companies” in

2021 Top 20 Listed Company of China Property Management Service

Shenzhen on 27 May 2021. CCNL was awarded the “2021 Leading
Enterprise in Market Development Capabilities of Listed Property

gdl#reEiE (09983.HK)
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The winners of “2021 China Carbon Neutrality-Green Smart City
Outstanding Case Selection”, organised by Jiemian-Cailian Press
and co-organised by Cailian Press, were unveiled on 5 June 2021.
CCNL's project about “establishment of data-driven, platform-
empowered supply chain of digital and intelligent services” was
selected as the best solution for green, smart cities.
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At the Summit on Top 100 Blue Chip Property Management
Companies hosted by The Economic Observer on 22 June 2021,
CCNL was honoured as one of the “Excellent Companies in terms
of Investment Value” and “2021 Top 100 Blue Chip Property
Management Companies” for the second straight year.
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On 7 July 2021, China Real Estate Index System (“CREIS") and
China Index Academy held the 2021 CREIS Real Estate Market
Trend Seminar in Beijing. With a good corporate image, unique
and competitive business model and many years of development
in Central China, CCNL won the honour of “2021 Excellent
Property Management Companies with Diversified Operation”.
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Relying on stable business structure, innovative service model,
leading management level, good brand reputation and other
advantages, CCNL won nine awards, namely “2021 Leading
Brand of Property Services Companies in Central China”, “2021
China Leading Brand of Property Management Companies in
terms of Specialised Operation”, “2021 China Top 20 Property
Management Companies in terms of Comprehensive Strength”,
“Top 10 Competitive Companies in Central China”, “Top 50 Model
Companies in terms of Customer Satisfaction”, “Top 20
Companies in terms of Brand Value”, “Model Companies in terms
of Community Value-added Services”, “Model Companies in
terms of Community Operation” and “Top 10 Companies in terms
of Operating Capability” at the Press Conference on Research
— = Results of Real Estate Brand Value in China cum the 18th China

. . . Real Estate Brand Development Summit and 2021 China Real

°°°°°°°°°° . Estate Strategy Summit on 15 September 2021.
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The Press Conference on Research Results of 2021 Property
Management Companies in terms of Comprehensive Strength
was held in Chengdu on 23 September 2021. The China Real
Estate Appraisal of Shanghai E-House Real Estate Research

2021 PSR R S5 ISl

2021 Leading Companies of China in City Service.

R EERSERAR Institute announced the list of “2021 China Top 500 Property
. ~ Management Companies in terms of Comprehensive Strength”.

% CCNL was awarded the “2021 China Top 500 Property

2021 [ AN S B il Management Companies in terms of Comprehensive Strength

I (14th placg) and.vvo”n the“t|t|e of 2921 Leading .Comparules Qf
China in City Service” and "2021 Leading Companies of China in

5 e : ~ Smart Property Service”.
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The 2021 Guandian Business Conference organised by Guandian
Property officially kicked off on 2 November 2021, during which
the research results of 2021 Commercial Property Performance
were unveiled. With diversified innovative business ideas,
wealthy business asset management and consulting services and
good brand influence, CCNL was ranked 7th among “Top 10
Commercial Property Managers” and named “2021 Top 100
Commercial Property Companies”.
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The fourth CIOC Real Estate Digitalisation Summit was held in
Shanghai on 11 November 2021. CRIC announced the evaluation
results for digitalisation of Chinese property management
companies and intelligent property management model project
at the summit. CCNL won the title of “Top 1 Property
Management Company in terms of Digitalisation in Henan” and
“Top 20 Property Management Companies in terms of
Digitalisation in China (12th place)”. This is the second
consecutive year that CCNL received the awards. Zzhengzhou Sky
Mansion was named an “Intelligent Property Management Model
Project”.
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The 2021 China Real Estate Big Data Conference cum 2022 China
Real Estate Market Trend Seminar, organised by CREIS and co-

A@-'E ,,,,,,,,,,,, %iz& organised by CIH and China Index Academy, were held in Beijing

R — on 2 December 2021. CCNL was honoured as one of 2021

R RS Leading Property Management Companies in Central China in
AL RS RS A B 2]

terms of Market Position” with years of good market performance
in Central China.

20151228 - AP EFEMEERBRSMETEN - PIEIER
(CIH) R 35T b AR S A i i) 2021 P B S E KBBR8
2022 ElEMETISBERES | LR B - @ENEERE
ZEEP IR R TR TSR - 88 [ 2021 7 & @ 15 %) 2 AR 75
R VAL =

Guru Club hosted the 6th Global Investment Carnival 2021 in
Shenzhen on 9-11 December 2021. CCNL (9983.HK) won the “Best
Information Disclosure Award” for listed companies with its
proactive voluntary information disclosure and its high emphasis
on investor relations this year.
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EH Think Tank held 2021 Super Product Power Innovation
Conference in Guangzhou on 16 December. It showed the
strength and responsibility of property management companies

B based on their achievements in 2021. It also released the

B EREERAT | research results of “2021 China Top 50 Property Management
el | — Companies with Super Service Capability”. CCNL broke into “2021
1= "' i China Top 20 Property Management Companies with Super
- T ? Service Capability” by virtue of its sincere brand service capability
and professional competence. In addition, Shanggiu Sky Mansion
Rl o A was selected as one of “Top 10 Intelligent Property Management

Model Projects in China in 2021".
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The "Unique Henan, Land of Dramas” was selected as an
“Innovative Project of Culture and Tourism Integration in 2021" at
the 2021 China Tourism Group Development Forum jointly held
by China Tourism Academy, China Tourism Association and other
organisers on 11-12 December, adding new lustre for the culture
tourism industry in Henan.
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JRJ.com.cn officially announced the results of the 2021
“Goldenwis" Selection of Listed Companies in terms of Value on
24 December. CCNL was named an “Outstanding Listed Property
Management Service Provider” for its excellent performance in
social responsibility, industrial contribution, investment return,
growth prospects, innovation efficiency, outstanding brand, etc.
128248 HASBMAEINN [D8]2021 A LT AREE
EAERENEE  c BEMAFRRELMEET BEXER
FERBR KERATR - BFTEE GHEREETENEBRE -
REREYE ET RGBSR -

The “"Commercial exploration of the inheritance of intangible
cultural heritage via Cuisine Henan Foodcourt” was included by
Management Case Research Center of Peking University in
November 2021.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Central China
New Life Limited (“CCNL"), | am pleased to present the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2021.

CCNL recorded full-year revenue of RMB3,598.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021, an increase of approximately
35.6% from the revenue of RMB2,654.5 million in 2020. During
year, the net profit amounted to RMB653.4 million representing,
a rise of 48.2% from that of RMB440.7 million for 2020.

The year 2021 was an extraordinary year. It was a year of
profound changes unseen in a century and a crucial period for
the great rejuvenation of the Chinese nation. In 2021, we
witnessed the bright moment when the “two centenary goals”
intersected, and also experienced the dark days of the 20 July
torrential rain-caused disaster and with both the “flood and
pandemic” in Henan. In the past year, uncertainties and risks and
challenges in the internal and external environments emerged
one after another, which has caused the Company to face
unprecedented shocks and tests.

Courage emerges in difficult times and hard work leads to
success. When we look back on the past year with very mixed
feelings, we are delighted that the endless spiritual temperament
has already been injected into the blood of corporate
development. In the face of disasters, we can always see the
Company’s employees who have come forward. They stood with
the people in Henan, guarded property owners and rescued their
compatriots in heavy rains, shouldered responsibilities amid the
pandemic, and safeguarded 2.1 million property owners in
communities. They have been highly praised and recognised by
all walks of life, and the value of a property management service
provider has been re-understood. CCNL moves forward with solid
work and determination, showing the spirit of self-confidence,
self-improvement and resilience. It stimulates vitality to lead it
towards high-quality development.
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Little drops of water make the mighty ocean, and little grains of
sand make the tower. Every ordinary force came together in
severe "big tests”, allowing the Company to achieve more-than-
expected development in the toughest times. In terms of
property management and value-added services, the GFA under
management amounted to 135.88 million sg.m. and the
contracted GFA was 236.85 million sq.m. as of 31 December
2021. As far as lifestyle services are concerned, “Jianye +" has a
total of 5.836 million registered users. The total transaction value
was approximately RMB1.55 billion, representing a year-on-year
increase of 97.5%. The Company made continuous innovations in
the community business model and launched new businesses. In
terms of commercial property management and consultation
services, its 10 hotels have won 29 industry awards throughout
the year. The commercial projects it operated welcomed more
than 40 million visitors in 2021. Its cultural and tourism project
“Unique Henan, Land of Dramas” was open to visitors, which has
become a well-known work to spread Henan culture.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to all
shareholders and investors for their trust and support for CCNL
and to all colleagues for their conscientious efforts and
dedication.

LOOKING BACK AT 2021, THE COMPANY
MAINLY COMPLETED THE FOLLOWING
PRIORITIES AND ACHIEVED CERTAIN
RESULTS:

In 2021, the Company saw sound and steady development in its
three major business segments, namely property management
and value-added services, lifestyle services, and commercial
property management and consultation services. The “Jianye +"
platform maintained rapid growth. The Company actively set foot
in the community business field, explored innovative community
business models, created a new business card for Henan culture
and highlighted intellectual property projects frequently. The
Company shouldered social responsibilities bravely, and its
industry status and brand value continuously improved.

30 Central China New Life Limited / 2021 Annual Report

SERACE B - IR ERIB R RE |
B—EATANNEER 8 FOECHREN
RAMDAIE T BETERANEENE - TWEEE
MIBERFE - BZ2021F12A318 - BEEEE
13588 BT K BEKEIEE23,6858 7
Ke EEERB AT [E%+] REaEMAR
583.68 A ' RET B FEEH 1558 - AR
97.5% : NEITETAIFT T R ERL - EKHAE
IR - ERAXEETERAARE AE  ETE
EI0KBERFRFMEITEN9IEARSE : B
FEBEE2NFERREHL0008 AR BE
NIKEE RAAE - BEOBFARNE - — 85K
AEETEXEMBEER -

EE AABRREES  BHSHRE &
BASRENEEOEANLH  haREN2
BRFRBRENE N RAE -

182021 ARAREEMBUTE
RT(EREVSRR :

20214 - REIMREE MIRERY - £ERS
BEREEEEMNEARBEZAEBRATRER
(2% +] FTaRFREER  UERGRHERE
AR RREEBRBERAFEREN - RELTHE
AEX e B R - MBMEEER AL - 27
BEASEE  TEMLNREEERERT -



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TR S

() Setting a benchmark for the property (—) MEEBETEEZR SEERERBTER
management industry and steadily increasing
GFA under management

In 2021, Central China Property Management introduced 20214 - BEMERINBANEERER
nine standard management systems, namely 1ISO 9001 THIRA B ERGIZE - B EITEERE
(quality), 1ISO 14001 (environment), ISO 45001 (occupational & R ZE1S09001 (& £ ) - 1S014001 (38
health and safety), ISO 50001 (energy), ISO 27001 3E )~ 1S045001 (B ¥ 2 FE %2 &) ~ 1S050001
(information security), SA 8000 (corporate social (8eJR) ~ 1S027001 ({5 B % &) ~ SA8000 (1
responsibility), SB/T 10595 (cleaning services), GB/T 27922- e ET)  SB/T10595 GEZRE) ~ GB/
2011 (after-sales service of commodity) and GB/T 31950 T27922-2011 (7 on & & AR 7% ) ~ GB/T31950
(integrity management), to constantly improve service (FEER) NESE -

standards, which has established a benchmark for the
property management industry.

The Company leveraged the strengths of multi-format 20214 » REIFDBHEL L ERGRERE
coordinated development in 2021, showed strong ability to 2 ERYEERIMNAE AT - EERE
expand its property management services and increased AEXRBEEER - B1E2021F12H318 -
the GFA under management. As of 31 December 2021, the NEMERETO+EE 2F 25 8ET
Company had over 700 projects under management. The EIE13,588BF K AR RBEFE=HHTE
GFA under management amounted to 135.88 million sg.m., EBEE7,3128F 5K » (5L 53.8% : A R4
with that for being of 73.12 million sg.m., accounting for BHMEIE23,685 8B K EARRKEE=H
53.8%. The contracted GFA was 236.85 million sg.m., with HA R 14,490 & F 5K  (5EL61.2% °

that for third-party property developers being 144.90 million
sg.m., accounting for 61.2%.

(I) Deeply tapping the potential of the lifestyle (Z) FBEERBENISED  MREEFFERE
service market and accelerating the innovation in W13
community business model
CCNL constantly explored the potential value of community BENEETEEZRECHREMEBME
space and the needs of property owners, sought online and FEXR THSKELFETRE  BRFEK
offline integration, and provided customers and property HETIRMSAE - i R ETHORY -
owners with services without blind spots in time, region BERITIEZEFE TEEE - £
and function. Relying on the “Jianye +" platform online, the TN B CREENEFILERER-
Company created a systematic product system integrating HE2021F12A31H 2%+ Bt
catering, accommodation, mobility, tourism, shopping and AF5836E A HRREREEFNAP
entertainment. As of 31 December 2021, “Jianye +" had a 13108 @ (R 224%: 252 BEI708
total of 5.836 million registered users, of which 1.31 million AN EFRREEEEXETNEE203EA - (h
were Jianye property owners, accounting for 22.4% of the t26.4% : 2 EFIGFMAF 21648 A - 5
total. The total number of members was 770,000, of which e 883248 A 2021F1-12 8 2t
203,000 were Jianye property owners, accounting for BTG RBI55E T BLHIERI7.5% ;
26.4%. The number of newly registered users was 2.164 202112 R - FHRAERAFPE166.08 A
million, while the number of members increased by 2011128 [BE+ ] HEBEBEEBR
324,000. The total transaction value was approximately SHEZ ST 271870 » K5t WAL 7278 7T
RMB1.55 billion throughout the year, respectively a year- Rtk 66188 BEE71T 8 BE
on-year increase of 97.5%. In December 2021, the average K 52.5% o

number of monthly active users was 1.66 million. From
January to December 2021, the total transaction value of
the community group buying business on “Jianye +" was
RMB72.71 million and the total revenue was RMB47.27
million. A total of 661,000 transactions were made during
2021, with the average order value of RMB71 and a

repurchase rate of 52.5%.
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As an innovative lifestyle service provider, CCNL has been
making innovations in the community operation model and
service system to improve property owners’ happiness and
satisfaction. It has successively launched innovative
businesses, such as Jianye Housekeeper, Community
Subscription, Central China Car Life, Consumers Canteen
and Ken Chi Gui Daily Fresh Grocery, in order to create a
local new lifestyle platform. This is not only the innovation
and extension of the “Jianye +" service system, but also the
integration of CCNL. It is also an effective attempt to
provide convenient services and build exquisite
communities with red property management as the starting
point.

Steadily promoting diversification and improving

commercial property management and operation

capabilities

In 2021, CCNL sought progress while maintaining stability in
business segments such as hotel management,
commercial property management, and cultural tourism
complex management. Currently, the commercial property
management projects it manages and operates include
seven projects under Kai Xuan Plaza, Kai Xuan Joie and
Baichengtiandi. With over 40 million visits to the projects,
the total sales were approximately RMB1.3 billion in 2021,
representing an increase of 22%. The hospitality
management projects under management developed at full
speed. Theater Hotel in Zhengzhou and MIST SPA at Sky
Mansion opened for business, increasing the number of
hotels to 10 and the number of its spas to 4. 10 hotels won
29 industry honours in 2021. We have also successfully
operated 3 suburban Leisure complexes that received more
than 10 million visits in total. Among the cultural tourism
complexes, “Unique Henan, Land of Dramas” that was
frequently reported by CCTV was selected as an “Innovative
Project of Culture and Tourism Integration in 2021". Lots of
activities were held in Movie Town, lighting up Zhengzhou's
night economy, and becoming a brand-new business card
for the city’s “night economy”.
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(IV) Creating a benchmark for culture and tourism in

Henan and writing a new chapter for central
China

There is a great historical opportunity as China adopts
ecological protection and high-quality development of the
Yellow River Basin as a major national strategy. “Unique
Henan, Land of Dramas” focuses on telling the story of the
Yellow River and inheriting the Yellow River culture to
create a globally influential cultural work. The theatre made
its debut on 5 June 2021 and was open to visitors on 6
June. The debut was livestreamed, with 41.6 million views
on the Internet. Within 10 days of its opening, the theatre
was reported by CCTV seven times. As of the end of
December 2021, it hosted a total of 500,000 visitors, with
nearly 3 million tickets sold. Nearly one-third of the tourists
made a special trip to Henan to watch the theatre. Relevant
public media exposures exceeded 900, of which 8 were
exposed by People’s Daily and 15 by Xinhua News Agency.
“Unigue Henan, Land of Dramas” is of great significance for
building cultural self-confidence, prospering the Yellow
River culture, building Zhengzhou into a national central
city, and accelerating the rise of the Central China culture.

Starting from local culture and immersive movie scenes,
Jianye & Huayi Brothers Movie Town focused on movie-
themed performance to create an immersive movie
playground that integrates movie interactive amusements,
movie cultural experiences, movie-themed inns, folk
customs and intangible cultural heritage experiences. Since
its opening on 21 September 2019, Movie Town has
received a total of 5 million tourists. It has been exposed by
CCTV 15 times, People’s Daily 12 times, Xinhua News
Agency more than 50 times and major official media more
than 2,000 times.

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

FIEHRS

(W) TENEXRER  EREETEHRE

HHEAREELRENSEEER LA A
Bl REM A EANFELESE - R B - BE
AWABME TR E - FEREN XV RE
# o ITEEAMREE DR LB R © 2021
FoASHMMERE 6 ACBMBME - |8
ERWEEERE 28ENEL1608 A
FI0K ERELRR - BHE2021512 A
K 2 EFER08 AKX BB AKE
300& =N —MER - BEEFEEXR
A ES o AR A HEESER SLE D900 8RIK - B
P8R EREARBR  15XIEFELEY -
RAENE - BEOBEREYbaE &
BET L - REMERBERE A O
e IREFAREBEREEEEER °

BE- FHABEZDBALALI TR
AEXSRLE  UEXTERER/ZL
NESEXEHELE  EXCER  E¥
TREE ROMFEBRIN —BHUR
AEBERZ I 2019F9 A2 BREXES
RETEFEFEV0OEANR - RFH 1585
BT 12RFEAR B - S08RREREM
BRE - 2,000 80K & KB JTIREEER S -

BEFEIERAT/ B —FERH 33



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TR S

(V)

(Vi)

34

Serving high-quality development and improving
user happiness

According to the report of the 19th CPC National Congress,
China will ensure and improve people’s well-being through
development, and it is the fundamental goal of
development to improve people’s livelihood and well-being.
In order to constantly improve the sense of gain and
happiness of property owners and customers, CCNL has
improved its service quality internally. Central China
Property Management organised 7,281 Happy Times
activities, such as festivals for folk culture, Children’s Day,
summer and neighbours, in 2021, attracting a total of
796,629 participants. Central China Property Management
received 1,880 pennants, 1,415 letters of thanks, 6,820
phone calls and online praises from property owners
throughout the year. Central China Consumers Club
organised 7,400+ activities with 110,000+ participants,
developed 109 hobby tribes, and cooperated with 233
merchants throughout the year, which were unanimously
recognised by high-end members.

Actively engaging in charity and public welfare
and fulfilling social responsibilities

Facing the complicated external environment, especially
the double impact from floods and COVID-19 pandemic in
Henan, the Company actively donated money and supplies
even if it was under huge operating pressure and all staff
participated in the fight against floods, the anti-pandemic
work and the post-disaster reconstruction. CCNL
immediately opened its hotels and shopping malls to
people stranded during flooding. Jianye Property
immediately launched the Level-1 flood prevention plan,
requested staff to be on duty for 24 hours a day, and made
every effort to ensure the safety of life and property of the
1.8 million property owners in the communities under
management. Temporary shelters were set up at Kai Xuan
Plazas and Jianye hotels for people stranded to rest.
Members of Central China Consumers Club in Henan
organised rescue operations and donations of relief
supplies. Merchants in the club and consumers’ bodies in
cities actively made donations and volunteered to carry
supplies. CCNL fully cooperated with the government in
pandemic prevention in the “anti-pandemic battle” after
the floods. Central China Property Management launched a
sanitation project in Ergi District, Zhengzhou to ensure daily
cleanup and unified incineration of municipal waste, which
cut off the spread of the virus from the source and
shouldered the responsibility to keep the city safe. It was
recognised by CCTV.
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(Vi

Meanwhile, the Company was actively engaged in public
welfare. In March 2021, Central China Property
Management organised an Arbor Day-themed activity, and
over 1,000 property owners were participants and planted
more than 600 trees in Lankao County. Central China
Property Management initiated the “Star Book Corner —
Charity Growth Plan” in May. Together with millions of
property owners, Central China Property Management
went to 55 primary schools in remote areas and sent
24,825 books and school and sports supplies worth
approximately RMB110,000 to 7,225 impoverished students.
Since 2021, Central China Consumers Club has established
13 “children’s libraries” in Henan. More than 100 charity
activities have been held to spread warmth and positive
energy to the society.

Receiving industry honours and market
recognition, demonstrating corporate strength
and value

In 2021, CCNL won a total of over 100 honours, covering
listing performance, operating performance, management
capability, as well as the service capability and operational
performance in various business projects. It gained
widespread recognition from the government, industry,
customers, investors and so forth. Brand value was
emerging.

In 2021, CCNL came 11th among “2021 China Top 100
Property Management Companies”, up one place from last
year. CCNL was awarded the “2021 China TOP10 Listed
Property Service Companies by Comprehensive Strength”,
the “2021 China Listed Property Service Enterprise with
Excellent Investment Value”, the “Top 1 Property
Management Company in terms of Digitalisation in Henan”,
the "Top 12 Property Management Companies in terms of
Digitalisation in China”, etc., leading the industry
development. Zhengzhou City Garden was honoured as
one of the “Most Beautiful Volunteer Communities in China
in 2021", winning praise from Henan Daily. It has become a
demonstration community for “red property management”
in Henan. Central China Property Management’s Luoyang
branch was honoured as a model company for red property
management services. Luoyang Jianye Golf Garden was
named a demonstration community for red property
management services, which makes community life more
convenient and better.
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OUTLOOK AND STRATEGY

Only by sticking to what you do can you stay true to your original
aspiration. In 2022, CCNL will, as always, fulfill the core value,
which is to root in central China and confer benefit on the people.
It will maintain its strategic focus and achieve high-level and high-
quality development.

Since its listing in 2020, the Company has been fulfilling and
exceeding expectations to fulfill its commitments to investors.
The stability and certainty of its business operation data and net
profit growth will bring stronger confidence to the capital market.

As the overall structure has been optimised from “five-level
management” to “three-level management”, CCNL will turn to
further streamline management and operation in 2022, which will
promote efficient business development. In the meantime, with
intelligentisation and optimisation of the headquarters’ functions,
the Company will further increase the management efficiency
per capita, reduce the management cost, and boost the net
profit.

In addition, the Company, which has always maintained an asset-
light operation model, will focus on asset-light business
development in the future. At the same time, it will take
advantage of the “last 100 metres” as a property management
company to develop the consumer life business to satisfy the
needs of property owners. As a company with net cash, it has
maintained high levels of dividends for shareholders.

Technology constantly empowers business to reduce costs and
increase efficiency, facilitating digitalisation and intelligentisation.
The Company will develop the “super service capability”, inject a
steady stream of new vitality of intelligentisation, and constantly
explore the digital and intelligent management and application in
communities, and provide property owners with warmer and
more high-quality services for the construction of intelligent
communities, including intelligent security, intelligent service,
intelligent neighborhood, and intelligent governance.
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CCNL bears the eternal great cause in mind, and maintains the
original aspiration of enterprise. In the future, CCNL will firmly
create value for customers in the long run, expand service
boundaries, give full play to the advantage of multi-format
synergy, seek common development of cities and regions, and
achieve high-level and high-quality development.

Chairman
Wang Jun

16 March 2022
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SUMMARY OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FHEHRESREE

For the year ended 31 December HE12A31HILFE
2021 2020 Changes
20214 20204 HE
Revenue (RMB'000) WA (AREFT) 3,598,918 2,654,499 35.6%
Gross profit (RMB’000) EMAEEFT) 1,183,222 860,717 37.5%
Gross profit margin ER=E 32.9% 32.4% 0.5%
Net profit (RMB’000) FAEARETFT) 653,388 440,744 48.2%
Net profit margin FREE 18.2% 16.6% 1.6%
Profit attributable to equity R EGFIE(AREFT)
shareholders (RMB’000) 619,559 426,587 45.2%
Basic earnings per share (RMB) FREABFN(ARE) 0.49 0.38 28.9%
Diluted earnings per share (RMB) BREERN(ARK) 0.48 0.37 29.7%
Final dividends per share (HK cent) SRR RERREE CEL) 33.7 18.0 87.2%
SUMMARY OF BALANCE SHEET BEESEREE
AS at 31 December R12H31H
2021 2020 Changes
20215 20204 HE
Total cash (including cash and cash ~ #HR & (BEFERE KRS EE
equivalents and restricted bank YA e 52 PR BRI T 7 70
deposits) (RMB’000) (AR®TFT) 2,266,319 2,218,819 2.1%
Total assets (RMB’000) wEEANREFIT) 5,036,980 4,249,979 18.5%
Total liabilities (RMB000) BEBEANRETFT) 1,980,452 1,532,629 29.2%
Total equity (including non-controlling #E4£z5 (B IEIEIEMRERS)
interests) (RMB’000) (AR¥FoT) 3,056,528 2,717,350 12.5%
Equity attributable to shareholders of AN B IR ER G 425
the Company (RMB’000) (ARBTT) 2,954,233 2,691,344 9.8%
Current ratio® BN F M 2.5timesf% 27tmesf% -0.2timesfZ
Net asset value per share (RMB) FREEFEARET) 2.41 2.18 10.6%
Note: Btet -

(1) Calculated based on the Group's total current assets divided by the (1) FAASEMNQRBEERAAEBNERE S &
Group's total current liabilities =RChy
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

Over the years, we have successfully expanded our business
from property management and value-added services to lifestyle
services and commercial property management and consultation
services. Our business now consists of three major segments. In
2021, with rapid growth in its business, the Group continuously
optimised its income structure and steadily enhanced its
operating efficiency. During 2021, the Group’s revenue amounted
to RMB3,598.9 million, representing an increase of 35.6% as
compared with RMB2,654.5 million in 2020. Net profit was
RMB653.4 million, representing an increase of 48.2% as
compared with RMB440.7 million in 2020.

Property management and value-added services. We have
provided traditional property management services such as
security, cleaning and greening services since 1994, and over the
years, we have expanded our service offerings to include value-
added services aimed at elevating the living quality of the
residents in the properties we manage. To build modern
interactive and intelligent environments in communities, we
provide intelligent community solutions to property developers
as well as residents. Furthermore, utilising our strong network of
property buyers with purchasing power, we provide property
agency services to property developers found within buyers and
sellers. Further, as part of our value-added services, we also
provide personalised services and intelligent community
solutions to VIPs of the Central China Consumers Club, which is
an exclusive group of high-net-worth customers. As of 31
December 2021, our property management and value-added
services covered all 18 prefecture-level cities (and also 100 of the
102 county-level cities) in Henan as well as 7 other provinces,
including Shannxi, Shandong, Hebei, Anhui, Hubei, Xinjiang and
Hainan, and we served more than 2.1 million property owners
and residents in 729 properties. We manage a diversified portfolio
of properties, including residential properties, shopping malls,
cultural tourism complexes, commercial apartments, office
buildings, schools, hospitals, city services, factories, parks and
properties of governmental agencies. As of 31 December 2021,
the GFA under management and contracted GFA reached 135.9
million sg.m. and 236.8 million sg.m. respectively, representing a
respective growth of 35.9% and 26.9% as compared with that as
at 31 December 2020.
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Lifestyle services. Lifestyle services include products and
services we offer on our Jianye+ (2 +) platform, travel services,
and management services we provide in Cuisine Henan
Foodcourts (&2 AR ¥). The Jianye+ (% +) platform is an 020
one-stop service platform which integrates our internal and
external, online and offline resources in order to provide our
customers with more convenient and more affordable goods and
services. The Jianye+ (2 +) platform provides three main online
services: (i) membership benefits; (i) concierge services; and (i)
goods and services from One Family Community (—ZR2A4%). AS
of 31 December 2021, we were cooperating with over 1,000
suppliers, some of which were well-known brands that were
listed on NASDAQ or the Stock Exchange. We also offer a wide
range of benefits, including exclusive offers with hotels, malls
and restaurants in Henan. Our travel services offer four distinct
types of tours to customers, namely leisure tours, corporate
tours, sports and health tours and educational tours. The six
Cuisine Henan Foodcourts (3 AR =) we manage hosted over
239 vendors as of 31 December 2021, offering a wide variety of
food options to consumers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Commercial property management and consultation
services. Unlike property management services where we offer
a series of traditional property management services to property
developers, property owners and property occupants, our
commercial property management and consultation services
focus on enhancing the value of properties by streamlining
operations of a property to reduce costs and attracting business
to increase income. Our commercial property management and
consultation services comprise (i) hotel management, (ii)
commercial asset management and (ii) cultural tourism complex
management. For hotels, we manage a hotel’s overall operations,
supervise hotel operations performed by an existing operator
and provide consultancy services. For other commercial assets,
we provide pre-opening consultation and post-opening
management services. For commercial asset management, our
Company primarily manages shopping malls by providing two
main categories of services: (i) pre-opening consultation, which
includes services such as market research on vendor and
clientele demographics, financial analysis, vendor solicitation and
management and strategic planning; and (ii) post-opening
management services, which includes services such as vendor
management, sales and operation management, and training
management. As for cultural tourism complex management, our
Company’s services include the branding and overall operations
management, consultancy services, technical support on
technology research and promotion (including the selection and
assessment of seeds to be used), agricultural product sale,
agricultural product planting and project planning. For cultural
tourism complexes, our services include overall operations and
consultancy services. In each area, we strive to help our clients
achieve asset value appreciation and sustainable development.
As of 31 December 2021, our portfolio of commercial properties
under management consisted of five cultural tourism complexes
(with an aggregate site area of approximately 10.6 million sg.m.),
seven shopping malls (with a total GFA of approximately 0.7
million sg.m.) and ten hotels (with a total GFA of approximately
0.3 million sg.m.).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVENUE

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded a
revenue of RMB3,598.9 million (2020: RMB2,654.5 million),
representing an increase of 35.6% as compared with 2020. The
revenue of the Group were generated from three main business
segments: (i) property management and value-added services; (ii)

Bt 75 [o] 8

L/ ON

lifestyle services; and (iii) commercial property management and

consultation services.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our revenue by

business segment during the year: 4

HE2021F12A3NBLEFE  AEBEBRKA
ANBR#35989H BT (20204 + ARM2,65455H
EJL) 82020 F 8 hN35.6% o NEBKRAKRE =
EEEER: (VWEETELEERS : ()EER
% RINEXEETERBARE -

TREN IR FRILE R0 REE D 8 U AR

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31B8LEE

2021 2020
20214 2020 4F
Revenue Revenue
WA WA
(RMB’000) % (RMB'000) %
(AR®TF) % (ARBFir) %
Property management and VB IE RILE R
value added services 3,040,791 84.5 2,198,540 82.8
Lifestyle services AR IR 406,990 11.3 366,382 13.8
Ccommercial property PEEEEE AN
management and PR 7%
consultation services 151,137 4.2 89,577 3.4
Total revenue AL N 3,598,918 100.0 2,654,499 100.0

42 Central China New Life Limited / 2021 Annual Report



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Property management and value-added services

During the year, the revenue from our property management and
value-added services reached RMB3,040.8 million (2020:
RMB2,198.5 million), representing an increase of 38.3% as
compared to last year. The increase was primarily attributable to
(i) an increase in our total GFA under management from 100.0
million sg.m. as of 31 December 2020 to 135.9 million sg.m. as of
31 December 2021, resulting in an increase of revenue from
property management; and (i) the increase of business volume
for value-added services such as intelligent communities and
move-in furnishing, resulting in an increase of revenue from
value-added services.

The table below sets forth the details of our revenue from each
service in this business segment during the year:

EEBmX DI

WEESERIZERKE

FR - WEESERIBERBWAZ AR 3,040.8
BEIL(20204F : ARME21985EHET) » BEF
#hN38.3% ' ZEEEBIEN () AEENBEE
EiEHRF 2020512 431 B89 100.0 B B F 7K 1%
MMER2021FE12 A31 B 13598 & F K » &
BYESEBRAEN: (NVEEHE BEeATE
2B AR S B S 7518 N8 BULE RRAS AL -

TREINFARFIREZEHD BEHEREH
WAFHS -

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31BLFE

2021 2020
2021%F 20204
(RMB’000) % (RMB'000) %
(AR¥Frx) % (AR%TFT) %
Property management services ¥ E 1R RS 1,326,194 43.6 860,267 39.1
Value-added services: HER
Community value-added [ 18 (B AR 7%
services 864,453 28.4 623,702 28.4
Value-added services to IEHEFRERE
non-property owners 850,144 28.0 714,571 325
Total &t 3,040,791 100.0 2,198,540 100.0

During the year, revenue from property management services
amounted to RMB1,326.2 million (2020: RMB860.3 million),
representing an increase of 54.2% as compared to last year,
which was mainly attributable to the increase in property
management income as a result of the increase in the GFA under
management of the Group's property management from 100.0
million sg.m. as at 31 December 2020 to 135.9 million sg.m. as at
31 December 2021.

TR MEETEREBAZEARE13202HET
(20204 : AR ¥8603F B L) )& F 18 i1
542% @ ZERFERFERAEEYEEENEE
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The Group’s value-added services include community value-
added services and value-added services to non-property
owners. Community value-added services mainly include
decoration management and inspection, public area
management, turnkey and move-in furnishing services, intelligent
community solutions and the services of the Central China
Consumers Club. Value-added services to non-property owners
mainly include property agency, pre-launch intermediary
services, on-site management, property inspection income, pre-
delivery cleaning and other services.

During the year, revenue from community value-added services
amounted to RMB864.5 million (2020: RMB623.7 million),
representing an increase of 38.6% as compared to last year,
which was mainly attributable to (i) an increase of revenue by
RMB51.1 million from the turnkey and move-in furnishing
business starting in the second half of 2020 (2020: RMB71.1
million); (i) active expansion of intelligent community business,
revenue of which increased from RMB363.9 million in 2020 to
RMB483.9 million in 2021.

Revenue from value-added services to non-property owners
amounted to RMB850.1 million (2020: RMB714.6 million),
representing an increase of 19.0% as compared to last year,
which was mainly attributable to the increase in revenue from
pre-launch intermediary services and on-site management from
RMB261.0 million in 2020 to RMB342.7 million in 2021 as a result
of active expansion of third-party business.

As of 31 December 2021, the total GFA under management of
the Group was 135.9 million sg.m., representing an increase of
35.9 million sg.m. or 35.9% as compared with 100.0 million sg.m.
as of 31 December 2020. The increase was mainly attributable to
the increase in projects delivered by the acquired companies and
Central China Real Estate Limited (“CCRE") and its subsidiaries
(the "CCRE Group"). For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
average property management fee rate charged by the Group
was approximately RMB1.73 per sg.m./month (for the year ended
31 December 2020: 1.81 per sg.m./month).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The table below sets out the breakdown of our total GFA under  ~NREFEEZFTRBEIEBMREEERE (S £
management for our property management services attributable &R FSHAE B ) RE = A EFREBREY
to the properties developed by the CCRE Group (and its X EHEAMEEEREEENEE LEZELEEREHA
associates or joint ventures) and third-party property developers 48 :

as of the dates indicated.

As of 31 December 2021 As of 31 December 2020

M2021%12H831H 7202012 A 31 H
GFA GFA
HMEEERE MRIREEEIE
‘000 sq.m. % ‘000 sg.m. %
FE5K % FEHK %
The CCRE Group and its EEEEN B
associates or joint ventures NEIHEEDLE 62,766 46.2 54,917 549
Third-party property developers 25 =7 %535 73,117 53.8 45,101 451
Total &t 135,883 100.0 100,018 100.0
Lifestyle Services HSERT

For lifestyle services, we offer a wide range of lifestyle services, A EFERBEM S @ HFVEH — R EERS - B
which include (i) products and services we offer on our Jianye+ $E()RMEEZE+T 4 FRENER LR 5 ()
(% +) platform, (i) travel services, and (i) management services  JR#ERT : RN RPERE AR ERHMNESIER
we provide in Cuisine Henan Foodcourts (22 AR E). Duringthe o £ £ERBKAZEAREI70BE T
year, the revenue from our lifestyle services reached RMB407.0 (20204 : A R¥366.4H & 7T ) @ B = F & I
million (2020: RMB366.4 million), representing an increase of  11.1% - ZEEF EHRERB AN EE+ FTamR
11.1% as compared to last year. The increase was primarily 202012 A31 B3 7B EBLTMALHER
attributable to the increase of registered users on our Jianye+ (2 202112 A31BMKS8HBELTMARL - A/
%4) platform from approximately 3.7 million as of 31 December #HEMIER LA EHENIEREFKAMNIEE -
2020 to approximately 5.8 million as of 31 December 2021, and

the increase in revenue was due to the growth in user base and

user consumption.
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The table below sets forth the details of our revenue from each
service in this business segment during the year.

TREIINFARFIREZEHD BEEREH
WAFHE -

Year ended 31 December
BHZE12A31BLEE

2021 2020
20214 2020

(RMB’000) % (RMB’000) %
(AR¥TFT) % (AR®TT) %
Jianye+ L 335,666 82.5 286,529 782
Travel services IR RS 60,135 14.8 54,810 15.0
Cuisine Henan Foodcourts BERRE 11,189 2.7 25,043 6.8
Total a5t 406,990 100.0 366,382 100.0

Commercial Property Management and Consultation BEEETERBARE

Services

For commercial property management and consultation services,
we offer services in respect of (i) hotel management; (ii)
commercial asset management; and (iii) cultural tourism complex
management. During the year, the revenue from our commercial
property management and consultation services reached
RMB151.1 million (2020: RMB89.6 million), representing an
increase of 68.7% as compared to last year. The increase was
mainly attributable to the addition of two new cultural and
tourism complexes, namely “Jianye Film Town” and "Unique
Henan” in 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The table below sets forth the details of our revenue from each
service in this business segment during the year.

EEBmX DI

TREINFARFIREZEHD B EREH
WAFHS -

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31BLFEE

2021 2020
2021%F 20204F
(RMB’000) % (RMB'000) %
(AR¥TFT) % (AR%FT) %
Hotel management BIEERE 9,619 6.4 8,162 9.1
Commercial property MEEEEE
management 25,744 17.0 26,781 29.9
Cultural tourism complex XALIREEAR S B E 1B
management 115,774 76.6 54,634 61.0
Total &5t 151,137 100.0 89,577 100.0
COST OF SALES SHEMA

Our cost of sales primarily consists of employee benefit
expenses, outsourcing labor costs, greening and cleaning
expenses, cost of goods sold, outsourcing costs of tourism
services, utilities, selling expenses, maintenance business costs,
construction costs, professional service fees, security charges,
depreciation and amortisation charges, travelling and
entertainment expenses, office expenses, taxes and other levies
and other costs.

During the year, the cost of sales of the Group was RMB2,415.7
million (2020: RMB1,793.8 million), representing an increase of
34.7% as compared to last year. This was mainly because the
Group was in a rapid development stage, and the cost of sales
increased correspondingly with the increase in revenue of the
Group.

BANHERATEBREERNMAS  IMEA
TRA - BERBRE - HERA -~ SMBIREE IR
BA ~ RRERE - HEMX - BERBRA
BRERA  BXREE  RRE - TEMEHER
X ZEREBHRAX  BARZ B REME
BURHMBER -

FR - AEENHERKAABARKE 2415788
(2020F : AR¥1,7938F & JT) » B EF L0
347%  FERARASERNIREREREH K
LB RS E A ANBE E U ASE I AR AESE N -
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GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN
The following table sets forth our gross profit and gross profit
margin by business segment during the year:

EFNREFE
TRBIIRFRENRLEHD BHPHEARE
R

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE

2021 2020
20214 2020 4F
Gross profit Gross profit
Gross profit margin  Gross profit margin
ER EFIZE EH ERE
RMB‘000 % RMB'000 %
AR¥FT % AREFIT %
Property management and b EERLY S ]
value-added services: AR 7%
Property management VB B RS
Services 245,511 18.5 149,908 17.4
Community value-added @ R E AR S
services 310,122 35.9 209,470 33.6
Value-added services to EHEFILERS
non-property owners 421,978 49.6 327,722 45.9
977,611 32.1 687,100 31.3
Lifestyle services HERE 108,116 26.6 119,867 327
Commercial property EEEETERER
management and i
consultation services 97,495 64.5 53,750 60.0
Total &t 1,183,222 32.9 860,717 32.4

During the year, the gross profit of the Group was RMB1,183.2
million (2020: RMB860.7 million), representing an increase of
37.5% as compared to last year. The gross profit margin of the
Group was approximately 32.9% for the year ended 31 December
2021, which was at a roughly similar level as approximately 32.4%
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The gross profit margin of our property management and value-
added services increased from 31.3% for the year ended 31
December 2020 to 32.1% for the year ended 31 December 2021,
which was mainly attributable to the increase in the GFA under
management, where economies of scale led to an increase of 0.8
percentage points for the gross profit margin of our property
management services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The gross profit margin of our lifestyle services decreased from
approximately 32.7% for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately 26.6% for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in gross profit
margin of Cuisine Henan Foodcourt due to the impact of the
pandemic and flood in Zhengzhou.

The gross profit margin of our commercial property management
and consultation services increased from approximately 60.0%
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately 64.5% for
the year ended 31 December 2021. The increase was mainly
attributable to the further enhancement of cost-saving and
control awareness, and cost reduction and efficiency
improvement conducted among hotel management business and
commercial management business.

SELLING AND MARKETING EXPENSES

During the year, the selling and marketing expenses of the Group
amounted to RMB57.1 million, representing an increase of 7.9%
as compared with RMB52.9 million in 2020, and accounting for
approximately 1.6% of our revenue, which was a decrease of 0.4
percentage points as compared with 2020. This was mainly
attributable to (i) an increase in the number of employees we
hired due to the expansion in our business scale; and (ii) an
increase in salaries, employee benefits and other expenses paid
to our sales, sales support and marketing personnel, which was
in line with our revenue growth and business expansion.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

During the year, the administrative expenses of the Group
amounted to RMB229.7 million, representing a decrease of 16.0%
as compared with RMB273.4 million in 2020, and accounting for
approximately 6.4% of our revenue, which was a decrease of 3.9
percentage points as compared with 2020. This was mainly
attributable to an increase in investment in digital intelligence
during the year which results in the improved management
efficiency and loss administrative expenses.

OTHER INCOME

During the year, other income of the Group amounted to
RMB34.5 million (2020: RMB17.5 million), representing an
increase of 96.7% as compared with 2020. The above increase
was mainly due to the increase in the government subsidies
received by the Group during the year.

EEBmX DI
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BHIFFEEN32.7% 22021412 A 31 B IELFEH
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INCOME TAX

During the year, income tax expense of the Group amounted to
RMB172.7 million (2020: RMB116.2 million). The income tax rate
remained relatively stable at 20.9% (2020: 20.9%).

PROFIT

During the year, the net profit of the Group amounted to
RMB653.4 million, representing an increase of 48.2% as
compared with RMB440.7 million in 2020. The net profit margin
was 18.2%, representing an increase of 1.6 percentage points as
compared with 16.6% in 2020. This was mainly due to the fact
that while the business of the Group underwent rapid growth,
management efficiency was improved and management costs
were reduced. During the year, the profit attributable to owners
of the Company amounted to RMB619.6 million, representing an
increase of 45.2% as compared with RMB426.6 million in 2020.
Basic earnings per share amounted to RMB0.49 (2020: RMB0.38).

FINANCIAL RESOURCES MANAGEMENT
AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

We have adopted comprehensive treasury policies and internal
control measures to review and monitor our financial resources.
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately RMB2,264.4 million (31 December
2020: approximately RMB2,217.8 million). The increase was
mainly attributable to cash inflow from the Company's
operations. The Group maintained at net cash position as at 31
December 2021 without any borrowings. Subsequent to the
reporting period, the Company has declared a final dividend of
approximately RMB345.9 million in total to the shareholders of
the Company, which will be paid out of the Company’s share
premium account.

The gearing ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by total
equity, and the sum of long-term and short-term interest bearing
bank loans and other loans as of the corresponding date divided
by the total equity as of the same date. As of 31 December 2021
and 2020, the gearing ratio was nil.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

As of 31 December 2021, trade and other receivables amounted
to RMB2,153.7 million, representing an increase of 73.9% as
compared with that of RMB1,238.3 million as of 31 December
2020, which was primarily attributable to the scale expansion of
the Group.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

As of 31 December 2021, trade and other payables amounted to
RMB919.3 million, representing an increase of 40.6% as
compared with that of RMB653.9 million as of 31 December 2020,
which was primarily attributable to () the scale expansion of the
Group due to the increase in the GFA under management and
subcontracting of more services to independent third-party
service providers; and (ii) the expansion of the intelligent
community solution business under the property management
services and value-added services segment.

PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

References are made to (i) the prospectus (the “Prospectus”) of
the Company dated 5 May 2020 relating to the global offering (the
“Global Offering”); (ii) the annual report of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020; and (jii) the announcement dated
8 July 2021 relating to the update on expected timeline for use of
proceeds (the “Announcement”). The Company’s ordinary shares
were listed on the main board of Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the
“Listing”) on 15 May 2020. After deducting the underwriting fees
and relevant expenses, net proceeds from the Listing amounted
to approximately HK$2,280.8 million (equivalent to RMB2,088.7
million). As of 31 December 2021, the Group has used
approximately RMB454.4 million of the proceeds.

Update on Expected Timeline for Use of Proceeds

As of 31 December 2021, the Company has not yet utilised the
net proceeds of approximately RMB1,634.3 million. The Board,
having considered the reasons set out in“Reasons for the
Extending the Expected Timeline for Use of Proceeds” below,
resolved to further extend the expected timeline of the use of the
unutilised net proceeds.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The table below sets forth the allocation and status of utilisation
of the proceeds and the updated time frame of the use of the
unutilised proceeds

TR EHRBEMFFAND
RABAEREEMBTANCEMFEE

FC A0 AR 1B A

Actual  Unused net Time frame
Respective  Respective expenditures proceeds  (as disclosed in the
percentage  amount of asat 31 asat31 announcement
of total total December ~ December published on Updated
Major Categories Sub-categories proceeds proceeds 2021 2021 8 July 2021) time frame
R2021%
B2021%F 12B31B8 KHEEX
SEFEHE  BERBR 12ANAEN  KERARE  (WR202157A8H
TEER TER HEEAL  EAHESE BREX REFE BHZLEMER) BB
(RMB'000) (RMB'000) (RMB'000)
(A\REFT) (AREFL) (AEEFT)
1. Strategic investments, 60% 1,253,216 102,409 1,150,807
cooperation and
acquisition
1. BEBERE - SR
I

1.1 Acquiring property 40% 835478 84,217 751261  Betweenoneyeartotwo  Between one year to three
management service years after Listing and a half years after
providers Listing

11 WENEEEREE FmE-EmE ITmg-E=F¥
]

1.2 Acquiring companies 10% 208,869 - 208,869  Between oneyeartotwo  Between one year to three
that will expand our years after Listing and a half years after
portfolio Listing

12 WEBEARMYE ThE-EmE LWk -E=F¥
HANRG

1.3 Acquiring other 10% 208,869 18,192 190,677  Between one to two years  Between one year to three
companies that can after Listing and a half years after
bring synergies to our Listing
business, in
particular, our
value-added services

13 WEEMmTARME FhE-EmE ITmg-E=F¢
BOLEREERS)

BRIBRRENRR
2. Enhancement of our 15% 313,304 100,519 212,785
Jianye+(32% +) platform
t0 optimise user
experience
2. MERE+FAUEL
RPER

2.1 Developing and 5% 104,435 41,193 63,242 Between one to two years  Between one year to three
optimizing software after Listing and a half years after
and our cloud system Listing

21 REREBLEHRE Tk -EmE 2=

2.2 Improving and 4% 83,548 1,938 81,610  Betweenonetotwoyears Between one year to three
expanding our after Listing and a half years after
facilities and Listing
equipment

22 YERBRBMNZ Lk -EmE 2= F¥
A&
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Actual  Unused net Time frame
Respective  Respective expenditures proceeds  (as disclosed in the

percentage  amount of asat 31 asat31 announcement
of total total  December  December published on Updated
Major Categories Sub-categories proceeds proceeds 2021 2021  8July 2021) time frame
R2021%

R2021F  12A31HM KEX
EEFBHE  EEFBR 12ANAMN  KERRE  (WR2021FE7A8H
FEE TR wEEAL  EAESE BREX FEFE BHZALAEE) ENRER
(RMB'000) (RMB'000) (RMB'000)
(NREFT) (ARETFIL) (AREFT)

2.3 Expansion of scale 4% 83,548 48,639 34909  Between one to two years  Between one year to three
and diversity of after Listing and a half years after
membership Listing
resources

23 BAEGEARMERE FHB-ERE IhE-E=FY
REEME

2.4 Expansion of our user 2% 773 8,749 33,024 Between one to three Between one year to three
hase years after Listing and a half years after

Listing
24 BRAPH tmE—2=%F ThE-E2=F¥
3. Investingin advanced 15% 313,304 73913 239,391
information
technologies system
3 REGEGERMES

31 Buildingintelligence 7% 146,209 71928 74,281 Betweenone to two years  Between one year o three
communities and after Listing and a half years after
upgrading facilities Listing

31 BRESHERAR Tk -EmE IThk-E=F*

32 Developing our 2.5% 52,217 768 51449  Betweenonetotwoyears Between one year to three
financial sharing after Listing and a half years after
system Listing

32 WENBREZZS TR -ERE IhE-E=FY

3.3 Developing a process 4% 83,548 1,008 82,540  Between one to three Between one year to three
control and KPI years after Listing and a half years after
integration system Listing

33 FEREEHRKR FhE-E=E Imk-E=FF
LS

34 Achieving digitalised 1.5% 31,330 209 31,121 Betweenone to two years  Between one year to three
documentation after Listing and a half years after

Listing
34 ERXMEFL Tk -EmE TR -E=FF

4. General working capital  Working capital and other 10% 208,870 177,559 31,311 Between one to three

general corporate years after Listing

pUrposes
4 —fREEES EEESREM—RAA ITmE—2=%

il

100% 2,088,694 454,400 1,634,294

The updated expected time frame is based on the estimation & F HIBHR R DENE ESFTEMGEHEL -
made by the Board which might be subject to changes in  FIEEIBIETISIANN T ESH B EEHEE o
accordance with the change in market conditions from time to

time.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Reasons for the Extending the Expected Timeline for
Use of Proceeds

As disclosed in the Announcement, since the outbreak of
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (the “COVID-19") in early 2020, a series
of precautionary and quarantine control measures have been
implemented in the PRC. In addition, Henan experienced a rare
torrential rain-caused floods, causing suspension of water and
power supply, shortage in materials, and people trapped waiting
for rescue in July 2021. In face of flood and pandemic, it was the
Group's first priority to response quickly to their impacts brought
to the community in order to maintain our service quality.

As a result, the Company was yet to utilise the net proceeds as
the development of the COVID-19 on global economic conditions
changed rapidly. Notwithstanding the foregoing, as the situation
of the pandemic is getting better and is currently under control in
the PRC, the Company is still committed to utilise the unutilised
net proceeds of RMB1,634.3 million towards its various business
objectives as set out in the Prospectus and the Announcement.

The Board considers that the extension of the expected timeline
for full utilisation of the proceeds will not have any material
adverse impact on the existing business and operations of the
Group and is in the best interest of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. Save for the above, there is no other
change in the use of proceeds from the Global Offering.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As of 31 December 2021, the Group did noJt have any pledged
assets for its loan guarantee.

MAJOR ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS
Acquisition of Equity Interest in Taihua Jinye,

Jin Guanjia and Zzhonghong Zhuoyue

In January 2021, the Group acquired 51% equity interests in
Taihua Jinye Life Service Co., Ltd. (“Taihua Jinye”) at a total
consideration of RMB95,281,000. Taihua Jinye is a property
management company located in Hengshui City, Hebei Province,
the PRC. In March 2021, the Group acquired 65% equity interests
in Henan Jin Guanjia Property Management Co., Ltd. (“Jin
Guanjia”) at a total consideration of RMB5,720,000. Jin Guanjia is
a property management company located in Zhengzhou City,
Henan Province, the PRC. In August 2021, the group acquired
51% equity interests in Luoyang Zhonghong Zhuoyue Property
Management Co., Ltd. ("Zhonghong Zhuoyue”) at a total
consideration of RMB16,556,000. Zhonghong Zhuoyue is a
property management company located in Luoyang City, Henan
Province, the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Please refer to note 28 of the consolidated financial statements
for more details.

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other significant
investments held, no material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, affiliates and joint venture enterprises, nor was
there any plan authorised by the Board for other material
investments or additions of capital assets at the date of this
report.

MAJOR INVESTMENT
As of 31 December 2021, the Group did not hold any significant
investment.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENT

As of 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities and capital commitment.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The principal activities of the Group are conducted in the PRC,
and a majority of the Group’s income and expenses were
denominated in Renminbi. Therefore, the Group is not exposed
to material risk directly relating to foreign exchange rate
fluctuation except certain bank balances were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, which were held by the Company in its own
functional currency. Currently, the Group has not entered into
contracts to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk, but the
management will continue to monitor the foreign exchange
exposure, and take prudent measures to reduce the foreign
exchange risk.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As of 31 December 2021, we had 6,007 full time employees,
substantially all of whom were located in Henan province.

In order to promote healthy competition among employees and
motivate them to deliver their best performance, the Company
has further optimised its existing remuneration and incentive
system and established a performance-oriented management
concept and remuneration and incentive system, according to
which the remuneration levels, remuneration adjustment and job
transfer of employees will be determined based on their
performance appraisal results. The overall remuneration system
of the Company will also be adjusted regularly with reference to
the prevailing market remuneration level to ensure the external
competitiveness and internal equity of the remunerations of our
employees and provide guarantees for retaining and attracting
talent.

The Company has also adopted certain share option schemes
and a share reward scheme to motivate and reward its
employees.

In addition, the Company has formulated and implemented
human resource policies which are conducive to the sustainable
development of the Company. Adhering to the talent concept of
“professional spirit and professional quality”, the Company takes
professional ethics and professional ability as important
standards for selecting and employing employees and
strengthens employee training and continuous education to
constantly improve their quality. Meanwhile, the Company also
places high emphasis on the career development of its
employees. It assists employees to plan out their career paths
according to their expertise and capabilities, provides them with
various career channels and development opportunities, and
cultivates and retains talent for key posts to promote the
continuous improvement of its organising ability.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

As a new lifestyle services provider, the Group possesses a more
extensive service system and portfolio of products and services
as compared to traditional property management companies.
With the high-net-worth, high purchase frequency and high
stickiness of the Group's customers, the consumption pattern of
the Group’s customers are characterised by increasing
consumption power and diversified needs. Therefore, the Group
is able to build an enriched and high-quality supply ecosystem to
provide its customers with a one-stop convenient and enriched
life by leveraging its strength in high quality, high density and rich
resources.

Property management services are the foundation and
cornerstone of the Group and also the primary driver for the
continuous development of the Group. The size of GFA under
management is one of the crucial factors in the valuation of a
property management company in the capital market. In order to
maintain our leading position in central China region, the Group
will continue to strengthen its efforts on property development
by focusing on mergers and acquisitions.

Technology empowerment is the only way to reduce costs and
increase efficiency. We will focus on increasing investment in
intelligent properties, evaluating the achievement of technology
investment, and integrating organisational management to
achieve the goal of cost reduction and efficiency enhancement
as soon as possible.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has always valued the superiority, steadiness and
rationality of having a sound system of corporate governance
and is committed to continuously improving its corporate
governance and disclosure practices. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Company has complied with all code
provisions and mandatory disclosure requirements and, where
appropriate, adopted the recommended best practices set out in
the Corporate Governance Code in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) with the exception of code provision C.2.1 as
addressed below.

Code provision C.2.1 — Pursuant to this code provision, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, Mr. Wang Jun was the chairman of the
Board and the chief executive officer of the Company,
responsible for formulating and executing our business
strategies, annual operational and financial plans of the
Company.

The Board believed that vesting the roles of both chairman and
chief executive officer in Mr. Wang Jun had the benefit of
ensuring consistency and continuous leadership within the Group
and also maximised the effectiveness and efficiency of overall
planning and execution of its strategies. The Board considered
that the balance of power and authority, accountability and
independent decision-making under its present arrangement
would not be impaired in light of the diverse background and
experience of its three independent non- executive Directors.
Further, the Audit Committee of the Company comprised
exclusively of independent non-executive Directors had free and
direct access to the Company’s external auditors and
independent professional advisers when it considered necessary.
Therefore, our Directors considered that the deviation from Code
Provision C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code was
appropriate in such circumstance.

On 14 February 2022, Mr, Shi Shushan (“Mr. Shi”) was appointed
by the Board as the chief executive officer of the Group in place
of Mr. Wang Jun. Mr. Shi is responsible for implementing business
strategies and operational management formulated by the Board.

Following the appointment of Mr. Shi Shushan as the chief

executive officer, the Company has compiled with code provision
C.2.1 of the Corporate Government Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for the
Directors in their dealings in the Company's securities. Having
made specific enquires with each Director, the Company
confirmed that the Directors had complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code for the period from the
year ended 31 December 2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board, which is chaired by Mr. Wang Jun, consists of two
executive Directors and five non-executive Directors, three of
whom are independent. The composition of the Board ensures a
balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements
of the business of Group and the exercising of independent
opinion.

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report include:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jun (Chairman)

Mr. Cai Bin (resigned on 26 March 2021)

Mr. Wang Qian (appointed on 26 March 2021)

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Wu Lam Li
Ms. Min Huidong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Leong Chong

Ms. Luo Laura Ying

Ms. Xin Zhu

All executive Directors and non-executive Directors have entered
into service contracts or letters of appointment with the
Company for a specific term of 3 years. Under the articles of
association (the “Articles of Association”) of the Company, the
Board is empowered to appoint any person as a Director to fill
the casual vacancy on or as an additional Director.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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In compliance with Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors (representing one-third of the Board), one of whom
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications in
accounting and financial management. Each of the three
independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his
independence of the Company and the Company considers each
of them to be independent in accordance with the guidelines of
assessing independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Each of the three independent non-executive Directors
has signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a
specific term of three years.

Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, at every
annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
In accordance with Articles 84(1) and 84(2) of the Articles of
Association, Ms. Wu Lam Li, Mr. Leong Chong and Ms. Luo Laura
Ying, therefore, will retire from their offices at the AGM, and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Group and in particular, the independent non-executive
Directors have provided the Board with their diversified expertise
and professional advices. The Board is of the view that there is a
balanced composition of executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive Directors in the Board and the
independent non-executive Directors are able to provide
sufficient checks and balances to safeguard the interests of the
Group and its Shareholders. The participation of the independent
non-executive Directors in the Board and committee meetings
also provides independent judgment on the issues relating to
strategy, policy, performance, accountability, conflict of interest
and standards of conduct.
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The Board members have access to timely information relating to
the Group’s business and will be provided with further
documents and information upon request to enable them to
make informed decisions. Independent professional advice can
be sought to discharge their duties at the Group's expense upon
their request. No such advice was sought during 2021. The
Company has subscribed appropriate and sufficient insurance
coverage on Directors' liabilities in respect of legal actions taken
against Directors arising out of corporate activities.

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD

The Board is in charge of leadership and control of the Group and
is responsible for maximising the Group’s financial performance
and making decisions in the best interests of the Group and its
Shareholders. Under the leadership of Mr. Wang Jun, the
chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”), the Board is also
responsible for formulating and overseeing the business
strategies and policies of the Group, approving and monitoring
annual budgets and business plans, reviewing operational and
financial performance, and reviewing and monitoring the Group’s
financial control and risk management systems. The Board has
delegated the daily operation and day-to-day management of the
Group as well as the implementation of the Board's policies and
strategies to the executive Directors and management of the
Group.

BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETING
The Board holds meetings regularly and meets at other times as
and when required to review financial, internal and compliance
controls, risk management, company strategy and operating
performance of the Group. In addition, the Board holds general
meeting to maintain an on-going dialogue with the Shareholders.
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board held 6 regular
meetings, 2 audit committee meetings, 1 nomination committee
meeting, 1 remuneration committee meeting, 1 general meeting
and 1 extraordinary general meeting.

[FEEBHS

ESENBAMKESERAREXBNER |
AEBT G EEERKEHE - FOFNMER -
EREEMELANBERE -EEZEXEARET
HBBGERBUEXRER  BRAAKESN -

R2021%F  EFEXBYESKZERER - AR

FICBEBEARTRRR NBEEEEREERE
BHRELHERMIRIARFLNEE -

EEENEME
EESEERYRIEHARE  YEEBRSE
BRI R IR R ARI A & AR B R B R A

HAORE - EEFETRTEFEDTEELE 0
BET EESEABRNITMEEAKENER
REERBGR - #EREEFRBAE XTI ER
AERBRMBRIR - mE REEANKEEOT BT
HIRERERHE BEFECRRAKRENTE
ELEREREASEARELRERE  XHT
EE2HBOR MRES

EEEERERRRARE

EEeTHRRMENEMRRITE® UK
AAEERNITE  RBREHREE  RiEE
NAIRBE RGBS - I EFERITRIEK
AR ERAR R AT E L - BE 2021412 A 31
ALFE BRI TOATHEE 20T
§E®A*1mk%§a§§% 1REFME B
CIRBRRARER1VARERFRRS

HE SR

EIEIH

BEFEIERAT/ B —FERH 61



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

[PEREBHS

The number of Board meetings, committee meetings and general
meeting attended by each Director from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021 is set out in the following table:

BEEN2021F1A1HE2021512 A 31 H M
tEEEees =28 REREN
REHEHNRTE

Audit Nomination Remuneration Extraordinary
Board Committee Committee Committee General General

Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
£% 588 FUEEREN RAZEAEY FHERERE RRAR LELERIPN
Number of meetingsheld 6 2 1 1 1 1
BIIERH
Mr. Wang Jun 6/6 /1 11 11 11
FlREE
Mr Cai Bin (resigned on 0/1

26 March 2021)
I (R 2021 F

326 A7)
Mr. Wang Qian (appointed ~ 6/6 "N 0/1

on 26 March 2021)
TE R (R2021%F

3526 HEZ(F)
Ms. Wu Lam Li 6/6 11 0N
ESi Y
Ms. Min Huidong 6/6 7N 01
BERLT
Mr. Leong Chong 6/6 2/2 " 7 7 /1
AAFHE
Ms. Luo Laura Ying 6/6 2/2 "N "N 7
P
Ms. Xin Zhu 6/6 2/2 1/1 11 11
FHLT

Sufficient notice for regular Board meetings and notice of
reasonable days for ad hoc Board meetings were given to all
Directors so as to ensure that each of them had an opportunity
to attend the meetings, and agenda and accompanying Board
papers were given to all Directors in a timely manner. As agreed
by the Board, the Directors may also seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense. No such advice
was sought during 2021. During the intervals between Board
meetings, the senior management of the Company provides the
Directors with information on a timely basis regarding all major
developments or changes in the Group's businesses.

Should a Director have a potential conflict of interest in a matter
being considered in the Board meeting, he or she will abstain
from voting in respect of the relevant resolution. Independent
non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest will be
present at meetings to deal with such issues.
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Full Board or committee papers will be sent to all Directors at
least three days before the intended date of a Board meeting or
committee meeting.

Management has supplied the Board and its committees with
adequate information and explanations so as to enable them to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before the Board and its committees for
approval. Management is also invited to join the Board or
committee meetings where appropriate.

All the Directors are also entitled to have access to timely
information such as monthly updates in relation to our
businesses and have separate and independent access to senior
management.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Code provision C.1.4 of the Corporate Governance Code requires
all Directors to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

During the year, the Company Secretary regularly circulated
reading materials on the amendments to or updates on the
relevant laws, rules and regulations to all Directors as part of
their training materials in the continuous professional
development plan of the Company and the Company confirmed
that all Directors read the training materials and are in
compliance with Code C.1.4.

In addition, every newly appointed Director will receive an
induction on the first occasion of his or her appointment, so as to
ensure that he or she has a proper understanding of the
operations and business of the Company, and his or her
responsibilities under laws, regulations and especially the
governance policies of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Throughout 2021, the position of Chairman and the position of
Chief Executive Officer was held by Mr. Wang Jun. On 14
February 2022, Mr. Shi Shushan was appointed as the chief
executive officer in place of Mr. Wang Jun.

As the Chairman, Mr. Wang Jun is responsible for the
management and leadership of the Board to formulate overall
strategies and business development directions for the Group, to
ensure that adequate, complete and reliable information is
provided to all Directors in a timely manner, and to ensure that
the issues raised at the Board meetings are explained
appropriately.

As the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Shi Shushan is responsible for
the daily operations of the Group and the implementation of
business policies, objectives and plans as formulated and
adopted by the Board, and is accountable to the Board for the
overall operation of the Group.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects in the consolidated financial
statements of the annual and interim reports in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
Pursuant to Code Provision D.1.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, management should provide such explanation and
information to the Board as will enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of the financial and other information put
before the Board for approval. The Directors confirm that, to the
best of their knowledge, information and belief, having made all
reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021, the Directors have selected appropriate
accounting policies and applied them consistently, and have
made judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable.

The Group has announced its annual and interim results in a
timely manner within the limits of three months and two months
respectively after the end of the relevant financial periods, as laid
down in the Listing Rules.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
Group's assets and shareholders’ interests. The Group
acknowledges the responsibilities of the Board and the
management in the risk management and internal control
systems:

o The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and degree of risk it is willing to take in achieving
the Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the
issuer establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems; overseeing
the management in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems.

o The management is responsible for the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems, and shall confirm to the Board
on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable rather than
absolute assurance that there will be no material mistatement or
loss.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established the risk management infrastructure,
defined the risk management process, adopted qualitative and
quantitative integrated risk management methods to identify,
evaluate and mitigate risks. It shall promote the sustainable and
healthy development of various businesses of the Group under
controllable risks.

Establishing a risk management organisational structure:
The Group has established a risk management organisational
structure that covers the decision-making level (the Board and
the Audit Committee), the execution level (the headquarters of
the Group and its subsidiaries at all levels) and the supervision
level (the audit and supervision center of the Group). This has
clearly defined the responsibilities and authorities and major
work scopes of each level in written form, which helps to
comprehensively identify and manage risks. The Group has
sorted out the major risks regarding five risk categories, namely
strategic risk, market risk, operational risk, financial risk and legal
risk, and established a risk database. Based on the strategic
objectives of the Group and the risk appetite of the management,
the Group has formulated applicable risk assessment dimensions
and standards, as well as risk assessment methods with
qualitative and quantitative tools.

EEE

SEEZTRAREEARREE  HEAREER
B REREEMEEREANREREEN L #
TR &R - FHEMERE - ERRAZEORE
T REXAKEEBXFRHERRER -

RERREREASRE  ARXECRVEFRE
ERREmN(EEELBREZEE) HITEE (%
BB E TBEMRAR) MEEBH (REFE
S0 EREREMERE  YEmMAETSE
ENBRELER TETERNTS BPREE
HA R EBERR  REEERR  mi5RE - EE
Rk - B #5 R MOA R R D EREIER - 772
TEEEEMNTIERAR ZYRBREEE ALK
SEEEARLEEEARREHE  HIETE
PR RUBR A1 e AR 2 » DA SR M AN E B AR A
BoRRHE T

Decision-making authority
REHAE

The Board and Audit Committee

EFERERRRE

Executive authority
HAITHE

Headquarter of the Group
(including all functional centers)
LB
(BREEBAERL)

Subsidiaries of the Group
(including business divisions and
professional companies)
SETEXRRRF
(BIERER  FXLAE)

Supervision authority

o

Audit and supervision center
of the Group
EMEFERP O

(Diagram 1: Organisational structure of risk management)
(B—: ReEIRAmLERE)
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Establishes risk management process: Establishes a closed-
loop risk management process including risk identification, risk
assessment, risk response, risk monitoring, reporting and
improvement, defines the specific steps and contents of risk
management work, and the management tools used to support
the process implementation. The major steps of our risk
management process are illustrated in the diagram below:

Risk Identification

Risk Assessment

Risk response

Risk Identification

B R Bl
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Reporting and
Improvement
FE 3R B B

Risk monitoring
R R

the headquarter of the Group and
subsidiaries identify major risks that may
affect the achievement of strategies and
business objectives;

to evaluate and analyse the risks
identified from two dimensions, namely
the possibility of occurrence and the
degree of impact of risks, and to rank
the importance of risks by integrating
risk assessment questionnaires, data
analysis and industry benchmarking;

analyse the effectiveness of existing
risk management measures, identify
risk monitoring gaps and formulate
risk response plans to control risks
within an acceptable level;

Risk response
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Risk monitoring — totrack and inspect the implementation
of the risk response plan, and monitor
the effectiveness of risk management
through the audit and supervision
center as the third line of defense,

Reporting and —  Discuss and communicate the work

Improvement results of risk management on a regular

basis, and continuously improve and
optimise risk management and control
capabilities.

The main features of the Group's risk management system are as
follows:

o Closed-loop risk management process: The risk
management process adopts a combination of top-down
and bottom-up approaches. Through a series of work
processes including risk identification, risk assessment, risk
response, risk monitoring, reporting and improvement, the
Group fully understands the major risks faced by the Group
and continuously monitors and manages the risks through
a closed-loop risk management process.

o Risk database with clear levels and prominent
focuses: Based on five risk categories, namely strategy,
market, operation, finance and law, and taking into account
the principles of comprehensiveness, importance, synergy
and standardisation, the Group has established a risk
database at different levels.

o Compliance with the Group’s risk assessment
criteria: We have established appropriate risk assessment
criteria based on the nature of the Company’s industry and
business objectives, and the management'’s risk appetite.

. Continuous improvement and optimisation
mechanism: The frequency of risk assessment (at least
once a year) and reporting and communication
requirements are specified. Through regular assessment,
implementation and follow-up of risk response measures,
communication and reporting, the Company continuously
improves the risk management work process and optimizes
risk management measures.
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During the year, the Group applied the assessment methods and
assessment criteria jointly confirmed by the management to
evaluate, analyse and prioritise the risks that would most likely
affect the realisation of corporate objectives, determine the key
risks exposed by the Group, and discuss the management
measures of such key risks. Meanwhile, for each major risk, the
Company sorted out and recorded the existing risk response
measures, proposed risk management improvement advices
according to the risk appetite of the management, and reported
the assessment results to the Audit Committee.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for establishing an appropriate internal
control system for the Group to safeguard the Group’s assets and
shareholders’ interests. The Audit Committee shall regularly
review the effectiveness of the internal control system to ensure
that the internal control system is adequate.

The Group has set up an audit and supervision center as the third
line of defense. Through internal audit and follow-up review on
the improvement of internal control deficiencies identified during
the audit process, the Group communicates with relevant
management, supervises the timely implementation of internal
control improvement measures, and provides the Board with
independent and objective opinions on the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems. At the
same time, the audit and supervision center have unrestricted
access to the documents and records, information systems and
staff necessary for the implementation of the audit procedures,
and reports the audit results to the Audit Committee.

As the first line of defense, the management at the Group's
headquarters, business divisions and professional companies
level and their respective functional department managers have
designed and implemented a series of management policies and
procedures to ensure that their work is in compliance with laws,
regulations and the Company’s strategies and business
objectives, and the heads of relevant operating units and
departments are responsible for supervising the implementation
and effectiveness of such policies and procedures to ensure the
effective operation of the Company’s internal control system.
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In 2021, the management of the Group conducted internal
control review on selected key business processes based on the
changes in risk status and regulatory environment, identified the
existing control defects with a risk-oriented approach, specified
the department mainly responsible for control defects, the next
response measures and improvement plans, and reported the
assessment results to the Audit Committee.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group is aware of its obligations under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules. With respect to the
procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company has formulated
the Guidelines on Management and Disclosure of Inside
Information, and announced the disclosure policy to the
Directors, senior management and relevant employees who may
have access to sensitive information, requiring them to comply
with the relevant procedures, handle confidential and/or inside
information according to the guidelines, monitor information
disclosure and respond to enquiries.

REVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

During the year under review, through the Audit Committee, the
Board has conducted a comprehensive review of the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems, taking into account the changes in the nature
and severity of significant risks, and the Group's ability to respond
to changes in its business and the external environment. The
work during the year included the commencement of 2021 risk
assessment and the commencement of internal control review
on key business areas, covering financial, operational and
compliance controls. The Board considers that the Group has
complied with the provisions on risk management and internal
control as stipulated in the Corporate Governance Code and
considered the risk management and internal control systems
effective and adequate.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience of the accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions, training programmes and
budget and considered that they are adequate.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to the
Shareholders to be its goal. In deciding whether to propose a
dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall
take into account, inter alia, the following factors:

o the financial condition of the Group;

o the liquidity position and expected working capital
requirements of the Group;

o any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group's lenders;

o the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group; and

o any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and the Articles of Association of the Company.

Any final dividend declared by the Company must be approved
by an ordinary resolution of the Shareholders at an annual
general meeting of the Company and must not exceed the
amount recommended by the Board. The dividend policy will
continue to be reviewed from time to time and there can be no
assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any
specific period.

BOARD COMMITTEES AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the Nomination Committee (the “Nomination
committee”) to oversee the relevant aspects of the Company’s
affairs. The three Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties.
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The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

c)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices in compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

e) to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Audit
Committee was established on 29 April 2020. The Audit
Committee comprises Ms. Xin Zhu (the Chairlady of the Audit
committee), Mr. Leong Chong and Ms. Luo Laura Ying during the
year ended 31 December 2021. None of them is a member of the
former or existing auditors of the Company. The Board is of the
view that the members of the Audit Committee have sufficient
accounting and financial management expertise and experience
to discharge their duties. However, the Audit Committee is also
authorised to obtain external legal or other independent
professional advice if it considers necessary.

The Audit Committee has written terms of reference in
accordance with the Code. The principal functions of the Audit
Committee include:

o To make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of external
independent auditors and to approve the remuneration and
terms of such appointments;

J To review and monitor the independence and objectivity of

the external independent auditors and effectiveness of the
audit process in accordance with applicable standards;
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To review the Company’s financial controls, risk
management and internal control systems and other major
financial matters;

To review the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices, and to monitor the Company’s financial operation
and core business status;

To ensure that the management has fulfilled its duties and
the Group’s strategic objectives to maintain an effective
risk management and internal control system,

To ensure compliance with applicable statutory accounting
and reporting requirements, legal and regulatory
requirements, internal rules and procedures approved by
the Board from time to time; and

To review and monitor the integrity of the financial
statements, annual and interim reports and the auditor’s
report to ensure that the information presents a true and
balanced assessment of the Group’s financial position.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during 2021 and conducted
the following responsibilities:

1)

reviewed the Group’s annual results for the year ended 31
December 2020 and interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2021;

reviewed the audit plans and findings of the external
auditor; and

made recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
of the external auditor.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group as well as considered and
identified risks of the Group subsequent to 31 December 2021
and will continuously monitor the systems on a regular basis.

The Audit Committee also met with the external auditor annually
in the absence of management to discuss matters relating to any
issues arising from audit and any other matters the external
auditor may wish to raise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, the external independent
auditors’ remuneration to the Group’s auditor in respect of
annual audit and Interim review services provided to the Group
amounted to approximately RMB2.7 million and RMB1.3 million.

The Company’s annual results announcement dated 16 March
2022 for the year ended 31 December 2021 has been reviewed
by the Audit Committee.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 29 April 2020
with written terms of reference as suggested under the code
provision in the Corporate Governance Code. The Nomination
committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Wang Jun (the
chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Leong Chong and
Ms. Xin Zhu, a majority of whom are independent non-executive
Directors.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include: (i)
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least once a year, and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes to the Board for conforming to the strategy of the
Company; (i) identifying and nominating qualified individuals to act
as Directors and making recommendations to the Board regarding
such matters; (jii) assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors; (iv) making recommendations to the
Board regarding the appointment or reappointment of Directors
and succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer; and (v) reviewing the Board
Diversity Policy (as defined below), and the implementation of the
progress targets set by such policy.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee shall attend the
annual general meeting of the Company to answer questions
raised by the Shareholders on Directors’ nomination and other
nomination policy matters.

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy with effect
on 29 April 2020 which sets out its approach to achieve and
maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board.
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The Company recognises the benefits of Board diversity and
endeavours to ensure that the Board has the appropriate and
balanced skill levels, experience and perspectives to support the
execution of its business strategies. The Company seeks to
achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a number of
factors, including professional qualifications and experience,
cultural and educational background, race and ethnicity, gender,
age and length of service. The Company will also take into
consideration factors based on its own business model and
specific needs from time to time in determining the optimum
composition of the Board.

As recommended by the Nomination Committee, the Board has
set measurable objectives (in terms of gender, skills and
experience) to implement the Board Diversity Policy and review
such objectives from time to time to ensure their appropriateness
and ascertain the progress made towards achieving those
objectives. The Nomination Committee will review the Board
Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its continued
effectiveness from time to time.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 29 April 2020
with written terms of reference as suggested under the code
provision in the Corporate Governance Code. The Remuneration
committee comprises three members, including two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Luo Laura Ying
(the Chairlady of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Leong
Chong, and Mr. Wang Jun (the Chairman and executive Director
of the Company), during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include (but
not limited to) (i) making recommendations to the Board on the
Ccompany's policies and structures for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration; (ii) determining the terms of the specific
remuneration package of individual executive Directors and
senior management, and (iii) reviewing and approving
remuneration proposal by reference to corporate objectives set
by the Directors from time to time.
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The amount of the executive Directors’ remuneration is
determined by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of the
relevant executive Directors’ experience, responsibility, workload
and the time devoted to the Group. The entire Directors’
remuneration is adjusted by the Remuneration Committee from
time to time.

The Remuneration Committee may also consult the Chairman on
proposals relating to the remuneration of other executive
Directors and has access to professional advice if necessary.

COMPANY SECRETARY

In compliance with Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules, the Company
Secretary is a full time employee and has the day-to-day
knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary is
responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters. For the year under review, the Company Secretary has
confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be held each year
at the place as may be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be called
an extraordinary general meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting and Put Forward
Proposals Thereat

The following procedures for the Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting are prepared in accordance with
Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company:

1) One or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition.
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2)  The requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and
must be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by
one or more of those Shareholders.

3)  The requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary via mail to the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Room 7706, 77th Floor,
International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

4)  The extraordinary general meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of the requisition.

5)  If the Directors fail to proceed to convene the extraordinary
general meeting within twenty-one (21) days of the deposit
of such requisition, the Shareholder(s) himself or
themselves may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by him/her/them as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
Shareholder(s) by the Company.

Proposals for Proposing a Person for Election as a
Director

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules and the
Articles of Association as amended from time to time, the
Company may from time to time in a general meeting by ordinary
resolution elect any person to be a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional Director.

A Shareholder may propose a person (the “Person”) for election
as a Director by lodging the following documents at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Room
7706, 77th Floor, International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road
West, Kowloon, Hong Kong:

1) anotice in writing signed by the Shareholder concerned of
his/her/its intention to propose the Person as a Director
with full particulars of the Person including his/her full
name and biographical details as required under Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; and
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2) a notice in writing signed by the Person of his/her
willingness to be elected as a Director.

Such notices shall be lodged at least seven (7) days prior to the
date of the general meeting and the period for lodgment of such
notices shall commence no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and shall be at least seven (7) days in length.

Procedures for Raising Enquiries

To ensure effective communication between the Board and the
Shareholders, the Company has adopted a Shareholders’
communication policy:

1) Shareholders may direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company'’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited.

2)  Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary or the Chief Financial Officer whose contact
details are as follows:

Central China New Life Limited
Room 7706,

77th Floor,

International Commerce Centre,
1 Austin Road West,

Kowloon, Hong Kong

3)  Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION AND
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The Company’'s Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association are available on both the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. There had been no changes in the
constitutional documents of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2021.
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CORPORATE COMMUNICATION AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The major task and objective of the Group’s investor relations are
to clearly introduce the Group, including the business positioning,
existing operations and future development of the Group, to the
media, Shareholders, investors, analysts and investment banks
through different communication channels. In future, the Group
shall further enhance communication with the media,
Shareholders, investors, analysts and investment banks on
various aspects such as development strategies, operation and
management, financial prospects and business operation
through meetings, senior management'’s participation in investor
forums, conferences and roadshows. The Group is confident in
establishing and maintaining a good relationship with the
international capital institutions through the continued
enhancement of information transparency.

The Group emphasises the importance of maintaining good
communication with the Shareholders, so as to increase the
Company’s transparency and understanding by the Shareholders.
To enable that the Shareholders are effectively informed of the
Group's status and developments, the Group issues
announcements, circulars, notices, interim and annual reports in
a timely manner. To enhance the Company’s transparency, other
information about the Company is published on the Company'’s
website.

The Company’s annual general meetings allow the Directors to
meet and communicate with the Shareholders and to answer any
queries that the Shareholders may have. An external
independent auditor is also present at the annual general
meetings. The Chairman will propose separate resolutions for
each issue to be considered at the annual general meetings. A
notice of annual general meeting is delivered to all Shareholders
at least 20 clear business days prior to the date of the meeting,
setting out details of each proposed resolution and other
information. Voting results are posted on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange.
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SSXEHEERBER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jun, aged 41, was appointed as our Director on 16
October 2018, appointed as our chairman of our Board and chief
executive officer and redesignated as our executive Director of
the Group on 28 October 2019. On 14 February 2022, Mr. Wang
ceased to be the Company'’s chief executive officer in order to
separate the roles of chairman and chief executive with a view to
further optimise the corporate governance structure of the
Company and enable a greater delineation of responsibilities. Mr.
Wang is mainly responsible for formulating our business
strategies, annual operational and financial plans.

Mr. Wang joined our Group in June 2018. Since June 2018, Mr.
Wang has been a director of Central China New Life and is mainly
responsible for formulating and executing business strategies,
annual operational and financial plans.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Wang had more than 16 years of
experience in the accounting and corporate finance fields. From
August 2003 to June 2007, Mr. Wang served as an auditor and a
senior auditor successively at PricewaterhouseCoopers. From
June 2007 to April 2011, he served as the head of the investor
relations department and senior manager of the finance
department of Country Garden Holdings Company Limited (284
EEAE B BR 22 7)) (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 2007) successively. From May 2011 to June 2018, he
worked in the investment banking division (real estate team) of
Morgan Stanley Asia International Limited, with the last position
held as an executive director.

Mr. Wang also holds directorship positions in two other listed
companies. Mr. Wang was appointed as the executive director of
CCRE on 21 August 2018. Mr. Wang was also appointed as a non-
executive director of DIT Group Limited GEREERIEB AR
A \]) (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 726)
on 17 September 2019.

Mr. Wang obtained his bachelor’'s degree in English from
Guangdong University of Foreign Studies (B IMEINE KE) in
the PRC in June 2002 and his master’s degree in business
administration from Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in November 2011.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wang has an interest in the shares of the Company, details of
which are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares or debentures” under Directors’ report in this annual
report.

Mr. Wang Qian, aged 39, was appointed as our Director on 26
March 2021. He joined the Group in October 2020 as Vice
President and was promoted to Executive President in February
2021.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Wang had over 15 years of
experience in the online technology platform, consumer service
and property development industries. From December 2002 to
February 2012, as a founder of Beijing Diancheng Technology
Co., Ltd., Mr. Wang was responsible for overseeing its online
education business. From March 2015 to January 2018, Mr. Wang
concurrently worked as the vice president of Shenzhen Yihua
jewellery Co. Ltd. and the vice president of Shenzhen Yongheng
Real Estate Co., Ltd. From June 2018 to October 2020, as a
founder of Biwei (Hangzhou) Technology Co., Ltd., Mr. Wang was
responsible for overseeing its online retail business.

Mr. Wang is pursuing a remote EMBA Program in Paul-Valéry
University of Montpellier.

Mr. Wang has an interest in the shares of the Company, details of
which are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares or debentures” under Directors’ report in this annual
report.
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SSXEHEERBER

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wu Lam Li, (former name: Li Lin), aged 65, was appointed
as our non-executive Director of our Group on 28 October 2019.
Since she joined our Group as a director in September 2016, Ms.
Wu has been mainly responsible for reviewing and supporting
our overall corporate and business development and strategic
planning of our Group. Ms. Wu is the spouse of Mr. Wu, one of
our Controlling Shareholders. Ms. Wu is also a director of various
subsidiaries of our Group.

Ms. Wu has also been serving in various positions in the CCRE
Group, including (i) legal representative and general manager of
Henan Central China Zhizun Hotel Investment Company Limited
(X8 B/EEE AR AR, a subsidiary of CCRE China (a
subsidiary of CCRE), since June 2010; (i) the vice president of
CCRE China since April 2017; and (iii) a director of Kaifeng Central
China Dahong Xibeihu Hotel Management Co., Ltd. (F¥fEE X
ZREOALEEEE AR A 7)), a subsidiary of CCRE China.

Ms. Wu obtained her bachelor’s degree in radio autocontrol from
Zhengzhou University (&8N X&) in the PRC in November 1979.

Ms. Wu has an interest in the shares of the Company, details of
which are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares or debentures” under Directors’ report in this annual
report.

Ms. Min Huidong (alias: Min Min), aged 57, was appointed as
our non-executive Director of our Group on 28 October 2019. Ms.
Min is mainly responsible for reviewing and supporting our
overall corporate and business development and strategic
planning of our Group.
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Prior to joining our Group, from April 1997 to October 2012, Ms.
Min served in various positions in the subsidiaries and associate
companies of CCRE Group including (i) a manager of the
management and human resources department of CCRE China
from April 1997 to December 1998; (ii) the general manager of
Henan Central China Education Development Company Limited
(R EHEEXBRAT) from January 1999 to December
2003, during which she was mainly responsible for the
management and operation of various kindergartens, primary
and secondary schools; (i) concurrently as the general manager
of the business development department of CCRE China and
editor in chief of CCRE’s monthly magazine from October 2002 to
December 2003; (iv) the assistant president of CCRE China from
December 2003 to October 2004, (v) the vice president and
general manager of Yuxi division of CCRE China from January
2004 to May 2006; (vi) the executive president of CCRE China
from June 2006 to February 2009; (vii) concurrently as the deputy
president of CCRE China and the general manager of Zhengbian
division of CCRE China from August 2009 to January 2010; (viii)
concurrently as the vice president of CCRE China and general
manager of Henan Central China Commercial Real Estate
Management Co., Ltd. (FEEEHEMELEERERAA), a
subsidiary of CCRE China, from April 2010 to March 2011, (ix)
concurrently as the vice president of CCRE China and director of
the Committee for CCRE 20th Anniversary Affairs from June 2011
to October 2012; and (x) concurrently as the vice president of
CCRE China and the general manager of Henan Central China
Cultural Tourism Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (AR
bR B EE 25 R A PR A &), a subsidiary of CCRE China, since
August 2012. Ms. Min is also (xi) an executive director, legal
representative and general manager of Nanyang Central China
Tourism Development Co., Ltd. (G ERERZEAR A T]), a
subsidiary of CCRE China since July 2017; (xii) an executive
director and legal representative of Luoyang Central China
Cultural Tourism Industry Co., Ltd. (&5 L IRBEE X AR A
A]), a subsidiary of CCRE China since May 2015; and (xiii) a
director, legal representative and general manager of Henan
Central China Huayi Brothers Cultural Tourism Industry Co., Ltd.
(R EEER LB ULIRMEEZEBGRAF]), a subsidiary of CCRE
China, and general manager of its Zhengzhou division since
September 2015.

Ms. Min obtained her bachelor’s degree in education from Hebei
University of Engineering (a1t T2 X&) (formerly known as
Hebei Charcoal Engineering School (R[4t ki L T2 E367)) in
the PRC in July 1992 and her EMBA degree from the China
Europe International Business School in the PRC in June 2006.
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Ms. Min has an interest in the shares of the Company, details of
which are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares or debentures” under Directors’ report in this annual
report.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Leong Chong, aged 56, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director of our Group on 29 April 2020. Mr. Leong
is primarily responsible for providing independent judgment on
our strategies, policy, performance, accountability, resources,
key appointments and standard of conduct.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Leong had over 20 years of
experience in the finance field. From July 1997 to June 2000, he
worked as an analyst in the equity research division of Morgan
Stanley Dean Witter. From June 2000 to October 2001, he was a
director of the equity research department of Credit Suisse First
Boston (Hong Kong) Limited. From June 2002 to September 2015,
he worked in Morgan Stanley Asia Limited with the last position
held as the managing director of the investment banking division.
From December 2016 to March 2019, he was the deputy general
manager of S.F. Holding Co., Ltd. (IBZ i mh AR F), a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
002352). Mr. Leong has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of JY Grandmark Holdings Limited (2 %% 54
EEAE B BR A 7)) (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 2231) since November 2019.

Mr. Leong was a director of Gateway Capital Group Limited (E4[&
BEEE AR AR, a company incorporated in Hong Kong and
was dissolved on 9 August 2002. Mr. Leong confirmed that the
above company was solvent prior to its deregistration and was
deregistered as it had not commenced business since
establishment or had ceased to conduct business. He further
confirmed that, as of the Latest Practicable Date, no claims have
been made against him and he was not aware of any threatened
or potential claims made against him and there are no
outstanding claims and/or liabilities as a result of the
deregistration of the above company.

Mr. Leong obtained his bachelor’s degree in computer science

from the University of California, Berkeley in the U.S. in December
1990.
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Ms. Luo Laura Ying, aged 57, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director of our Group on 29 April
2020. Ms. Luo is primarily responsible for providing independent
judgment on our strategies, policy, performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and standard of conduct.

Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Luo had over 20 years of
experience in the investment field. From 1995 to 1999, Ms. Luo
worked in various well-known investment banks including
Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. and Morgan Stanley Dean Witter.
From November 1999 to July 2001, she was the head of China
research of the research department of SG Securities (HK)
Limited. From July 2001 to July 2013, Ms. Luo worked in Schroders
Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited, with the last
position held as an equity fund manager. From September 2013
to September 2019, she worked in Barings Asset Management
(Asia) Limited, with the last position held as the managing
director. Ms. Luo has been a consultant of GL Capital
Management Limited since December 2019 and subsequently
transferred to GL China Equity HK Management Limited in May
2020. She has also been an independent non-executive director
of China Medical System Holdings Limited (5 & 242 G R A
a]) (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 867)
since March 2020.

Ms. Luo was a director of eShine Technology Limited (g Z&HE &
fR /2 /]), a company established in Hong Kong and was dissolved
on 17 August 2018. Ms. Luo confirmed that the above company
was solvent prior to its deregistration and was deregistered as it
had not commenced business since establishment or had ceased
to conduct business. She further confirmed that, as of the Latest
Practicable Date, no claims have been made against her and she
was not aware of any threatened or potential claims made
against her and there are no outstanding claims and/or liabilities
as a result of the deregistration of the above company.

Ms. Luo obtained her bachelor’'s degree in international
economics from Peking University (3t AE2) in the PRC in July
1987 and her master’s degree in business administration from
the University of Toronto in Canada in June 1991. Ms. Luo has
been as a chartered financial analyst by the Chartered Financial
Analyst Institute since September 1999 and a chartered
professional accountant by the Chartered Professional
Accountants of British Columbia since June 1995.
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Ms. Xin Zhu, aged 53, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director of our Group on 29 April 2020. Ms. Xin is
primarily responsible for providing independent judgment on our
strategies, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standard of conduct.

Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Xin had over 25 years of
experience in the accounting industry as well as executive
management in public companies. From 1990 to 2008, Ms. Xin
worked in various accounting firms and finance corporations,
including Shenzhen Shekou Chinese Accountancy where she
served as an accountant, and Shenzhen Brewery Limited where
she served as the chief financial officer. Since February 2006 and
up to present, Ms. Xin has been serving in various companies
listed on the Stock Exchange, including listed companies
engaging in the business of property development in the PRC.
From February 2006 to June 2008, she worked in Hopson
Development Holdings Limited (A £ AIREB AR AR (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 00754), with
the last position held as the vice president. From July 2008 to
June 2014, she worked in China Aoyuan Group Limited (1 B4 2 &
EERMHAERAT]) (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 3883), with the last concurrent positions held as the
executive director and executive vice president. From July 2014
to September 2016, she served successively as (i) the chief
financial officer of Logan Property Holdings Company Limited (g
e EEERS AR A R]) (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 3380) and (ii) the executive vice president of
Guangzhou Yihe Real Estate Group Limited (E/NEEFIHESEE).
Since June 2018, she has also been an independent non-
executive director of CanSino Biologics Inc. (B 7 #& £ #IR% {7 A 7))
(a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 6185), a
company engaging in the development, manufacturing and sales
of vaccines. Since November 2020, she has also been an
independent non-executive director of Datang Group Limited (X
EEEIERARAR) (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 2117), a company engaging in the business of
property development in the PRC.

Ms. Xin obtained her bachelor’'s degree in accounting from
Renmin University of China (R BI A ERRZ) in the PRC in July 1990
and her master’s degree in business administration from
Auckland Institute of Studies in New Zealand in December 1999.
Ms. Xin has been a certified public accountant of the PRC since
February 1996 and a member of the CPA Australia since January
2010.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Shi Shushan

Mr. Shi, aged 49, was appointed as our chief executive officer on
14 February 2022, he has over 25 years of experience in sales
and marketing, customer relations, property development,
property management and business operations. Since Mr.Shi
joined CCRE in February 2004, he has served various managerial
positions in the CCRE Group. Between February 2004 and
November 2004, Mr. Shi served as a manager of demand survey
department of the customer relations centre of the CCRE Group.
Between December 2004 and May 2005, Mr. Shi served as a
manager of the management department of East and South
Henan region. Between June 2005 and February 2009, Mr. Shi
served as the general manager of Zhumadian regional office.
Between March 2009 and January 2010, Mr. Shi served as the
executive vice president of the CCRE Group and the general
manager of product management centre. Since February 2010,
Mr. Shi served as the vice president of the CCRE Group and the
general manager of various regional head offices such as
Luoyang region and western region. Through these positions, Mr.
Shi acquired substantial experience and expertise in the real
estate industry and demonstrated strong leadership skill, which
will be highly relevant to his tenure as chief executive officer of
the Group. Prior to this, Mr. Shi spent nearly a decade serving as
an engineer in a hydraulic equipment company in Zhengzhou. He
obtained his bachelor’s degree in welding technology and
equipment from Zhengzhou University of Technology in June
1996 and his master’s degree in business administration from
Zhengzhou University in June 2004.

Mr. Wang Qian
For the details, please refer to the above paragraph headed
“Executive Directors”.
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The Board presents the annual report with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of property
management and value-added services, lifestyle services and
commercial property management and consultation services. An
analysis of the Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December
2021 by principal activities is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Discussion and analysis of the business review required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group and an indication of likely future development in the
Group'’s business, can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement”
set out on pages 29 to 37 and the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” set out on pages from 39 to 57 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. The Group
operates its business in compliance with applicable
environmental protection laws and regulations and has
implemented relevant environmental protection measures in
compliance with the required standards under applicable PRC
laws and regulations. Further details of the Group's
environmental policies and performance will be disclosed in the
environmental, social and governance report of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2021 to be published in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied in all material aspects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group. During the year ended 31 December
2021, there was no material breach of, or non-compliance, with
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

The Group fully understands that employees, customers and
suppliers are the key to our sustainable and stable development.
We are committed to establishing a close relationship with our
employees, enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and
providing high-quality products and services to our customers so
as to ensure the Group's sustainable development.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Management considers there to be three operating segments
under the requirements of HKFRS 8.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the
state of the Group’s affairs as at the date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 137 to 143 of this annual report.

RESULT AND DIVIDENDS

Profit attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of
RMB619,559,000 (2020: RMB426,587,000) have been transferred
to reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Board resolved to recommend a final dividend of HK$33.7
cents (equivalent to RMB27.3 cents) per share for the year ended
31 December 2021 (for the year ended 31 December 2020:
HK$18.0 cents) to be paid out of the Company’s share premium
account.

HK$14.5 cents per share (for the six months ended 30 June 2020:
HK$6.6 cents) was distributed as interim dividend for the six
months ended 30 June 2021.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS
For the purposes of determining shareholders’ eligibility to attend
and vote at the 2021 AGM, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, 4 May 2022 to
Tuesday, 10 May 2022 (both days inclusive), during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. All properly completed
share transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan chai, Hong Kong, no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 3 May 2022, for registration.
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For the purposes of determining the entitlement of the
shareholders to the proposed final Dividend, the register of
members of the Company will be closed on Monday, 16 May
2022, which no transfer of shares will be registered. All properly
completed share transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan chai, Hong Kong, no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 13 May 2022, for registration.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated
assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 272 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
Sstatements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option schemes and share award scheme as
set out below, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by
the Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out
in note 31 to the financial statements and in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity, respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company'’s distributable reserves
were RMB1,651.0 million.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 14.9%
of the Group’s total purchases and purchases from the largest
supplier amounted to approximately 8.3% of the Group’s total
purchases. Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted
for approximately 34.0% of the Group’s total turnover and sales
to the largest customer amounted to approximately 28.3% of the
Group's total turnover.

Save as disclosed in note 29 to the financial statements, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company or any Shareholder owning more than
5% of the Company’s share capital or their respective associates,
had any interest in the Group's five largest customers or five
largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The Directors in office during the year ended 31 December 2021
and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jun (Chairman)

Mr. Cai Bin (resigned on 26 March 2021)

Mr. Wang Qian (appointed on 26 March 2021)

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Wu Lam Li
Ms. Min Huidong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Leong Chong

Ms. Luo Laura Ying

Ms. Xin Zhu

Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, at every
annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
In accordance with Article 84(1) and 84(2) of the Articles of
Association, Ms. Wu Lam Li, Mr. Leong Chong and Ms. Luo Laura
Ying, therefore, will retire from their offices at the AGM, and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based
on such information, the Company still considers the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 80 to 87
of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date or their date of appointment,
which may be terminated by not less than three months' notice
in writing served by either party on the other.

Each of our non-executive Directors and our independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date, which may be terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

None of our Directors has any existing or proposed service
contracts with any member of our Group (excluding contracts
expiring or determinable by the employer within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation)).

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save for the relevant transactions as disclosed in note 33 to the
financial statements or the connected transactions described in
this report, none of the Directors had a significant beneficial
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the year ended 31 December 2021, nor any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance has been
entered into during the year ended 31 December 2021 between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors
or any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) was considered to be interested in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

All Directors are entitled to a fee as approved by the Board with
reference to the prevailing market conditions. Executive Directors
are entitled to fees, salaries, housing allowances, other
allowances, benefits in kind (including contribution to the pension
scheme on behalf of our Directors) or discretionary bonuses,
which are determined by the Board having regard to the Group's
performance and the prevailing market conditions and approved
by the remuneration committee of the Company. Details of
Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of five highest paid
individuals of the Company are set out in notes 33 and 10 to the
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
directors (the “Directors”) and chief executives of the Company
in the shares (the “Shares”), underlying Shares and debentures
(the "Debentures”) of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")) required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or
pursuant to the Model Code in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules,
were as follows or as disclosed under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” below:

(a) Long positions in the Shares and underlying
Shares of the Company

EERFETHRASRKRG - HEAR
REESFPRIESRIKE

MR2021F12A31H - ARalEF((EF)) R=E
ZITRABRARRSKEBBEZE(TERELR
BEEGI([FH RS G ])EXVER) 2 & m (TR
0 BERNERES(EF]) R HEEREE S
R E GG EI2GEBELRAABIERETE
MEEMARIBEES KREEAIEXVIET R
FE8H E B IE LR BN E+ R 2 R EFRIZA
WM& AR DT B A A2 FOA R a0 (S
T [ERiERT 8 — &5 ER) -

(@ REQXFAROGEMEEROGHPHTR

Name of Director or Capacity and

Number of share

Approximate
percentage of the
interest in the

Number of Company’s issued

chief executive nature of interest options held" Shares held share capital?
L R NN
ERTRAMHN

ESQTETHAEBHE SORERME FrisBRERE " FriEROEE BRBEDL?

Mr. Wang Jun Interest in a controlled - 45,398,000 3.58%

corporation

FREE X rEEs

Ms. Min Huidong Beneficial owner 2,520,000 3,471,000 0.47%

MERZL ERBEAA

Ms. Wu Lam Li Interest of a spouse - 848,092,944 66.83%

Foht [ £

Mr. Wang Qian? Beneficial owner 9,338,000 - 0.74%

FEELES ERERA

Notes: Hat

1. Such interest in the Shares is held pursuant to the share options 1. HEBROERZTIREE N AR SRR

granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme or the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme (both as defined below), the details of
which are disclosed on pages 96 to 102 of this annual report.

2. The approximate percentage of the interest in the Company's
issued share capital is based on a total of 1,268,966,000 Shares
of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2021.

3. Such share options have been granted pending acceptance by
Mr. Wang Qian.
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(b) Long position in the shares of our associated
corporation
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(b) REEEEROTHNEE

Percentage of
interests in the
associated

Class and corporation as at

Name of associated = Nature of number of 31 December

Name of Director corporation interest securities held 2020

720205

12A31H

P& 585 REE LB

EEME A EE AR ERtE 53 - §C| BB

Ms. Wu Lam Li Enjoy Start Limited Interest of a spouse 1 ordinary share 100%
ESyotun BlteBR AR P82 1R E AR

Save as disclosed above or under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” below, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors, chief executives of the Company or their associates
had any interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which the Directors and
chief executives were deemed or taken to have under the
provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be and are
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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96

Pre-IPO share option scheme

The pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”) was conditionally adopted by the
Shareholders on 29 April 2020.

Purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentive or reward eligible participants for their
past and continuing contribution to the Group.

Participants of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
Eligible participants include any director, employee,
customer, supplier, agent, partner, consultant, shareholder
or contractor (or trustees or companies beneficially owned
by any of the above), in each case of the Group or an
associate company in which the Group is a shareholder.

Maximum number of Shares

The Company granted two batches of share options to
subscribe for 45,000,000 shares pursuant to the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme (the "Pre-IPO Share Options”) on 3
January 2019 and 10 January 2019. No further Pre-IPO
Share Options will be granted. As at 31 December 2021, the
Pre-IPO Share Options to subscribe for 15,881,000 Shares
(representing approximately 1.25% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this report)
remained outstanding.

Limit for each participant

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to any individual
grantee shall not exceed 1.0% of the total issued Shares
immediately upon its listing (without taking into account
any Shares which may be allotted and issued upon the
exercise of the Pre-IPO Share Options and the Post-IPO
Share Options), unless approved by the shareholders of the
Company.
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Option period and vesting

The Pre-IPO Share Options may be exercised according to
the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme in whole or
in part by the grantee after vesting but before the expiry of
five years after the vesting date. Any option which remains
unexercised shall lapse upon the expiry of such option
period.

The Pre-IPO Share Options will be vested in 3 tranches as
follows, provided that the annual performance appraisal
target set by the Group for the relevant financial year is
satisfied:

o 30% of the total number of the options will be vested
six months immediately following the Listing Date;

° 30% of the total number of the options will be vested
12 months immediately following the Listing Date;
and

° 40% of the total number of the options will be vested
24 months immediately following the Listing Date.

Payment on acceptance of offer and exercise price
Each grantee was required to pay HK$1 as consideration
for the acceptance of the grant of the Pre-IPO Share
Options. The exercise price is HK$0.62 per Share, which
was determined by the Board.

Remaining life of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme took effect upon the
listing of the Company and shall remain in full force and
effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise
of any options granted prior thereto.

For details, please see the prospectus of the Company
dated 5 May 2020.
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Movement of the Pre-IPO Share Options for the year ended
31 December 2021 was as follows:

NEBE2021FE12A3NBIEFEE  §XAH
BERBREZSEHNOT

Exercise Asat  Granted Exercised Forfeited As at
Name or category price 1 January during during during 31 December
of participants Date of grant  per share 2021  theyear theyear  the year 2021
R2021E R2021%
SREREIER RERH SRTEE 1818 SrBE FATE  FrRK 128318
Directors
Bz
Min Huidong 3 January 2019 HK$0.62 4,500,000 - (2,700,000) - 1,800,000
HER 20191438 0.62787T
10 January 2019 HK$0.62 1,800,000 - (1,080,000) - 720,000
2019F1H 108 06287
CaiBin 3 January 2019 HK$0.62 4,950,000 - (2,970,000) - 1,980,000
(resigned on 26 March 2021)
B (R202143 26 A7) 2019F1A38 0628
Others
Hits
Senior management and 3 January 2019 HK$0.62 19,845,000 - (11,043,0000  (1,467,000) 7,335,000
other employees of the Group
FEERAERERAMES 2019F1838 0628
10 January 2019 HK$0.62 11,115,000 - (5,926,000 (1,143,000) 4,046,000
2019F 18108 06287
42,210,000 - (23719,000) (2,610,000 15,881,000
Notes: BiaE -

1. No share options under the Pre-IPO Share Options Scheme were
lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

2. The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately

before the date on which the option were exercised was
HK$7.30.
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(b)

Post-IPO share option scheme

The post-IPO share option scheme (the “Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme”) was conditionally adopted by the
Shareholders in compliance with Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules on 29 April 2020.

Purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
motivate eligible persons to optimise their future
contributions to the Group and/or to reward them for their
past contributions, to attract and retain or otherwise
maintain on- going relationships with the eligible persons
who are significant to and/or whose contributions are or
will be beneficial to the performance, growth or success of
the Group, and additionally in the case of Executives, to
enable the Group to attract and retain individuals with
experience and ability and/or to reward them for their past
contributions.

Participants of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
Eligible participants include any of the following persons
that are invited at the Board's sole discretion: any director
or proposed director (including an independent non-
executive director) of any member of the Group, any
executive director of, manager of, or other employee
holding an executive, managerial, supervisory or similar
position in, any member of the Group (an “Employee”), any
proposed Employee, any full-time or part-time Employee,
or a person for the time being seconded to work full-time
or part-time for any member of the Group, a consultant,
business or joint venture partner, franchisee, contractor,
agent or representative of any member of the Group, a
person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support or any advisory, consultancy,
professional or other services to any member of the Group,
or an associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of any
of the foregoing persons.

(b)
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Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total number of Shares in issue as of the Listing
Date, being 120,000,000 Shares (the “Scheme Mandate
Limit"). Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit. The
Scheme Mandate Limit may be refreshed with the approval
of the Shareholders in general meeting. At any time, the
maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and not yet
exercised under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of our Company to the
eligible persons must not exceed 30% of the total number
of Shares in issue from time to time.

Limit for each participant

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to any one eligible
participant (including exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in
issue from time to time.

Each grant of options to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Group or any of their
respective close associates under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall be approved by the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company (excluding the
independent non-executive Director who is the proposed
grantee of the option). Where any grant of options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Group or any of their respective close
associates would result in the securities issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options already granted and
which may be granted (including options exercised,
canceled and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant: (a)
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue;
and (b) having an aggregate value, based on the closing
price of the Shares at the date of each grant, in excess of
HK$5 million, such further grant of options must be
approved by the Shareholders.
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Option period

The option period shall be determined by the Board. Any
option which remains unexercised shall lapse upon the
expiry of the option period. An option shall be subject to
such terms and conditions (if any) as may be determined
by the Board and specified in the offer of the option,
including any vesting schedule and/or conditions, any
minimum period for which any option must be held before
it can be exercised and/or any performance target which
need to be achieved by an option-holder before the option
can be exercised.

Payment on acceptance of offer and exercise price
The subscription price in respect of any particular option
shall be such price as our Board may in its absolute
discretion determine at the time of grant of the relevant
option (and shall be stated in the letter containing the offer
of the grant of the option) but the subscription price shall
not be less than whichever is the highest of:

() the nominal value of Share;

(i) the closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date;
and

(i) the average of the closing prices of Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the
five business days immediately preceding the offer
date.

Remaining life of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing on the
Listing Date, after which period no further options will be
granted but the provisions of the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme shall remain in full force and effect to the extent
necessary to give effect to the exercise of any options
granted prior thereto which are at that time or become
thereafter capable of exercise under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme, or otherwise to the extent as may be
required in accordance with the provisions of the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme

For details, please see the prospectus of the Company
dated 5 May 2020.
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On 12 July 2021, the Company granted Post-IPO Share
Options to eligible participants to subscribe for an
aggregate of up to 11,738,000 Shares. As at 31 December
2021, the Post-IPO Share Options to subscribe for
92,381,000 Shares (representing approximately 7.28% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
this report) remained outstanding. The closing price of the
share immediately before the date of the grant was
HK$6.92.

Movement of the Post-IPO Share Options for the year
ended 31 December 2021 was as follows:

R2021F7 A128 » XARAEERLHE
RTERAFREEERERE UREAGG
11,738,000 & J 17 - B Z= 2021124318 -
FREE 92,381,000 f% A 10 (4915 A 5 5 B BA AN
NEIEEITIRARNT728%) M E XN AFHEE
BB RITE - RORBEERH BN
WHBA692ETT -

REZE2021F12A31BIEFE X AH
BEBERE EEHNT

Exercise Asat  Granted Exercised Forfeited As at
Name or category price  1January during during during 31 December
of participants Date of grant  per share 2021  theyear  theyear  the year 2021
R2021E R2021%
SREKEZIER REBH BRITHEE 1818 ERBE  FATE  FRRY 12A318
Directors
=
Wang Qian 12 July 2021 HK$7.18 - 9,338,000 - - 9,338,000
% 2021F7R128 718
Others
Hit
Senior management and 12 July 2021 HK$7.18 - 2,400,000 - - 2,400,000
other employees of the Group
TEESAEREREMES 2021F7A128  718%%T
11,738,000 - - 11,738,000
Note: BiEE

The vesting period of such Post-IPO Share Options is 5 years. Vesting is
conditional upon achievement of certain performance targets by the
Company as set out in the respective offer letters. The Post-IPO share
options have been granted pending acceptance by the participants .

Additional information in relation to the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is set out in note 22 to the financial
statements of this annual report.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted its share award scheme on 12 July 2021.
The Share Award Scheme does not constitute a share option
scheme under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and is a
discretionary scheme of the Company. No shareholders’ approval
was required to adopt the Share Award Scheme. No award
shares have been issued yet. Please see the announcement of
the Company dated 12 July 2021 for details.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY
So far as is known to any Directors or chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 December 2021, other than the interests and
short positions of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares or Debentures” and “Share Option Scheme”
above, the following persons had interests or short positions in
the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
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TERARR (9 R B AR R (EH R E KM BXV I
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B A Q RIRIECE S R A EEH) £ 336 157817
BBt rigmgone

Long positions in the Shares REHPHER
Approximate
percentage of
the interest in
the Company’s
Number of issued share
Name of Shareholder Capacity and nature of interest Shares held capital’
EREERAT
S2RITREN
IR A SR RERMEE FrEROE AR BABED
Mr. Wu Po Sum Interest in a controlled corporation 848,092,9442 66.83%
HHEAREE A EER
Enjoy Start Limited Beneficial owner 848,092,9442 66.83%
BlEBIRAR Ema A
Ms. Wu Lam Li Interest of a spouse 848,092,9443 66.83%
P+ BBt
Gaoling Fund, L.P. Beneficial owner 84,857,000 6.69%
Ema A
Hillhouse Capital Advisors, Ltd. Interest in a controlled corporation 84,867,000 6.69%

R EE R
Notes:

1. The approximate percentage of the interest in the Company’s issued
share capital is based on a total of 1,268,966,000 Shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2021.

2. Mr. Wu Po Sum holds 100% of the issued share capital of Enjoy Start
Limited and is deemed to be interested in the 848,092,944 Shares held
by Enjoy Start Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

3. Ms. Wu Lam Li is the spouse of Mr. Wu Po Sum and is therefore
deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares that Mr. Wu Po
Sum is interested in under the SFO.

1. BaRIG AR EC BITRANBNE D RN 2021 F
12 A31 BARR B 21T 8 51,268,966,000 B &+
=)

2. HERCERSBRAIRARARZH]E BITRA - 1
RBECGEF RIS EA)WE ARG RIS ER AR
5 848,092,944 B O 2% -

3. LT AMERCENRE Bt REESR
HERG) - ML TR AR RERTERGER
RIABRIER B AR (D P A Ak as o
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4. Hillhouse Capital Advisors, Ltd. (“Hillhouse Capital”) is the sole
investment manager and general partner of Gaoling Fund, L.P. Hillhouse
Capital is deemed to be interested in the 84,857,000 Shares held by
Gaoling Fund, L.P.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, there was no
other person (other than the Directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office
or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has subscribed
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance coverage
for the Directors and officers of the Group.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has entered
into the following continuing connected transactions:

Provision of the real estate agency services by the
Group to CCRE

On 24 June 2019, the Company entered into the 2019 real estate
agency services framework agreement with CCRE, pursuant to
which the Company shall provide real estate agency services in
respect of the first-hand property sales as well as preparation
services (including but not limited to consultation services and
event organisation services) to CCRE. Due to the adjustment of
the annual cap under the 2019 real estate agency services
framework agreement, on 30 October 2020, the Company
entered into the 2020 real estate agency services framework
agreement with CCRE in place of the 2019 real estate agency
services framework agreement. The service fees were charged
as commission based on contracted sales amount of the CCRE's
properties, depending on the overall property market
environment, project location, difficulties of marketing and other
factors.
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The service fees to be charged for the real estate agency services
are determined after arm'’s length negotiations with reference to
the (i) the agency fees charged as commission and incentives
based on contracted sales amount of CCRE Group's properties,
depending on the overall property market environment, project
location, difficulties of marketing, scope of services and other
factors; and (ii) the rate generally offered by the Group to
independent third parties in respect of comparable agency
services. With respect to each project, the relevant members and
associates of CCRE and the Group will further enter into individual
separate agreement that prescribes the specific terms and
conditions of each project.

The annual caps for the real estate agency services framework
agreement for the years ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and
2022 are RMB440 million, RMB450 million and RMB465 million
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the real estate agency services
framework agreement amounted to approximately RMB407.1
million.

For details, please see the circular of the Company dated 23
November 2020.

Provision of the tourism services by the Group to CCRE
On 30 January 2019, the Company entered into the tourism
services framework agreement with CCRE to renew the 2018
tourism services framework agreement, pursuant to which the
Company shall provide the tourism services to CCRE for the
promotion of the CCRE’s business. As the tourism services
framework agreement was due to expire on 31 December 2021,
the Company entered into the renewed tourism services
framework agreement with CCRE on 29 October 2021, which will
take effect on 1 January 2022, to extend the term to 31 December
2024.
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The fees payable by the CCRE Group and its associates to the
Group in respect of the tourism services shall be determined with
reference to (i) the degree of customisation of the tourism
services; (i) the actual cost involved (including but not limited to
costs of transportation, accommodation, catering, entrance
tickets and other travel-related expenditures); and (iii) prevailing
market prices for comparable projects and comparable services.
A cost-plus pricing is used with a mark-up percentage from 8% to
30% after taking into account taxes.

The annual cap of the framework agreement on tourism services
for the years ending 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024 are
RMB50 million, RMB70 million, and RMB100 million respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the tourism services framework
agreement amounted to approximately RMB30.6 million.

For details, please see the announcements of the Company
dated 29 October 2021 and 9 November 2021.

Provision of the commercial property management
services by the Group to CCRE

On 26 June 2019, the Company entered into the commercial
property management service framework agreement with CCRE,
pursuant to which the Company will provide operation
management and consulting services to the CCRE’s commercial
assets, including but not limited to hotel, office building, cultural
tourism complex, cultural tourism and other commercial projects.
Due to the expansion of scope of management services, the
original annual cap will be insufficient for 2021. On 13 May 2021,
the Company and CCRE entered into the supplemental
commercial property management services framework
agreement to include and amend certain terms of the
commercial property management services framework
agreement. As the commercial property management services
framework agreement was due to expire on 31 December 2021,
the Company has entered into the renewed commercial property
management services framework agreement with CCRE on 29
October 2021, which will take effect on 1 January 2022, to extend
the term to 31 December 2024.
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Fees payable by the CCRE Group and its associates to the Group
in respect of hotels shall comprise of (i) basic fee; (i) service fee;
(iii) booking fee; (iv) incentive payment; and (v) consultation fee,
calculated in the following manner:

() Basic fee: depending on the nature of the hotel projects
(self-run hotel projects/entrusted hotel projects), basic fee
shall be determined with reference to the total operation
income in respect of self-run hotel projects or charged at a
fixed rate per each hotel room in respect of entrusted hotel
projects. The standard charge for self-run hotel projects is
2% of the total operation income of such self-run hotel,
while the charge for entrusted hotel projects is RMB5,000
per hotel room per year.

(i)  Service fee: 1% of the total operation income for self-run
hotel projects.

(i)  Booking fee: 1% of total revenue per available room for
self-run hotel projects.

(iv) Incentive payment: (a) as a percentage (50%-60%) of profit
increase/loss reduction with reference to the excess over
the targeted net operating profit for hotel operations or (b)
as a percentage (4%-6%) of monthly revenue for spa
operation.

(v)  Consultation fee: determined with reference to the nature
and scope of the consultation services and at
approximately RMB2,500,000 per project.

Fees payable by the CCRE Group and its associates to the Group
in respect of cultural tourism complexes shall comprise of (i)
opening preparation fee, (i) basic management service fee, (iii)
incentive management service fee, and (iv) advisory consultation
service fee, calculated in the following manner:

() Opening preparation fee: at a fixed rate of RMB20,000,000
per project;

(i) Basic management service fee: at 9% of the revenue of a
project;

(i) Incentive management service fee: at 50% of net operating
profit in excess of the budget; and
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(iv) Consultation service fee: depending on the project
progress, the consultation service fee will be determined
with reference to the nature and scope of the consultation
services and at a fixed rate of RMB1,000,000 to
RMB1,500,000 per project.

Fees payable by the CCRE Group and its associates to the Group
in respect of other commercial properties (excluding hotels and
cultural tourism complexes) shall comprise of (i) basic
management service fee, (i) business solicitation commission, (iii)
incentive management service fee and (iv) opening incentive,
calculated in the following manner:

() Basic management service fee: the service fee will be
determined with reference to the project location, expected
operation and management cost, market price and other
factors. It will be based on the operational commercial
building area and charged monthly at a fixed basic
management service fee. Depending on the project
progress (preparation stage or operation period), the price
ranges from RMB90,000 to RMB500,000 per month.

(i) Business solicitation commission: 1.5 times of the monthly
standard rent applicable to the associated brand.

(i) Incentive management service fee: during the operation
period, the fee will be 40% of net operating profit over the
budget; or 5% to 10% of operation income plus 10% of
profit.

(iv)  Opening incentive: approximately RMB13.1 per square
meter in prefecture (county)-level cities, and approximately
RMB19.65 per square meter in provincial capitals

The annual caps for the renewed commercial property
management services framework agreement for the years ending
31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024 are RMB105 million, RMB115
million, and RMB120 million respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the renewed commercial property
management service framework agreement amounted to
approximately RMB70.2 million.

For details, please see the announcements of the Company
dated 13 May 2021, 29 October 2021 and 9 November 2021.
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Provision of the property consultation and
management services by the Group to CCRE

On 31 January 2019, the Company entered into a property
consulting and management services framework agreement with
CCRE. On 28 October 2019, due to the adjustment of the annual
cap, the Company and CCRE renewed the property consulting
and management services framework agreement to replace and
terminate the previously concluded property consulting and
management services framework agreement. As the property
consultation and management services framework agreement
was due to expire on 31 December 2021, the Company entered
into the renewed agreement on 11 November 2021 to extend the
term to 31 December 2024. Pursuant to these agreements, the
Company will provide property consulting and management
services to CCRE in accordance with the needs of the CCRE's
residential and commercial property projects in Henan Province,
PRC. The services and fees to be charged by the Group include:

(@) consultation services (including pre-delivery
consultancy services and early stage initiation
services): determined with reference to the nature and
size of the property and the scope of the consultation
services. The price ranges between RMB1 to RMB8 per
sg.m..

(b) Marketing centre management services: charged
based on the operating costs (including staff salaries, staff
benefits, administration and management costs), the
applicable tax of approximately 6.72% related to the
marketing centre management services, plus a mark-up of
10% to 20% depending on factors including the nature, type
and location of the property projects, the location and size
of the marketing centre and the nature, schedule and
complexity of the marketing activities.
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(c) Vacant properties management services: charged in
accordance with the management fee standard for
residential property or parking lot in the district where the
vacant property is located. The price ranges between
RMBO.6 to RMB20 per month per sg.m..

(d) Self-owned properties management services:
determined with reference to the expected costs and
prevailing market prices for comparable services. The price
ranges between RMBO0.6 to RMB20 per month per sg.m..

(e) Properties pre-delivery inspection services:
determined with reference to the size of the property,
expected costs and prevailing market prices for comparable
services. The price ranges between RMB6 to RMB8 per
sg.m..

The fees to be charged by the Group for provision of such
services are determined on arm’s length basis with reference to
the (i) nature, category and location of the properties; (ii) gross
floor area of the properties; (iii) anticipated operation costs,
including primarily staff costs and administration costs; and (iv)
prevailing market prices for comparable services. With respect to
each project, the relevant members and associates of CCRE and
the Group will further enter into individual separate agreement
that prescribes the specific terms and conditions of each project.

The annual caps for the renewed consulting and management
services framework agreement for the years ending 31
December 2022, 2023 and 2024 are RMB300 million, RMB375
million and RMB480 million, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the renewed consulting and
management services framework agreement amounted to
approximately RMB239.1 million.

For details, please see the circular of the Company dated 9
December 2021.
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Provision of the membership maintenance and
management services by the Group to CCRE

On 29 March 2019, the Company entered into a membership
maintenance and management services framework agreement
with CCRE. On 30 October 2020, due to the adjustment of the
annual cap, the Company and CCRE renewed the membership
maintenance and management services framework agreement
to replace and terminate the previously concluded membership
maintenance and management services framework agreement.
Pursuant to which, the Company will provide membership
maintenance and management services to CCRE. Membership
maintenance and management services are provided to residents
of residential property projects developed and to be developed
by CCRE, who are or will become members of the community.
Membership maintenance and management services include
member normal services and large-scale event planning and
organisation services.

As under the membership maintenance and management
services framework agreement, the fees to be charged for the
membership maintenance and management services shall be
determined based on arm’s length negotiations and taking into
account the anticipated operational costs including labour costs
with reference to the fees for similar services and similar type of
projects in the market. In terms of the daily operation and
management services for members, the service fee is RMB4,500
per person per year. In terms of the events organisation and
planning for the members of the Central China Consumers Club,
the service fee ranges from approximately RMB1 million to RMB4
million per event. With respect to each event, the relevant
members and associates of CCRE and members of the Group will
further enter into individual separate agreement that prescribes
the specific terms and conditions of each event, including the
service scope and service fee applicable to the particular event.

The annual caps for the community operation management
services for the years ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022
are RMB100 million, RMB155 million and RMB230 million,
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the community operation
management service framework agreement amounted to
approximately RMB68.5 million.

For details, please see the circular of the Company dated 23
November 2020.
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Provision of the green house management services by
the Group to CCRE

On 29 March 2019, the Company entered into the green house
management services framework agreement with CCRE. On 28
October 2019, due to the adjustment of service scope and annual
cap, the Company and CCRE renewed the green house
management services framework agreement to replace and
terminate the previous green house management services
framework agreement. Given the additional green house
management services required by CCRE, the original annual caps
under the framework agreement would be insufficient for 2021.
Further, the greenhouse management services framework
agreement was due to expire on 31 December 2021. On 9
November 2021, the Company and CCRE entered into the
supplemental green house management services framework
agreement to increase the relevant annual cap, add additional
services, and extend the term to 31 December 2023. Pursuant to
these agreements, the Company will provide the following
services:

(@) Project promotion, brand promotion and operation
management services: provision of operation
management services such as business solicitation, brand
promotion, event planning for the agricultural projects.

(b) Technical support services to agricultural facility
projects: provision of technical management services
throughout the whole process of research and
development, introduction and promotion of agricultural
facility projects (such as intelligent linkage greenhouses,
plant factories) under the agricultural projects.

(c)  Agricultural product sales management: management
and sales of agricultural products including flowers,
seedling and vegetables.

(d)  Agricultural product planting service: daily operation
and planting of agricultural products and relevant
consultation services;.
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(e) Foodcourt operation and management services:
Provision of operation and management services for
Cuisine Henan Foodcourts (3 % X & =), including the
business solicitation, daily operation, marketing planning
and other services for some stores operated by Cuisine
Henan Foodcourts ((Z¥ AR ).

()  Planning and consultation services: charged at
RMB1,500 per mu.

(8 Green house preparation services: depending on the
total construction investment, charged at (i) 10% of the
total construction investment if it is less than or equals to
RMB20 million; (i) 7% of the total construction investment if
it is greater than RMB20 million but less than or equals to
RMB50 million; or (iii) 4% of the total construction
investment if it is greater than RMB50 million.

(h)  Foodcourt preparation services: charged at RMB500
per sg.m..

The above service fees were determined on arm’s length basis
and with reference to (i) project management scale and size of
plantation area; (ii) floor area of Cuisine Henan Foodcourts (77 &
AR E); (iii) service scope including types of planting services; (iv)
anticipated operation and management costs; (v) estimated sales
amount of the agricultural products; and (vi) operation revenue
per month for Cuisine Henan Foodcourts (A @ A & ). With
respect to each project, the relevant members and associates of
CCRE and our Group will further enter into individual separate
agreement that prescribes the specific terms and conditions of
each project.

In addition, the above service fees were determined by the
parties after arm’s length negotiations and on normal commercial
terms with reference to the prevailing market rates for the
relevant services and in line with market practice. Such rates are
no less favorable than those charged by the Group for
comparable services provided to independent third parties.

The revised annual caps for the supplemental greenhouse
management services framework agreement for the years ending
31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023 are RMB75.0 million, RMB%0.0
million and RMB95.0 million, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the supplemental green house
management service framework agreement amounted to
approximately RMB69.8 million.

For details, please see the announcement of the Company dated
9 November 2021.

Provision of the intelligent technology services by the
Group to CCRE

On 29 March 2019, the Company entered into the intelligent
technology service framework agreement with CCRE. On 30
October 2020, due to the adjustment of the annual cap, the
Company and CCRE renewed the intelligent technology service
framework agreement to replace and terminate the previously
concluded intelligent technology service framework agreement.
Further, in view of the growth in demand for the Group's services
under the intelligent technology services framework agreement
as a result of the growth in business of the CCRE Group and its
associates, the Company and CCRE entered into the
supplemental intelligent technology services framework
agreement to increase the annual caps and extend the term to
31 December 2023. Pursuant to these agreements, the Company
will provide intelligent technology products and related services
to CCRE. The services and fees to be changed by the Group
include:

(@) Engineering installation services for intelligent
products and sales service for products: determined
with reference to the equipment materials, installation
costs, enterprise management fees, profit and tax.
Depending on the configuration standard of the specific
project, the integrated average unit price ranges between
RMB30 to RMB100 per sg.m..

(b) Software development services: depending on the
project content and the development content (such as with
reference to the difficulty and complexity of the relevant
software development, technical specifics of a project and
items developed, the implementation schedule/timetable,
the number of developer staff required, etc.), the price
ranges between RMB20,000 to RMB4,000,000 per project.

114

Central China New Life Limited / 2021 Annual Report

HE2021F12A3MBIEFE > KREERE®T
MHEARS EIE B B E RGIEZR 3 WA R
EHRBAREOSHETT -

HERNATHEA2021F 11 AOBMAE -

FEEORFEEERHERCNRRE

MR2019F3H298 « RAG| BZEMER] L E 8
{ERHEIRFEIER 3% » 1 20204F 10 A30 8 » MR
ABRFE LR ARREZEMESITE R
FIRFSIER R - AR AR IE R ATRT S 25 B
LR AR ISIE R 5% o ULON - ERAEEEHeL
RHERISIEZRGZ THOREHF KAREESE
)Sz,ﬁt BEENRIEBERMER  ARREEEN
EF VRSB RBIERBZ - LIEME
BRI ERBARE2023F12A8310 - IS
Wi ARAIMBEENERMEECRRER R
FAREARTS - H AR BB T RIS A R4S B YA
B

[V

@ EBRCERTRZERBREDHEES
SEREIR - RERA - CEERE - F
MEBBEE - ATHTERHEERL
GAFHEENFETHRARKOTE
AEREE1007T ©

(b) BAFRKRE  RTEBEATRFEZERE(H
M2ERERMFHENREMEMIZEE - 1R
B REMZEYHORITAE - Bittsl
AR BERABABAHRSE) BENTE
78 B A K #20,0007T % A E#4,000,0007T ©



(c) Consultation services: depending on the GFA and nature
of the project, the unit price for residential consultation
services ranges between RMB2 to RMB3 per sg.m., and the
unit price for office consultation services ranges between
RMB2.5 to RMB3.5 per sg.m..

The fees to be charged by the Group for provision of the
intelligent technology services shall be determined on arm’s
length basis with reference to (i) prices of the intelligent
technology products; (i) anticipated operation costs taking into
account factors including, among others, equipment materials,
installation costs, enterprise management fees; (iii) specific
software requirement; (iv) GFA and nature of the property
projects; and (v) prevailing market prices for comparable services.
The fees are charged at fixed lump-sum fees taking into account
the above factors, which are payable by instalments with
reference to stage of completion of the works specified under
each agreement. With respect to each project, the relevant
members and associates of CCRE and members of the Group will
further enter into individual separate agreement that prescribes
the specific terms and conditions of each project, including the
service scope and service fee applicable to the particular
property project.

The annual caps for the supplemental intelligent technology
service framework agreement for the years ending 31 December
2021, 2022 and 2023 are RMB500 million, RMB700 million and
RMB1,000 million, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the supplemental framework
agreement for intelligent technology services amounted to
approximately RMB439.9 million.

For details, please see the circular of the Company dated 9
December 2021.
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Provision of the marketing and service platform
construction services by the Group to CCRE

On 29 June 2020, the Company entered into the marketing and
service platform construction services framework agreement
with CCRE, pursuant to which the Company agreed to provide,
and CCRE agreed to procure the marketing and service platform
construction services relating to sales and marketing activities
such as online customer services, customer engagement, house
viewing, and house purchase through the “Jianye+" platform of
the Group. As the term of the 2020 marketing and service
platform construction services framework agreement has
expired, the Company entered into the 2021 marketing and
service platform construction services framework agreement
with CCRE to renew the 2020 marketing and service platform
construction services framework agreement on 30 June 2021
with a term up to 31 December 2021.

The development fee of the software system template of each
platform is based on the construction workload, development
period, platform requirements, features, development personnel
required, and the prevailing market price of similar services. The
development fee of each platform ranges between RMB1,000,000
and RMB2,500,000. Such price range is determined with
reference to a reasonable cost plus a reasonable profit margin
and agreed by the parties on arm length’s negotiation in order to
ensure that such price range is fair and reasonable and no less
favourable than those charged by the Company to independent
third parties.

The renewed annual caps for the marketing and service platform
construction services for the year ending 31 December 2021 is
RMB30 million.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the renewed marketing and
service platform construction services framework agreement
amounted to approximately RMB29.0 million.

For details, please see the announcement of the Company dated
30 June 2021.
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Provision of the procurement services by the Group to
CCRE

On 30 October 2020, the Company entered into the procurement
services framework agreement with CCRE, pursuant to which the
Company agreed to provide procurement services to CCRE in
respect of gift packs for the property purchasers of the CCRE as
part of their marketing. Such gift packs comprise goods and/or
services offered by the Independent Third Parties, such as
electrical appliances and household commodities as well as
services offered by the CCRE Group and its associates, such as
cash vouchers for hotels, shopping malls, cultural tourism
complexes and Cuisine Henan Foodcourts (# ¥ A& &) owned
by the CCRE Group and its associates. As a result of the growth
in business of the Company, the original annual cap under the
framework agreement would be insufficient for 2021. On 9
November 2021, the Company and CCRE entered into the
supplemental procurement services framework agreement to
amend such annual cap.

The Group will provide procurement services to the CCRE Group
and its associates in respect of gift packs for their property
purchasers as part of their marketing strategy. The payment
procedures for the provision of the procurement services for
specific property projects shall be as follows:

(@ the CCRE Group and its associates pay to the Group the
total market value in RMB of all the gift packs in respect of
the relevant property projects (the “"Procurement by the
CCRE Group and its associates”);

(b)  the Group shall pay to the Independent Third Parties the
costs of purchase, with certain bulk purchase discount, in
respect of the goods and/or services offered by such
Independent Third Parties which will be included in the gift
packs for the property purchasers of such property project,
such as electrical appliances, household commodities and
any other goods and/or services as set out in the individual
agreement; and
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(c) in situations where the individual agreement requires the
services of the CCRE Group and its associates to be offered
under the gift packs, the Group shall then pay back to the
CCRE Group and its associates the costs of purchase, with
certain bulk purchase discount, in respect of the services
offered by them for inclusion in the gift packs for the
property purchasers of such property project, such as cash
vouchers for hotels, shopping malls, cultural tourism
complexes and Cuisine Henan Foodcourts (i % K & &)
owned by the CCRE Group and its associates (the
“Procurement by the CCNL Group”).

Prior to entering into any individual service agreement for the
provision of procurement services for a specific property project,
the CCRE Group and its associates would determine the service
fee for the procurement services with the Group on arm'’s length
basis with reference to the following factors:

— the marketing positioning and brand planning of the
property projects and the market conditions at the time of
sales launch of the property projects, including the
promotion offers of the competitors of the CCRE Group,
which would affect the total market value in RMB of the gift
packs;

— the prevailing market prices of the goods and/or services
offered under the gift packs at the time of procurement by
the Group;

— areasonable bulk purchase discount to be provided by the
CCRE Group to the Group for purchase of the cash
vouchers for CCRE's abovementioned services, which the
CCRE Group also offers to other Independent Third Parties
in similar purchases by them from time to time; and

— areasonable mark-up rate, ranging from 10% to 30%, to be
charged by the Group for the provision of Procurement
Services, which amounts to similar price level in case the
CCRE Group and its associates acquire similar merchandise
from the relevant suppliers in the market without the
benefits of the Group’s sourcing networks and bulk
purchase discount offered by the Group's suppliers.

The annual caps for the procurement by CCRE for the years

ending 31 December 2021 and 2022 are RMB65 million and
RMB65 million, respectively.

11 8 Central China New Life Limited / 2021 Annual Report

© EEMHEREAECREFTREEZRLE
SELEBE N RRHORFOERLT - K
SERE R LR A R E R AR E N RE
HO R AR FEEBEKRAER — /L
EBENN UBESRARYMEXEEBEE
MEmET (MEEMESE N EBE QT
BAWBE - 7% XERBHRABREE
AREMNEASS) [BEHETEEREA K
Bl e

A E B2 TR B R ER B AR A% M AT SZAE (AT E R
R HER - REMERERSFBBEAGEARE
BRAFHEBILASENTERREERBRED
RIS E

—  ARMERRB TS EN kRS A Kt
ERBARHEEZKNTR  BREERME
SEBRFENERES  ZFEARGTER
mBUARETHERN TISHEME

iy

— AEERBZEREEREREMHED
R/ S RBHIRITHE ;

]
<. AR

\

— BEMESKERASERBEREME LR
BENRESFARHMNSEAREKEBIND
EEMWESE TR LEME LS = )77
MR LURBIR ST - &

—  AKEBLIE RIS RS R U & IR IR L
F(NF10%ZE30%) - HERKFEEZEM
EEELEBEART ST EBIEERE
BUR RO ERRL (T ENARERE
m kAR EHEERRHEOARREN) -

REBE2021ER202F12A3NBILFE - &%
WEMEBEQNRRBENFE LRI AARE
SHBILEARBGHETT



The annual caps for Procurement by the CCNL Group for the
years ending 31 December 2021 and 2022 are RMB40.0 million
and RMB50.0 million, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the service fees
receivable by the Group for the Procurement by the CCRE Group
and its associates amounted to approximately RMB26.2 million,
while the service fees paid by the Group for the Procurement by
the CCNL Group amounted to approximately RMB34.5 million.

For details, please see the announcements of the Company
dated 30 October 2020 and 9 November 2021.

Provision of the marketing and service platform
construction services by the Group to CENTRAL CHINA
MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED (“CCMGT", together
with subsidiaries, the “CCMGT Group”)

On 27 October 2021, the Company entered into the marketing
and service platform construction service framework agreement
with CCMGT, pursuant to which the Company shall develop
exclusive software, system and related technical consulting
services for the marketing management platform based on the
marketing needs and plans of the CCMGT Group’s various
projects under management, with specific functions including,
but not limited to, external customer acquisition mini program,
incentives, procurement, rights gifting, corporate WeChat user
unified system, etc.

The development fee of the software system template of each
platform is based on the construction workload, development
period, platform requirements, features, development personnel
required, and the prevailing market price of similar services. The
development fee of each platform ranges between RMB200,000
and RMB1,500,000. Such price range is determined with
reference to a reasonable cost plus a reasonable profit margin
and agreed by the parties on arm'’s length negotiation in order to
ensure that such price range is fair and reasonable and no less
favourable than those charged by the Company to independent
third parties.

The annual caps for the marketing and service platform
construction service framework agreement for the years ended
31 December 2021 is RMB11 million.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the marketing and service
platform construction service framework agreement amounted
to approximately RMB9.4 million.

For details, please see the announcement of the Company dated
27 October 2021.

Provision of the property management services by the
Group to CCMGT

On 13 May 2021, the Company and CCMGT entered into the
Property Management Services Framework Agreement pursuant
to which, among other things, the Group shall provide property
management services to the CCMGT Group, namely at CCMGT's
place of business and headquarter in Zhengzhou, PRC and other
branch offices of the CCMGT Group for the period from the
CCMGT Listing until 31 December 2023.

The Property Management Services Framework Agreement was
agreed upon on normal commercial terms after arm’s length
negotiations, and the property management fees were
determined based on the (i) number, nature, category and
location of the properties; (ii) GFA of the properties; (iii) rate
generally offered by the Group to independent third parties in
respect of comparable services; and (iv) anticipated staff costs of
the Group. To the Directors’ best knowledge and belief, the fees
for such property management services are no less favorable to
the Group than those available from independent third parties for
comparable services. With respect to each property, the relevant
members of the Group and the CCMGT Group will further enter
into an individual separate agreement that prescribes the specific
terms and conditions of each property.

The annual caps for the property management services
framework agreement for each of the three years ending 31
December 2023 are RMB3.0 million, RMB3.5 million and RMB4.0
million, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the property management
services framework agreement amounted to approximately
RMB1.9 million.

For details, please see the announcement of the Company dated
13 May 2021.
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As at the dates of these agreements and up to the date of this
report, Mr. Wu Po Sum is the controlling shareholder of the
Company, and indirectly owned more than 30% equity interests
in CCRE and CCMGT. Therefore, the abovementioned
transactions also constitute the continuing connected
transactions of the Company. Details of these agreements are
set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 5 May 2020 and
announcements of the Company dated 29 June 2020, 30 October
2020, 18 November 2020, 13 May 2021, 30 June 2021, 27 October
2021, 29 October 2021, 9 November 2021, 11 November 2021,
and the circulars of the Company dated 23 November 2020 and 9
December 2021.

The Board confirmed that there is no material change in the
contractual arrangements and/or the circumstances under which
they were adopted, and its impact on the Group. The Board also
confirmed that there is no unwinding of the structured contracts
or failure to unwind when the restrictions that led to the adoption
of the structured contracts are removed.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed the
relevant framework agreements and confirmed that the
framework agreements have been entered into:

a)  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

b)  either on normal commercial terms or, if there were not
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
were on normal commercial terms, on terms no less
favorable to the Group than terms available to or from (as
appropriate) independent third parties; and

Cc)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company’s shareholders as a whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2021 in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) "Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified letter
containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions of the Group
undertaken in the normal course of business are set out in note
29 to the consolidated financial statements. Save for the
connected transaction and continuing connected transactions as
disclosed above, none of these related party transactions is
required to be disclosed under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Acquisition of equity interest in Henan Tianming
Pursuant to an equity transfer agreement entered into by the
Group and the shareholders of Henan Tianming Property
Management Co., Ltd. (“Henan Tianming”) on 31 December 2021,
the Group acquired 51% equity interest in Henan Tianming at a
cash consideration of RMB33.66 million. Henan Tianming had an
aggregate gross floor area under management of approximately
4.007 million sg.m.. The acquisition was completed in January
2022. Since then, Henan Tianming has become an indirect non
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

Save as the above and the disclosed in note 30 to the financial
statements, there are no significant events subsequent to 31
December 2021 which would materially affect the Group’s
operating and financial performance as of the date of this report.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board recognised
that the repurchase of Shares could increase the net asset value
and/or earnings per share, so the Company repurchased a total
of 1,892,000 shares on the Stock Exchange during the year ended
31 December 2021, with a total consideration of approximately
HK$9,902,000. The Company cancelled 785,000 shares and
183,000 shares in November and December 2021, respectively.
Details of the Shares repurchased are as follows:
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Price Consideration

per share
Number BREERE Aggregate
of shares Highest Lowest consideration
Month of purchase in 2021 2021 FEBE A KB purchased price paid price paid paid
BEROHAE BeEf[E BRESHE S RERE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
September 9H 785,000 5.63 5.18 4,247,033
November 1A 183,000 491 4.88 900,360
December 12 A 924,000 5.36 4.90 4,754,229
1,892,000 9,901,621

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS
OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company's securities.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policy is designed to attract, retain and
motivate talented individuals to contribute to the success of the
business. The emolument policy of the employees of the Group
is formulated and reviewed by the Remuneration Committee on
the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.
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The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regards to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) pursuant to the MPF Schemes Ordinance for all its
employees in Hong Kong. All the employees of the Group in Hong
Kong are required to join the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to consolidated income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme. No forfeited contribution
is available to reduce the contribution payable in the future years
as of 31 December 2021.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance with the
applicable regulations of the PRC, participated in a state managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the local government.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute a specific percentage
of their payroll costs to the retirement benefits schemes. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits scheme is to make the specified contributions. During
the reporting period, the total amounts contributed by the Group
to the schemes and costs charged to the consolidated income
statement represent contribution payable to the schemes by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

The Company has also adopted certain share option schemes
and a share award scheme as described in this report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed level of public float
during the year and up to the date of this report as required
under the Listing Rules.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations and other donations made by the Group
during the year amounted to RMB 129,360 (2020: RMB90,312).
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MATERIAL LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company was not
involved in any litigation, arbitration or claims of material
importance and there was no litigation or claim of material
importance which was known to the Directors to be pending or
threatened by or against the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report at pages 58 to 79
of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed the Annual
Results, including the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, and discussed auditing, risk management
and internal control systems and financial reporting matters with
the management as well as the reviewed the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the 2021 AGM.

By order of the board
Wang Jun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
SRR GTIESEES

&
pwec

To the Shareholders of Central China New Life Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Central China New Life
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
are set out on pages 137 to 271, comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended,

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

LA EZE RIS - BBERRAFAET =12
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as

1% X7 % 25 B ¥ =5
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follows:

o Assessment of expected credit losses of trade receivables C

o Assessment of goodwill impairment

B 5 RWSIREARE B EBERNG

o BERMEE

Key Audit Matter
BREESE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB NAEERRETSE

Assessment of expected credit losses of trade
receivables
LB S ERRENTEREEEE

Refer to Note 3.1.2 “credit risk”, Note 4 “critical accounting
estimates and judgments”, and Note 18 “trade and other
receivables and prepayments” to the consolidated
financial statements.
BR2HGRAUERERMEII2[EERE] -« HE4lEX
SEMAET R AE | K181 E S K H A U EIE R TR
FKIE] ©

We have performed the following procedures in respect
of the assessment of ECL of trade receivables:
BMESRE SHEWFIARAEEBENTEEL U TE
F:

(@) Obtained an understanding of the Group's internal

control and assessment process of ECL of trade
receivables, and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and other inherent risk of factors, such as
complexity and subjectivity;
THRESEHE FHRWFIBTEREEEENREES
REHERF - WE R T REUENEE REMES
[BBe A& (ANEHEE R EEE) - AT ERERE
B [E A R
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FARETEE @)

Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANEANARERRENSE

As at 31 December 2021, the gross carrying amount of
trade receivables amounted to RMB1,795,054,000, which
represented approximately 35.6% of the total assets of
the Group. Management has assessed the expected
credit losses (“ECL") of trade receivables with a loss
allowance of RMB84,468,000 made against the gross
trade receivables.

M2021F 128318 ESRKFERTHAERARE
1,795,054,0007C - EERBEBEEL35.6% ° BB T
HESRERENEREEER(BAEESED 1
ME D RN IBE RSB R E AR 84,468,000 7T °

Management applied the simplified approach under
HKFRS 9 to measure the lifetime ECL of trade receivables.
To measure the ECL, trade receivables were grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics. In estimating
the loss rate, management calculated the historical loss
rate based on the ageing profile and historical settlement
performance, considered the financial positions of the
customers and took into account of the current market
conditions and forward-looking factors.
EEECEAS BV BREEAEIFRIE T ARG A
EESRBRENKRITEREEEE - At ERBEER
BE B5RWREERLENEERBREH#SE - &
AEEXR BREEANEREGRBEZKERRNE
BAEEX  ZERTFPMBEAMRN - Wt R BAITHRRE
AIREMEREZ= -
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(b) Evaluated and validated, on a sample basis, the key
controls over management'’s assessment of the ECL of
trade receivables including the review of ageing

analysis;
A RMEREEEEYE ZRWHIEEHREEER

TR RHE R BRI S - BIREBIRE DT -

Evaluated the appropriateness of the methodology
and the reasonableness of key assumptions adopted
with the involvement of our internal specialists: (i)
assessed the appropriateness of customer grouping
based on our understanding on the Group's business
process, the credit control process and the credit risk
characteristics of trade receivables; (ii) assessed the
reasonableness of significant assumptions used in
estimating the loss rate by comparing the ultimate
loss rate used in calculating the historical loss rate
with the historical settlement performance; (iii)
challenged and evaluated management’s assessment
on the financial positions of the customers, existing
markets conditions and forward-looking factors with
reference to our understanding of Group’s business,
industry and external macroeconomic data;
ERMABERNDET - 3G 7 AERAE AR E
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
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FARETEE @

Key Audit Matter
BRETSHE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANES AR ERRENSE

The assessment of ECL of trade receivables is considered
a key audit matter given the significance of the trade
receivables balance. In addition, the judgements and
estimations in relation to assessment of ECL are subject
to a high degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent
risk in relation to the assessment of ECL is considered
relatively higher due to the complexity of impairment
models and subjectivity of significant assumptions and
data used.

BRESRRFENEAN  BFRKFIBEEREES
BT AR RARETEE - 1IN FIATEHREEE
BATEH O HE KRGS AERENETHEN - AR
WEREXNEMEERFTAERABERLBBHZHM -
LB REEBEEEENEFRBRERABERS o

Assessment of goodwill impairment
BERET

Refer to Note 4(c) “Estimation of goodwill impairment”
and Note 15 “Intangible assets” to the consolidated
financial statements.

B2 MRS VB RRM O ERELET | XM 150 &
TEE] -

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had goodwill of
RMB127,138,000 primarily in relation to the Group’s
acquisition of several property management services
groups (the “Acquirees”).

M2021F12A31H ESEEBEHBEE A AR
127,138,000 - FE WKk BEBWBETWEEER
BEE (TR ) -

(d) Tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing
analysis of trade receivables prepared by
management to supporting documents;
HREBXHHEAREEERENE S RIRIAR
e D AT Y EHENE

(e) Checked the mathematical accuracy of the calculation
of the provision for loss allowance; and
BEFEEREHENHHRBEREE R

(f) Assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to
assessment of ECL of trade receivables.
G EE FEYGRIRTRHEE BB EHENT M o

Based on the above, we considered that the
management'’s judgements and assumptions applied in
the assessment of ECL of trade receivables were
supportable by the evidence obtained.

HERN EXFrit - BMRABEERNRERERNITHRET
AN RFERENHE SRR IBEREEBERE
FA Y e R 5% -

We have performed the following procedures in respect
of the assessment of goodwill impairment:
BMEREERERNTEELATER -

(@) Obtained an understanding of the Group's internal

control over the impairment assessment of goodwill,
and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and other inherent risk of factors, such as
complexity and subjectivity, changes and susceptibility
to management bias or fraud;
TR BEEEHEHERAEMNAIIEG RFERER - I
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FABRETEE @

Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANEANARERRENSE

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually, or when there
are events or changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired. For the purpose of impairment
assessment, goodwill was allocated to each group of
cash-generated units of the Acquirees. Management
assessed the impairment of goodwill with the assistance
of an independent external valuer (the “External Valuer”)
and determined the recoverable amounts based on a
value-in-use (“VIU") calculation using cash flow
projections. The VIU calculation was based on financial
budgets approved by management. The key assumptions
considered primarily include (i) expected growth rate of
revenue, (i) terminal growth rate after 5 years, and (iii)
pre-tax discount rate.
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(b) Evaluated the competency, capabilities and objectivity
of the External Valuer,
FHEINBAEMRNEE BN RFEIE

—
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>

Evaluated the appropriateness of the methodology
and the reasonableness of key assumptions adopted
with the involvement of our internal valuation experts;
EREBEEZRN2ET - SHEFTRAFENEE T
NEARBRRNEEN

a
S

Challenged and assessed the historical estimation
accuracy of the cash flow forecast by comparing the
forecast used in the prior year to the actual
performance of the business in the current year,
miAs - FEERANEIERAFENEREBRE
EITHR - EE RAHEE LR @R 8 TR b5t
(=

©

Evaluated the reasonableness of the key assumptions
used in the cash flow forecast, mainly including: (i)
expected growth rate of revenue during the forecast
period, we compared them with historical financial
data and approved budgets; (i) for the terminal growth
rate after 5 years, we assessed it with reference to the
long-term expected inflation rate based on our
independent research; (iii) assessed the pre-tax
discount rate with reference to comparable listed
companies based on our industry knowledge and
independent research done by us;

MR eRERAMERNBRERNGEE =8
BIE ()VERABRRRANTEEERE - BB EEE
SRR RASHETEE TR (D AFENR
g RE  EREMOBLIMRTELERATELRR
AR ZAETTRTAE 5 (i) BRI 1T 36 A3 K P e 98
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

1% X7 % 25 B ¥ =5

FARETEE @

Key Audit Matter
BRETSHE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANES AR ERRENSE

We focused on auditing the impairment of goodwill
because the estimation of recoverable amount is subject
to a high degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent
risk in relation to the impairment assessment of goodwill
is considered significant due to the complexity of the
impairment models and subjectivity of significant
assumptions used.

BMEFNEANEBNRE - BATKESENGHTT
TRETHEEMN BHAEERERENEREE KA
BEABEMTEMN - HEEEREN LA B EE R R
REBERX o

(f) Tested source data to supporting evidence on a
sample basis, such as approved budgets and available
market data and considered the reasonableness of
these budgets;

HMEORFAEIRR - SEEAFESCHFER - flansg
HEEERTRANMSEE  TERZSHEENASRE
r|¢i|— ;

Evaluated the reasonableness of the sensitivity
analysis performed by management on the key
assumptions to understand the impact of the
reasonable changes in assumptions on the
recoverable amount;
AHEREERTHREBRNSEZHH AW SEN T
L iEAREETHRRED TS BIE

@

(h) Assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to
impairment assessment of goodwill; and
A EEREN AN EREEEE Y &

(i) Considered whether the judgements made in selecting
the methodology and the key assumptions would give
rise to indicators of possible management bias.
ERMEEEFERARBRREMENHESE g5/
ARENBREEEERANER -

Based on the above, we found that the significant
management'’s judgements and the key assumptions
adopted in the goodwill impairment assessment were
supported by available evidence.

AR EXFrat - MR ABEERNBEAI AT ER
BERMHFTER AN B A E IR G 2T R B fRER -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

1% X7 % 25 B ¥ =5
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE BB AR B 4SS M B ERRAERN
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL S1F#)

STATEMENTS (continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this HEKBURHBEHENETBEEEARE S

independent auditor’s report is Pang Ho Yin. o
PricewaterhouseCoopers EOERKBESEERT
Certified Public Accountants HESEED

Hong Kong, 16 March 2022 &5 202293168
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ—-Z—
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Fk S A=A -

uu-.ﬁD]ﬂ_E\Eug

—F+ZA=t—HLEFE
B BAARE T T

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE

2021 2020
20215 2020F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hrat AREFT ARETFT
Revenue WA 3,598,918 2,654,499
Cost of sales SEEM A 9 (2,415,696) (1,793,782)
Gross profit EF 1,183,222 860,717
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHAS (57,091) (52,919)
Administrative expenses THRFAX (229,667) (273,366)
Net impairment losses on financial assets CREERESEFE 3.1.2 (101,499) (15,258)
Other income Hpb A 6 34,519 17,547
Other (losses)/gains-net Hit (B518) Wz #88 7 (15,162) 6,546
Operating profit RERH 814,322 543,267
Finance income-net BMEWAFEE 8 12,159 13,643
Share of post-tax losses of associates FREREAROELEZE QD
accounted for using the equity method AN EE 11 (427) ™M
Profit before income tax FrisBipIFIE 826,054 556,909
Income tax expenses IR Ti b 12 (172,666) (116,165)
Profit for the year FAFIE 653,388 440,744
Profit for the year attributable to: UTEAEEERTHE
— Shareholders of the Company — A RBERE 619,559 426,587
— Non-controlling interests — s 33,829 14,157
653,388 440,744
Other comprehensive loss for the year, FREtZEEE (IKRHIE)
net of tax
ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss i%ﬁ DEEERMIEE
— Currency translation differences EBHmEER (22,183) (125,188)
Total comprehensive income for the year F£R2EUKEEALE 631,205 315,556
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
uuT\DJa_E\EUK

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #iZ2—Z - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (kBB - A S EAARE T L)

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE

2021 2020
20215 2020F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
et AREFTT ARETFT
Total comprehensive income for UT&FEEEREZEKSE
the year attributable to: .
— Shareholders of the Company — RARARE 597,376 301,399
— Non-controlling interests — RS 33,829 14,157
631,205 315,556
Earnings per share for profit attributable A2QTRREEFENER
to the shareholders of the Company B (UERAR¥ETZS)
(expressed in RMB per share)
— Basic earnings per share — BREXREF 13 0.49 0.38
— Diluted earnings per share — BREEAT 13 0.48 0.37

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income B _E#R& 2 [ e 7= FE BB P i 5 — OF B8 -
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AR ==

?umDEJ_

BEE

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 72021412 A31H
ABEHRASN - AECRUAARE T L)

As at 31 December

R12H31H
2021 2020
20214 2020 £
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
et AR¥FT ARBTFT
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in associates REEE QN RIHIRE 11 5,841 970
Property, plant and equipment E S 14 95,058 56,313
Intangible assets EmAE 15 274,033 87,706
Other receivables and prepayments H A fE U GRIB R TB S 5B 18 33,439 67,127
Deferred income tax assets BEREFTS I EE 25 43,438 10,749
451,809 222,865
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 17,562 8,896
contract assets BREE 5 23,889 3,817
Trade and other receivables and f@’f%&ﬁ@%ﬂ&?ﬂﬁ%&
prepayments TERT KT 18 2,221,945 1,328,541
Financial assets at fair value through LARARE TE.:JF;LH\
profit or loss BRemEE 17 55,456 467,041
Restricted cash ZRRHIIRE 1,907 1,035
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEYD 19 2,264,412 2,217,784
4,585,171 4,027,114
Total assets HWEE 5,036,980 4,249 979
Equity e
Equity attributable to shareholders 72 B R R E/G R
of the Company
Share capital &N 20 11,247 11,057
Other reserves HmEE 21 1,754,380 2,051,382
Retained earnings REBEF 1,188,606 628,905
2,954,233 2,691,344
Non-controlling interests FEERER 102,295 26,006
Total equity LB 3,056,528 2,717,350
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
Y m ==
GOBEEBEE
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 722021412 A31H
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (2B HBAIN © FTE S EAARE T Tt

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

et AREFT ARETT

Liabilities =L
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Other payables AN 24 20,486 =
Lease liabilities HeEaE 23 21,810 10,333
Contract liabilities BHEE 5 86,574 50,437
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFTISHEE 25 26,639 3,977
155,509 64,747
Current liabilities REBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 23 28,373 10,876
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMER IR 24 1,052,871 937,251
Contract liabilities AHatE 5 544,352 423,847
Current income tax liabilities BVEAATIS T B fE 199,347 95,908
1,824,943 1,467,882
Total liabilities HWEE 1,980,452 1,532,629
Total equity and liabilities EEkEEAE 5,036,980 4,249,979

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in [\ FiGA EE G &3 e M T —HFRE -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 137 to 271 were 2137 2271 B TS MG A B SR K DR 202243
approved by the board of directors of the Company on 16 March ~ B16BEESANATIEE 2 E  WHERREZ
2022 and were signed on its behalf.

Wang Jun Wang Qian
& -2
Director Director
2 E2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #ZE 2021412 831 HILFE
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (2B AN - FIBE S EAARE TTt)

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

RAARRES
Non-
Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital reserves earnings Total interests equity
BA Hitfits REBR Bt FERER ERaE
Note RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000
Hrit AREFT  AEETT  ARETT  AREfT  AREFT  AREFR
(Note 20) (Note 21)
(Hiz£20) (Hizz21)
Balance at 1 January 2020 14202051 B 1 AR&E 3 123,297 246,142 369,442 12,207 381,649
Total comprehensive income FR2ENRAR
for the year
Profit for the year ERFIE - - 426,587 426,587 14,157 440,744
Other comprehensive income for theyear R E2 AN = (125,188) - (125,188) - (125,188)
- (125,188) 426,587 301,399 14,157 315,556
Transactions with shareholders HARARRNRS
of the Company
Issue of shares in connection with the BEMETERNRNET
capitalisation issue 7,885 (7,885) - - - -
Issuie of shares in connection with the BANR LB BRRNET
Company's listing 3159 2,085,535 - 2,088,694 - 2,088,694
Share option scheme-value of employee R iE:tE— BB RKEE
Services 2 - 6,447 - 6,447 - 6,447
Share option scheme-issued shares + 2 10 624 - 634 - 634
Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - 4,440 4,440
Capital contribution from non-controling
interests - - - - 685 685
Acquisition of equity interest from B RE YRR E
non-controlling interests = (1.817) = (1.817) (1,570) (3,387)
Dividend distribution to non-controlling RFERER DERE
interests - - - - (3913) (3913)
Dividend distribution to shareholders ARE D ERE 2% - (73,455) - (73,455) - (73,455)
Appropriation of statutory reserves EERERE 2 = 43,82 (43,824) = = =
Balance at 31 December 2020 #2020 12 A 31 BH&eR 11,057 2,051,382 628,905 2,691,344 26,006 2,717,350
Balance at 1 January 2021 120215181 8M&8 11,057 2,051,382 628,905 2,691,344 26,006 2,717,350
Total comprehensive income FR2ENGRAER
for the year
Profit for the year ENFE - - 619,559 619,559 33,829 653,388
Other comprehensive income for the year  FRE M2 EME = (22,183) - (22,183) - (22,183)
- (22,183) 619,559 597,376 33,829 631,205
Transactions with shareholders of the EAATRRHRS
Company
Repurchase of shares of the Company ARAEERND 20(0) - (8,143) - (8,143) = (8,143)
Cancellation of shares BRin a8 20(b) (8) 8 - - - -
Share option scheme-value of employee BB T8l — EEREEE
Services 2 - 2,220 - 2,220 - 2,220
Share option scheme-issued shares BRiE 8 — ERIRG 2000) 198 12,071 - 12,269 - 12,269
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBAR 28 = - = - 43,056 43,056
Capital contribution from non-controlling ~ FHERERTE
interests - - - - 1,740 1,740
Dividend distribution to non-controlling ~ EFFERERHRRE
interests - - - - (2,336) (2,336)
Dividend distribution to shareholders ARE RS 2 = (340,833) = (340,833) = (340,833)
Appropriation of statutory reserves ETRERE 2 - 59,858 (59,858) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2021 R2021512 B 31 B 11,247 1,754,380 1,188,606 2,954,233 102,295 3,056,528

o

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should — BA_ 454 4 5 B S 5% FE EARE I BT o — ORI E
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

uuT\ Iﬁ@ﬂll%%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #(% 2021412 A31HIEFE

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (k& 2B BE -

FBSBAARE T )

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEFE

2021 2020
20214 2020
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Hfa ARMTFT ARBTFT
Cash flows from operating activities K& ZEFESRERE
Cash generated from operations KEEHEECRE 27 283,439 356,752
Income tax paid BAFTSH (105,000) (75,485)
Net cash generated from operating && ZEFFESREFHE
activities 178,439 281,267
Cash flows from investing activities K& TEHFESRERE
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE - BEMEE
equipment (28,621) (21,427)
Purchase of intangible assets BERVAE (4,364) (2,640)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant  H&E ¥ - BE M E D
and equipment Fris 347 17
Proceeds from disposal of intangible HEETEENMSHIE
assets 839
Repayments of loans from other entities Ht B ER ZER - 29,352
Interest received on loan to third parties S WEZRFE=HHFA - 455
Prepayments for acquisition of a W —RWEB R RITBRA K
subsidiary | - (62,000)
Payments for deposits for potential WHE—RBEH B AT
acquisition of a subsidiary At ES£FIE (100,000) =
Payments for acquisitions of subsidiaries, UgE& T B A & AT FUE -
net of cash acquired HBRFT15H 28 (8,165) (17,144)
Payments for financial assets at fair value LA R REBETEIL A
through profit or loss B EEM TR
15 38 (877,361) (2,125,368)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HENARQ R BET S A
at fair value through profit or loss ABENERIEBEMS
IR 3.3 1,262,008 1,665,933
Interest received on senior notes EREEZERE 7 6,251 =
Investments in associates REFE R RIRIRE 11 (5,298) =
Net cash generated from/(used in)  R&EEBFHES (FTH)
investing activities e FHE 245,636 (532,822)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
uu-.ﬁ Iﬁ%ﬂllz%‘%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #ZE 2021412 831 HILFE
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (2B AN - FIBE S EAARE TTt)

Year ended 31 December
BE12H31BLEE

2021 2020
20214 2020 FF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Hfa ARMTFT ARMBTFT
cash flows from financing activities mﬂﬁ;ﬁijﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁumi
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 377 & @A 1S 7008 - 2,164,120
Proceeds from exercise of share options 17 { B AR RE P 15 2018 20(a) 12,269 634
Repurchase of shares of the Company KRB ERS 20(b) (8,143) -
Capital injection by non-controlling IR ERIT A
interests 1,740 685
Repayments to related parties FEAT RARG 5 B K (4,684) =
Cash advances from related parties BN T IR BN - 805
Interest paid BAF A 8 (1,744) (972)
Principal elements of lease payments HENFNAREE 5 (16,782) (16,022)
Listing expenses paid Bt EmAX - (64,659)
Transactions with non-controlling ERIEIEIRE RIS
interests - (3,387)
Dividends paid to shareholders BT IR S 26 (340,833) (73,455)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests & 15 FE4% B 25 9 IR &, (2,336) (3,913)
Net cash (used in)/generated from  BEEE (FTA), Fifs
financing activities REFHE (360,513) 2,003,836
Net increase in cash and cash REeRBLEEYEM
equivalents =2 63,562 1,752,281
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of S #1384 KIREHEY
year 2,217,784 584,795
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash IR& K&IR & EEWHE K
and cash equivalents e (16,934) (119,292)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FARARERASEEY
end of the year 2,264,412 2,217,784

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read W ESGERSREREEBEN T —ORE -
in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ¥5 ¥k 2R Bl 51

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B S A& %A -

144

GENERAL INFORMATION

Central China New Life Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16 October 2018 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law CAP.22 of the Cayman Islands. The address
of the Company's registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands.

The Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
15 May 2020.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in (i) provision of property management
and value-added services (i) provision of lifestyle services
and (iii) provision of commercial property management and
consultation services in the People's Republic of China (the
“PRC"). The controlling shareholders of the Company are
Enjoy Start Limited (“Enjoy Start”), a company incorporated
under the laws of British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and Mr. Wu
Po Sum (collectively “Mr. Wu" or the “Controlling
Shareholder”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi ("RMB"), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the board of directors of the Company on 16
March 2022.

The outbreak of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus (the
“COVID-19") had brought unprecedented challenges and
added uncertainties to the economy. COVID-19 may affect
the financial performance and position of the industry of
property management. Since the outbreak of COVID-19, the
Group kept continuous attention on the situation of the
COVID-19 and reacted actively to its impact on the financial
position and operating results of the Group. As at the date
that the consolidated financial information is authorised for
issue, COVID-19 doesn't have any material adverse impact
on the financial position and operating result of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

By} Y5 ¥ 2R BfU 5

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
The consolidated financial statements are for the Group
consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRS) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (HKCO) Cap.
622.

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared
on a historical cost basis, except for certain
financial assets measured at fair value.

New and amended standards adopted by

the Group

The Group has applied the following standards
and amendments for the first time for their
annual reporting year commencing 1 January
2021 and there is no material impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statement:

. Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase
2 — amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

EAXEERME

AR REZR DI A Bax B4R & TS R P ER AN
ERSHEBR - R BEHAN  ZFRRE
ERERARMABZHRFE - A MBHRER
RAEE (BRARRREKNBATR) N
W -

2.1 mBEE%E
(i) BTEBUBHEERREELR
LB

AEBEGEMHRRBREEY
BRELEAREFERBGEDF
R EBHRBERERE

(i) FELEFEH
MBEBRRELELERNANEER
2 HRARBEFAENETE
BB ERRID ©

(iii) AR BRA AT 7T RANE AT A

AEEBER2021F1A18HEA
WEEREFEERERTIE
AIRIEE] - BEARSENEGRE Y
BHRERITEEATE

. BEEUMBMEERER -
EAGHEAEIR - F
B BWSEAIE TS - B
B BRSEAB AR R
M EAIE 162
A FRE R E—

EPEE
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By ¥ #h 2R BiU 5

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (kBB - A S EAARE T L)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EBEARETHERBE@

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 wREEXE(F)
(iv) New standards and interpretations not (iv) [ REFRANBIHTETE R R 2 FE
yet adopted
Certain new accounting standards and B e X KRR EDKE
interpretations have been published that are 5 WEZEXER R BB 2021 F
not mandatory for 31 December 2021 reporting 12 A 31 B R AR 0 3E 54 il
period and have not been early adopted by the B mEAREEIR RN - TEE
Group. These standards are not expected to REEA N2 NIE R kRS
have a material impact on the entity in the S EENATER AR S E
current or future reporting periods and on HFERTE
foreseeable future transactions:
Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after
RUTHHR 2%
MBS TR £
HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Reference to the Conceptual 1 January 2022
Framework
BRI MEERE 35 (BFTA) RS AESR 202291818
HKAS 16 (Amendments) Property, Plant and Equipment: 1 January 2022
Proceeds before intended use
BAGTTERIE 165 (BETA) M - BB NERE  BUEREATRPT 202291818
1S58
HKAS 37 (Amendments) Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling 1 January 2022
a contract
EBSFERIE 375 (BFTA) BEMEH— BITEH 2R 2022F1H1H
Annual Improvements Annual Improvements to HKFRS 1 January 2022
Standards 2018-2020 Cycle
FEHE BB HE %R 2018 £ £ 20205 20221811
HER e Rl
Revised Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for Common 1 January 2022
Control Combination
ISR &I RSB 55 HEESEHOEHEHE 2022F1H1H
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 HAETHBERHSE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 mBIE%E(#)

(iv) New standards and interpretations not (iv) [ERFRAABIHETER R 278 (48)

yet adopted (Continued)

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after
RUTBEHRz2#
MmN ETHEER

HKFRS 17
BAMBWEEAET7HR

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

BB EFHERIE 15% (BRI A)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

EEAREE 55 (20209F)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendment)

Insurance Contracts
REBRE X

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current
MESSERBBESE

Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of
a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

B mKk 22— BRAMBIETE
FIEXHEBERM S

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture

1 January 2023
202341818

1 January 2023

2023F1H1H

1 January 2023

2023%1H1H

To be determined

EEUEREELF 10K EES REEREBECEREELEZME BEET
SHAERIZE 28 5% (IEETAN) HNEELEHE
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

148

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including a
structured entities) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the
Group (refer to Note 2.3).

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and
balance sheet respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Fk S A=A -

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)
(b) Associates

(c)

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the
Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of
accounting (see Note 2.2(c) below), after initially
being recognised at cost.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of
the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s
share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive
income. Dividends received or receivable from
associates are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its
interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the other entity.

By} Y5 ¥ 2R BfU 5

B BAARE T T

2 HAETHRESE @

2.2

(b)

(c)

BENEERRLR/ B —F5R

RERAIRERSTTEE (&)

BEANE
BEARRAKEHEGERY
SE 0 AT HI RS RIS
FEER - aRTEASERES
20% E50% 1R RREH BN o POHE
ER AR E R KAV FHERE
iEmEgsHA(R T XMEE2.2(0)
HIER o

v F 9

RIBEDSTE - REN LK
REER - & TLABAREARER
IR R B EEBIRE T W
BAMBEHER - ARREMEE
W ERAKERIERERES
Hth2mamr &g - CUWEkE
Wit NEMRBERREHER
BEREERRD

AR EE AR IRRENE
BERUEBEBERERNER
(B ¥R 1E o] L 4t S 454 R B B UK
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—FEE BRIFEERREMBE
BAERERIELNAR -

149



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥5 ¥ 2R BiY 5

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B S A& %A -

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

150

(c)

(d)

Equity method (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity-accounted investees have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in Note
2.9.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control
The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a loss
of control as equity transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership
interest results in an adjustment between the
carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount of the adjustment to non-
controlling interests and any consideration paid
or received is recognised in a separate reserve
within equity attributable to owners of the
Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EXEFHERESE@
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Business combinations 2.3 XKEHt
The acquisition method of accounting is used to IR e W LS A 2R A AR -
account for all business combinations, regardless of Eaeto B T A HMWEE -
whether equity instruments or other assets are TR B A R EER B R

acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

e fair values of the assets transferred s FEZEREENAAMEE

e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the o HBRWEEBNANEEAEEDN
acquired business afE

e equity interests issued by the Group o REBETITHRE

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from e HAIAHELHEENTMNEE
a contingent consideration arrangement, and FEENAAEE &

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in o RHEBRFHEM L AITFER AR
the subsidiary. B AREE

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and REBRESHPTES 2RI & E

contingent liabilities assumed in a business LETEEREBENSBAE VISR

combination are, with limited exceptions, measured ERWEBEHBNAREBETE (BRIH

initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The BISMBESLIN) o 7R 62 B4R 1520 78 U g

Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the A R B E S IR AR 2= 1 R

acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis BEERA SR EEFENLL - R

either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s WU R B R A (o] FEE R A RS o

proportionate share of the acquired entity’'s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. W BE KR RE R AN E A RS B ERA S, ©

The excess of the: BIE=S=

e consideration transferred, . B EREE -

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the o W E TR IFITERERS
acquired entity, and R

e acquisition-date fair value of any previous o RIRUNEEE B A (A L AT AR ANHE
equity interest in the acquired entity =PNBIE BB AREE -
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

152

2.3

24

Business combinations (Continued)

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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By} Y5 ¥ 2R BfU 5

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker (“CODM"). The CODM,
who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the executive directors that
makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group'’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The Company is
expecting to transact its future operating and
financing activities primarily in HK dollar (“HK$"),
which is the Group's functional currency. As the
major operations of the Group are within the
PRC, the Group determined to present its
consolidated financial statements in RMB.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
year-end exchange rates are generally
recognised in profit or l0ss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income within
finance income — net. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on a net basis within other (losses)/
gains-net.

2 EBEAREITHERBE @

2.5

2.6

D EEE

%@ﬁ%m HT AR E BEER
RE(TEBRERKE ) EHAR
EHR—H TELERAREARZE
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

154

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances (Continued)
Translation difference on assets and liabilities
carried at fair value are reported as part of the
fair value gain or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

° income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the rate on the dates of the transactions);
and

. all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold or any borrowings forming
part of the net investment are repaid, the
associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain
or loss on sale.
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Vehicles 5 years
—  Equipment and furniture 3-5years
—  Machinery 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount.
These are included in profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets

156

2.8

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.3.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not
amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and
losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The
units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes, being the
operating segments.

Platform and know-how

Platform and know-how acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The contractual technology
has a finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of 10 years for the technology.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

By} Y5 ¥ 2R BfU 5

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8
(c)

(d)

(e)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Order-Backlog and customer relationship
Order-Backlog and customer relationship
acquired in a business combination is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
The order backlog and customer relationship
have a finite useful life and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of 3 to 10 years.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets mainly include
computer software. They are initially recognised
and measured at costs incurred to acquire and
bring them to use. Other intangible assets are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 3
to 5 years, using the straight-line method which
reflects the pattern in which the intangible
asset’s future economic benefits are expected
to be consumed.

Research and development

Research expenditures and development
expenditures that do not meet the criteria are
recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset in a
subsequent period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

158

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill that has an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2.10 Investments and other financial assets

(a) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

. those to be measured subsequently at
fair value (either through other
comprehensive income, or through profit
or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial

assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Fk S A=A -

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. For investments
in debt instruments, this will depend on the
business model in which the investment is held.
For investments in equity instruments, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit of loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B #5 ¥ 2R BiU 51

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B S A& %A -

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

160

(c)

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other (losses)/gains-net
together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented
net within other (losses)/gains-net in the
period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Fk S A=A -

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group's right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other (losses)/gains-net in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as applicable.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the consolidated
balance sheet where the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts, and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.11 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Costs of purchased inventory are
determined after deducting rebates and discounts.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

162

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.12 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. They are generally due
for settlement within 12 months (or within the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer) and
therefore all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the
trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. See Note 18 for further information
about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables
and Note 3.1.2 for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.

2.13 cash and cash equivalents

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand and deposits held
at call with financial institutions.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.15 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

(€:))

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

164

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and
when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.17 Employee benefits

(a)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating annual
leave that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service
are recognised in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the reporting period
and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.17 Employee benefits (Continued) 2.17 EEBF (&)

(b) Pension obligations (b) EBUhESEF

2 EBEAREITHERBE @

The Group only operate defined contribution
pension plans. In accordance with the rules and
regulations in the PRC, the PRC based
employees of the Group participate in various
defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by the relevant municipal and
provincial governments in the PRC under which
the Group and the PRC based employees are
required to make monthly contributions to
these plans calculated as a percentage of the
employees’ salaries. The municipal and
provincial governments undertake to assume
the retirement benefit obligations of all existing
and future retired PRC based employees’
payable under the plans described above. Other
than the monthly contributions, the Group has
no further obligation for the payment of
retirement and other post-retirement benefits
of its employees. The assets of these plans are
held separately from those of the Group in
independently administrated funds managed by
the governments.

The Group also participates in a retirement
benefit scheme under the rules and regulations
of the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance (“MPF Scheme”) for all employees in
Hong Kong. The contributions to the MPF
Scheme are based on minimum statutory
contribution requirement of the lower of 5% of
eligible employees’ relevant aggregate income
and HK$1,500. The assets of this MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

The Group's contributions to the defined
contribution retirement scheme are expensed
as incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

166

(c)

(d)

Housing funds, medical insurances and
other social insurances

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled
to participate in various government-supervised
housing funds, medical insurances and other
social insurance plan. The Group contributes on
a monthly basis to these funds based on certain
percentages of the salaries of the employees,
subject to certain ceiling. The Group’s liability in
respect of these funds is limited to the
contributions payable in each year.
Contributions to the housing funds, medical
insurances and other social insurances are
expensed as incurred.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier of
the following dates: (a) when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and
(b) when the entity recognises costs for a
restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS
37 and involves the payment of termination
benefits. In the case of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period
are discounted to their present value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ¥5 ¥ = By 51
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

2 EBEAREITHERBE @

2.17 EERR (#&)

(e) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

2.18 Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to
employees via the Pre-IPO Employee Share Option
Plan in 2019. Information relating to the schemes is
set out in Note 22.

Employee options

The fair value of options granted under the Pre-IPO
Employee Share Option Plan is recognised as an
employee benefits expense with a corresponding
increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:

— including any market performance conditions
(e.g. the entity’s share price)

— excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (e.g.
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining
an employee of the entity over a specified time
period), and

— including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (e.g. the requirement for employees
to save or holdings shares for a specific period
of time).
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

168

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.18 Share-based payments (Continued)

Employee options (Continued)

The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of each period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest
based on the non-market vesting and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and
make good obligations are recognised when the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition
Revenues are recognised when or as the control of
the goods or services is transferred to the customer.
Depending the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods and
services may be transferred over time or at a point in
time.

(a) Property management services and value-
added services
The Group mainly provides property
management services, onsite sales assistance
service, consultancy services, installation and
decoration services, property inspection
services, property agency service and
membership service.

For property management services, the Group
bills a fixed amount for services provided on a
monthly basis and recognises as revenue in the
amount to which the Group has a right to
invoice and that corresponds directly with the
value of performance completed.

For onsite sale assistance services, the Group
bills a fixed amount for services provided on a
monthly basis and recognises as revenue in the
amount to which the Group has a right to
invoice and that corresponds directly with the
value of performance completed.

Consultancy services mainly include
consultancy services to property developers,
providing designing, cleaning, greening,
construction supervision, repair and
maintenance services to property developers at
the pre-delivery stage. The Group agrees the
price for each service with the customers
upfront and issues the monthly bill to the
customers which varies based on the actual
level of service completed in that month.

2 EBEAREITHERBE @

2.20 WA TERR
ERmA RGN REREEFE
FERR IR » RIBA KRB AR %
BRIEER - 7 m &R R TR I #E R]
B P e A S 7E 3 — IR P B LA o

(a)

W) ¥ B IR R AR E IR

AEBETEREMEEERS
BRI5 W0 H RS - SRS - R
REERT - 2 FRERYE - ¥
ERIERY K& B IR -

RWHREEREME - ARER
HtiR a0 R 75 58 B B E £ B
RE TRASEE#HMAAEER
T EZHEROEENSBER
AU

ARGHERGME - ARER
FBLHR 0 AR 75 5 BBl E £ 3
RE YRAKEERMAAEER
VTEERSEROEBENSRER
RN o

AARGEIZBREAMERER
R TR IRTS - T ATPE B
SOMEREBHREEORT B
B e IEE - #ERR
BERT - AEBEEPREHE
FHERGOER - LK AREP
FMEARE ARRERZAEE
R ERRBGKFEMR -

BEFETARAT/ —B-—FFR 169



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B #5 ¥ 2R BiU 51

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B S A& %A -

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

170

(a)

Property management services and value-
added services (Continued)

For installation and decoration services, the
Group provides installation services for the
security system and other establishment of
intelligence communities and provides
decoration services to property owners. The
Group recognises revenue over the period of
the contract by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. The progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation, in an amount that reflects the
consideration expected to be entitled and,
depending on the nature of the contract, is
measured mainly by reference to (a) the
proportion of contract costs incurred for work
performed to date to estimated total contract
costs for each contract; or (b) completion of
physical proportion of the contract work.

For property inspection service, the Group
provides property quality inspection to property
developer and the revenue is recognised upon
the completion of service.

For property agency service, the Group acts as
a sales agent for property developer, landlord
and tenant and provides property agency
services, which charge such property
developer, landlord and tenant a commission
calculated based on the contract purchase
price. Revenue from agency services is
recognised at a point in time when the service
is rendered and the sales and purchase
agreement or leasing agreement are executed
and become effective.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Fk S A=A -

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Property management services and value-
added services (Continued)

For the membership service, the Group
provides exclusive customer services to VIP
members selected by Central China Real Estate
Limited (“CCRE") and its subsidiaries (the “CCRE
Group”). The Group bills CCRE a management
fee based on the number of members and
additional fees for organizing special events.

Lifestyle services

Lifestyle services mainly includes travel
services, sales of goods and provision of
catering services.

For travel services, the Group provides short-
term self-operated tour service. Revenue from
tours is recognised over time in accounting
period in which the control of services is
transferred to the customer because the
customer simultaneously receives and
consumes benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as it performs. Payment is usually
made to the Group before the customers
receive the tour services.

The Group determines the presentation of its
revenue by assessing whether it acts as the
principal of the services that are rendered. The
Group presents its revenue on a gross basis
(that is, the amount billed to the users) as the
Group acts as a principal by pre-purchasing the
travel related products from the travel service
suppliers. The purchase payments to the travel
suppliers are recorded as “cost of revenue” in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Lifestyle services (Continued)

172

(c)

The Group procures merchandise from
suppliers and sells goods directly to the
property owners online and in community.
Sales of goods are recognised when the Group
delivers the goods to the customers. The Group
presents the revenue on a net basis when the
Group acts as an agent with no control over the
goods and does not assume inventory risk.

The Group operates the food court to provide
catering services. Revenue from provision of
catering services are recognised at a point in
time when the food and beverage are delivered
to the customers.

Commercial property management and
consultation services

Commercial property management and
consultation services includes hotel
management and operation services and
management for agricultural and cultural
tourism projects and commercial real estate
operation.

The Group recognises the fee received or
receivable as its revenue over time in the period
in which the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the
services performed by the Group and all the
related management costs as its cost of
services.

If contracts involve the sale of multiple services, the
transaction price allocated to each performance
obligation based on their relative stand-alone selling
prices. If the stand-alone selling prices are not directly
observable, they are estimated based on expected
cost plus a margin or adjusted market assessment
approach, depending on the availability of observable
information.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Fk S A=A -

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

2.21

When either party to a contract has performed, the
Group presents the contract in the balance sheet as a
contract asset or a contract liability, depending on
the relationship between the Group’s performance
and the customer’s payment.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for services that the Group has
transferred to a customer.

If @ customer pays consideration or the Group has a
right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional, before the Group transfers services to
the customer, the Group presents the contract as a
contract liability when the payment is received or a
receivable is recorded (whichever is earlier). A
contract liability is the Group’s obligation to transfer
services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an
unconditional right to consideration. A right to
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration
is due.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is
included in the net fair value gains/(losses) on these
assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
calculated using the effective interest method, except
for those are held for cash management purposes, is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as “other income”.
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174

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Interest income (Continued)
Interest income is presented as finance income
where it is earned from financial assets that are held
for cash management purposes, see Note 8 below.

2.22 Leases
The Group as a lessee
The Group leases various properties. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased
assets may not be used as security of borrowing
purpose.

Lease is recognised as a right-of-use asset (Note 23)
and corresponding liability at the date of which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line
basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

(@ fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that are based on an
index or a rate;

(c) amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

(d) the exercise price of a purchase option if the

lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

Central China New Life Limited / 2021 Annual Report

FBESBAARE T )

2 EBEARETHRBE @

2.21 FEWA (&)

FIERcEERENERMEEMSGH
BUWAWE 25 A E WA (BT XMW
8) °

2228

AEEEREAMEA
AEEHERENE - HEGRFIRIE
ERIERBERETE B2 FETRE
fBRR R MGk 1 - & p 5 3 B AT S E ]
R BEHEEETHRERERR
EENE

AEEEMEEENHEERNE R
KEHERRLEMEEE(HE23) M
HENEE SEHENFHERRE
HERERA BN - BMEKARE
EHRAEETIG - UEHSHE
BEEHRNETEERNE - EREE
EEHERRRERANE

HEELNEERABNFZRER
E-HEGERFEUTHENKEN
FERE

@ RBEMKBRELEEMNR
FORR (E AT FE Y O FH ERRD

by EREHILERNHAEZBEEN

TA

i

© TEMHBABEARBSRERER
TR

d) BEERERNITEENAEA
EEETSTEXEER) &



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Leases (Continued) 2.22 HE (&)

2 EBEAREITHERBE @

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(e) payment of penalties for terminating of the
lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

(@ where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as a
starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing
was received

(b)  uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, which does not have
recent third party financing, and

(c) makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Leases (Continued)

2 EBEARETHERBE@

2.22 HE (#)

176

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

(@ the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received,

() anyinitial direct cost; and
(d) restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over
the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying
asset's useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all
leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less. Low-value assets comprise staff
dormitories and small items of office furniture.
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Leases (Continued) 2.22 HE (&)

2 EBEAREITHERBE @

The Group as a sublease lessor

Sub-lease is a transaction for which an underlying
asset is re-leased by a lessee (“sublease lessor”) to a
third party, and the lease (“head lease”) between the
head lessor and lessee remains in effect. In classifying
a sublease, a sublease lessor shall classify the
sublease as a finance lease or an operating lease as
follows:

(@ If the head lease is a short-term lease that the
entity, as a lessee, has accounted for the lease
payments associated with those leases as an
expense on either a straight-line basis over the
lease term or another systematic basis, the
sublease shall be classified as an operating
lease.

(b)  Otherwise, the sublease shall be classified by
referenced to the right-of-use asset arising from
the head lease as finance lease or operating
lease.

2.23 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no
longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the
end of the reporting period but not distributed at the
end of the reporting period.

2.24 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.25 Earnings per share

178

(i)

(ii)

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing:

the profit attributable to shareholders of
the Company, excluding any costs of
servicing equity other than ordinary
shares

by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during
the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

the after-income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

the weighted average number of
additional ordinary shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

3.1 Financial risk factors
3.1.1 Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

Currency risk as defined by HKFRS 7 arises
on financial assets and financial liabilities
being denominated in a currency that is
not the functional currency and being of a
monetary nature. Therefore non-monetary
financial assets and financial liabilities,
monetary financial assets and financial
liabilities denominated in the entity’s
functional currency and differences
resulting from the translation of financial
statements of overseas entities into the
Group’s presentation currency are not
taken into consideration for the purpose of
the sensitivity analysis for currency risk.

The Group has not entered into any
forward exchange contract to hedge its
exposure to foreign exchange risk. The
Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
for certain monetary financial assets and
financial liabilities being denominated in a
currency that is not the functional
currency as follows:
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Exposure to foreign currencies

Fh itk = b
As at 31 December
®W12A31H
2021 2020
20214 2020 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFr ARKFT
Monetary assets denominated in -~ AR FFEIUARE
RMB held by the Company FSMEMEREE
— Cash and cash equivalents —HekBEeEEY 33,799 1,892
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The following table shows the sensitivity
analysis of a 5% change in the respective
functional currency against the relevant
foreign currencies. The sensitivity analysis
includes only foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the year-end for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates. If there
is a 5% increase/(decrease) in the
functional currency against the relevant
currencies, the effect of increase/
(decrease) in the profit before income tax
for the year is as follows:
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As at 31 December

M12H831H
2021 2020
2021 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFIT AREFT
5% increase in HK$ against RMB & T A REEFE 5% (1,690) (95)
5% decrease in HK$ against RMB B T A REEEZ (B 5% 1,690 95
As at 31 December 2021, the financial HN2021E 128318 » JAZE
assets denominated in US$ were mainly TEHENSMEETER
held by the oversea group entities, whose BHINEETEEZE HI
functional currency is HK$. The BeE M AT BB ER
management considers that foreign B 3ETT H B TT Y AN E R B
exchange risk of US$ against HK$ was I 7~ 2 K (20204 12 A 31
insignificant (31 December 2020: same). B : f8R) -
Cash flow and fair value interest rate (i) BERERAIAEBEFE
risk ezl

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises
from cash and cash equivalents with
variable rates and senior notes with fixed
rate, which expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk and fair value interest
rate risk, respectively. The directors of the
Company do not anticipate there is any
significant impact to the Group's
performance resulted from the changes
in interest rates, because the interest
rates of bank balances are not expected
to change significantly and the discount
impact on the fair value of the senior
notes is quite limited.
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its trade receivables, contract assets, note
receivables, other receivables, financial assets
at FVPL, restricted cash and cash deposits at
banks. The carrying amounts of trade
receivables, contract assets, note receivables,
other receivables, financial assets at FVPL,
restricted cash and cash deposits at banks
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to financial assets.

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. To assess whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It
considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

— internal credit rating
— external credit rating

— actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant change to the debitor’s
ability to meet its obligations

— actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of the debitor

— significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the
debitor, including changes in the payment
status of debitors in the Group and
changes in the operating results of the
debitor.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 H¥EREKRER®
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBERHE)
3.1.2Credit risk 31.2ERE
The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to AEBHEREER S RIGK
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2Credit risk (Continued)
The Group accounts for its credit risk by
appropriately providing for expected credit
losses on a timely basis. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers
historical loss rates for each category of
receivables and adjusts for forward looking
macroeconomic data.

(i)

(ii)

Cash deposits at banks (including
restricted cash)

The Group expects that there is no
significant credit risk associated with cash
deposits at banks (including restricted
cash) since they are substantially
deposited at state-owned banks and
other medium or large-sized listed banks.
Management does not expect that there
will be any significant losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.

Trade receivables, note receivables and
contract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables and
contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables, note receivables and
contract assets have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due. The contract assets
relate to unbilled work in progress and
have substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade receivables
for the same types of contracts. The
Group has therefore concluded that the
expected loss rates for trade receivables
are a reasonable approximation of the
loss rates for the contract assets.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Trade receivables, note receivables and
contract assets (Continued)

The expected credit losses also
incorporate forward looking information
on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the
receivables. The Group has identified the
most relevant factors for customers in
different industries (e.g. money supply,
Consumer Price Index and Producer Price
Index), and accordingly adjusts the
historical loss rates based on expected
changes in these factors.

Trade receivables and contract assets
have been assessed for impairment on a
collective basis based on different credit
risk characteristics. Trade receivables and
contract assets are categorised as follows
for assessment purpose:

Group 1: Trade receivables due from third
parties — property owners

Group 2: Trade receivables and contract
assets due from third parties — property
developers

Group 3: Trade receivables due from third

parties — non-property developers

Group 4: Trade receivables and contract
assets due from related parties
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. HMEEMER®
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBEREE &)
3.1.2Credit risk (Continued) 31.2ERE (&)
(i) Trade receivables, note receivables and (i) EBZEWHE  BRERE
contract assets (Continued) REHNEE (&)

(@ On that basis, the loss allowance @@ BWmE - R20214F
as at 31 December 2021 was 2R3 BHE
determined as follows for both trade WHIERENEEN
receivables and contract assets: BERGEERT -

Upto 180 days 1t02 2t03 3to4  Overd

180 days to 1year years years years years Total
THA 180 %
180%F F1FE 1FE2F 25Z3F 3EF4FE AFNE wst

Group 1: N
Trade receivables &5 EWHKE
Gross carrying amount  BEEIA(E

(RMB000) (AE%TFr) 116,363 75847 63,023 27,233 10,228 9,917 302,611
Expected loss rate BHEEX 4.13% 4.13% 8.62%  12.64%  24.68%  62.64%
Loss allowance BERE

provision (RMB'000) (AR Fr) (4,801)  (3,129) (5435  (3,443)  (2,524)  (6,212) (25,544)

Group 2: BH2:
Trade receivables &5 EWKE
Gross carryingamount  BEEI4A(E

(RMB'000) (ARKFIT) 148629 35181 24,106 6,441 482 34 214,873
Expected loss rate EHEER 3.53% 3.75%  20.04%  43.46% 100% 100%

Loss allowance EEEE

provision RMB000)  (AR#%TF) (5245)  (1,320)  (4,830)  (2,800) (482) (34) (14,711)

Contract assets ANEE
Gross carryingamount  BEEI42(E

(RMB'000) (AREFT) 2,573
Expected loss rate EHEEX 1.65%
Loss allowance BEREE

provision RMB'000)  (AR%F) (43)
Group 3: A3

Trade receivables  EZEKFE
Gross carrying amount  FEEIZ&(E

(RMB'000) (AREF) 78,394 33,146 26,160 2,647 - - 140,347
Expected loss rate RHEEX 4.93% 5.14%  25.51% 100% 100% 100%
Loss allowance EiEERE

provision RMB'000)  (AR%Fir) (3,862)  (1,704)  (6,673)  (2,647) - - (14,886)

Contract assets EHEE
Gross carryingamount  EREAE

(RMB'000) (AREFT) 601
Expected loss rate BHEEX 1.66%
Loss allowance FiEAE

provision RMB'000)  (AR%Fr) (10)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Trade receivables, note receivables and
contract assets (Continued)

@)

On that basis, the loss allowance
as at 31 December 2021 was
determined as follows for both trade
receivables and contract assets:
(Continued)

3 HEEBRER@®)

3.1 B¥RMEZE)
31.2ERE (F)
(i) EZEWE-  EREE
REWEE (&)
(@ B E © KR20214F
12A318 & 5 &
WHRIEREHNEER
EEBHETOT
(%)

Up to
180 days
TR
180

180 days 1t02 2t03 3to4d Over4

to 1 year years years years years Total
180 X
185 1ER2F 265Z3% 3IER4E  AENL st

Group 4: @nla:
Trade receivables &5 EKFE
Gross carrying amount  BEE4A(E

(RMB'000) (AREF)
Expected loss rate BHERE
Loss allowance EiERE

provision RMB'000)  (AR#F7T)

Contract assets AREE
Gross carrying amount  BRE 41

(RMB'000) (AREF)
Expected loss rate TRHEER
Loss allowance FiERE

provision RMB'000) (AR F7T)

Total

1,137,223
2.58%

(29,327)

21,312
2.55%

(544)

As at 31 December 2021, the
management considered the
credit risk associated with note
receivables was insignificant.

R2021F12 4318 -
EIRERE  HEIR
ZEEENEERR
B o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

(o)

FBESBAARE T )

3 HXEBER@
3.1 B¥REMREZE#E)
3.1.2ERE (&)
Trade receivables, note receivables and (i) BZEWEIE. ERERE
contract assets (Continued) REHEE (&)
As at 31 December 2020, the loss (b) 2020127318 -
allowance provision for the trade B S EWGIENEE
receivables was determined as BEETIT - AR
follows. The expected credit losses MIEREEEENE
below also incorporated forward A RTIE B R -
looking information.
Upto 180 180 days 1102 2t03 3tod4  Overd
days  to1year years years years years Total
T2l 180K
180K Z1FE  1R2F  2Z3F  3FLF  BBELE it
Group 1: Fi: N
Trade receivables  EZEWHE
Gross carryingamount  EEEIAE
(RMB'000) (AREFTT) 66,608 39,405 35,014 15,091 9,203 5307 170,628
Expected loss rate EHERER 4.65% 465%  1010%  14.81%  3103%  68.94%
Loss allowance BERE
provision RMB000) (AR F7T) (309%) (1832  (3538)  (2236)  (28%) (3659 (17,217
Group 2: aR2:
Trade receivables  E3EWHE
Gross carrying amount  BEE4A(E
(RMB000) (AREFT) 86,177 7,480 13,147 546 50 - 107,400
Expected loss rate BHEER 0.89% 0.75% 525%  11.54%  24.00% 100%
Loss allowance EERE
provision RMB'000)  (AR¥Fr) (766) (56) (690) 63) (12) - (1,587)
Group 3: AR3:
Trade receivables & ZEKFE
Gross carryingamount  BEEI421E
(RMB000) (AREFT) 43315 15496 4,669 = = - 63510
Expected loss rate EHEER 0.75% 0.76% 5.25% 100% 100% 100%
Loss allowance FREEE
provision RMB'000) (AR Fr) (323) 117) (245) = = - (685)
Total
@it
Group 4: Aanla:
Trade receivables  EZEWHE
Gross carryingamount  BEEIAE
(RMB'000) (AREFTT) 859,368
Expected loss rate BHERE 1.08%
Loss allowance BEREE
provision RMB'000)  (AR#Ft) (9,286)

As at 31 December 2020, the
management considered the credit
risk associated with contract assets
and note receivables was
insignificant.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. HKEARERE @
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBREZEE)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 31.21ERk (&)
(iii)  Other receivables (i) HAbEKFIE

A summary of the assumptions 2 & B A b jE W R IE TR HA
underpinning the Group’s expected credit FEEBBREREAMBENR
loss model for other receivables is as BB (N
follows:

Basis for recognition of expected

Category Group definition of category credit loss provision

il AEEHERERNESR ERRHEEFRRENESR

Performing (“Stage 17) Customers have a low risk of default 12 months expected losses. Where the
and a strong capacity to meet expected lifetime of an asset is less
contractual cash flows than 12 months, expected losses are

measured at its expected lifetime
("12 months ECL method”)

ER(E18&]) RPENERE BAEIREAH 12EANENER - HRERFEHE
Reng REAZKENERE @ B EBRER
HREFENTE (12 AREEE
BRE])
Underperforming (“Stage 2")  Receivables for which there is a Lifetime expected losses

significant increase in credit risk; as
significant increase in credit risk is
presumed if interest and/or principal
repayments are 30 days past due

B (15208 )) FERBRBZEMOBYIE  WHE Z2HEEESR
R/ BAEETEEOK - AT
EERBEZELM

Non-performing (“Stage 3") Interest and/or principal repayments Lifetime expected losses

are 90 days past due
TR(E3BE)) FIEB R/ SAEEFAIHOK ZHEHER
On that basis, as at 31 December 2021 UL E - R20205F &k
and 2020, the loss allowance provision for 2021912 A31H - HibfE
the other receivables was determined as WHIERBEREE TN
follows. The expected credit losses below T A THEHEERSE
also incorporated forward looking TNE A ARIREEE R o

information.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

FBESBAARE T )

B E B IR ()

3.1 MBEREE )
3.1.2 5 EEE (4)

188

(i)  Other receivables (Continued) (i) EMpEWKRIE ()
Non-
Performing performing Total
E® R st
As at 31 December 2021 #2021%512831H
Gross carrying amount REAE
(RMB’000) (AR%Fr) 388,642 100,000 488,642
Expected loss rate TEHEEE R 1.94% 38.60%
Loss allowance provision B
(RMB'000) (ARMFT) (7,525) (38,600) (46,125)
As at 31 December 2020 20204128 31H
Gross carrying amount FHAE
(RMB’000) (AR%Fr) 62,673 - 62,673
Expected loss rate TBHiE R R 1.53% =
Loss allowance provision BERE
(RMB’000) (AR®FT) (956) = (956)
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the R2021F K% 20204 12 A
loss allowance provision for trade and 318 - B 5 KHMEWRK
other receivables reconciles to the HREEREREFEYEE
opening loss allowance for that provision BBLHRNAT -
as follows:
Trade
receivables
and contract Other
assets receivables Total
B S EWRIE
REHWEE HtEWFE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKFT ARKFT AR¥TFT
As at 1 January 2020 72020518 1H 13,328 1,145 14,473
Netimpairment losseson & @EERERE
financial assets e 15,447 (189) 15,258
As at 31 December 2020 420204 12A31H 28,775 956 29,731
As at 1 January 2021 #2021%181H 28,775 956 29,731
Netimpairment losseson £ @A ERERE
financial assets e 56,330 45,169 101,499
Receivables written off F M EE AT
during the year as K FEGR IR
uncollectible (40) - (40)
As at 31 December 2021 }42021%12 8318 85,065 46,125 131,190
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Other receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables, and contract assets
are written off where there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst
others, the failure of a debtor to engage in
a repayment plan with the Group, and a
failure to make contractual payments.

Impairment losses on trade receivables
and contract assets are presented as net
impairment losses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against
the same line item.

Debt investments

The Group is also exposed to credit risk in
relation to debt investments that are
measured at FVPL. The maximum
exposure at the end of the reporting
period is the carrying amount of these
investments amounting to RMB50,413,000
(31 December 2020: RMB83,256,000).

By} Y5 ¥ 2R BfU 5

B BAARE T T

3 HEEBRER@®)

3.1 FRERREZE#E)
31.2ERpkE (&)

(i)

(iv)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

FBESBAARE T )

3 HEEMER @)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBREZEE)
3.1.3 Liquidity risk 3.1.3 B A
To manage the liquidity risk, the Group monitors EEERERGRE  KEBEEK
and maintains a level of cash and cash HIEEEERAABRENR S LRSS
equivalents deemed adequate by the ZBYKE  UEAKRERHEER
management to finance the Group’s operations HES  UERERESEENSELSD
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash o
flows.
The table below analyses the Group’s financial TREBEBESREHARG THBEEESYD
liabilities into relevant maturity grouping based IEHBMSN $rEENEmEaE
on the remaining period at the end of each DAEBIHABERN . TRAAKREZ
reporting period to the contractual maturity SHEAEHARBRBERE -
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Between  Between
Less than 1and 2 and
1year 2 years 5 years Total
THB1F 122F 2Z5% @st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBFT ARBEFT ARBFT AREFT
As at 31 December 2021 42021412831 H
Financial liabilities eRBE
Trade and other payables &5 K& H i e 208
(excluding accrued payroll  (T"BIEEFHFE R
and other taxes payables)  E A FEAF ) 898,798 20,877 1,457 921,132
Lease liabilities HE&E 30,037 14,406 9,021 53,464
928,835 35,283 10,478 974,596
As at 31 December 2020 202012 A31H
Financial liabilities cREE
Trade and other payables & 5 R EfhfE 58
(excluding accrued payroll  (TBiEEFFHE M
and other taxes payables) — E-fhE & ) 653,890 - - 653,890
Lease liabilities HEAE 11,376 9,596 1,421 22,393
665,266 9,596 1,421 676,283
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Fk S A=A -

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.2 Capital management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the asset-
liability ratio. This ratio is calculated as total liabilities
divided by total assets.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020 asset-liability ratio
of the Group is as follows:

By} Y5 ¥ 2R BfU 5

B BAARE T T

3 HEEBRER@®)

3.2 BEAXEE
AEBEZERNEREE EREAEE R
BIREREN - M ABCERIEH @R -

REMFHEFTRMNEGE  LHERIER
B E RIS DABR AR B AN AS ©

REFRFBREANRE - NEER 6
EHERNTHRRZBESRE - BT
A E & E AR ET -

AEEZEERBL REREEITER
AR B BRBRIABERERE

#H E2021F K2020F 12 A31H » &
SEMNEEABLERNT :

As at 31 December

R12B31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
Asset-liability ratio BEAGBHEE 39% 36%
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B} Y5 ¥ = BY 5

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (kBB - A S EAARE T L)
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HBEREE@®
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AREEME
(a) Fair value hierarchy (@ AK[REEER
This section explains the judgements and ARG 7 TE B ISR R AR A
estimates made in determining the fair values REEERARTENSRITADN
of the financial instruments that are recognised RN EE R AT L 89 # B K
and measured at fair value in the financial e ASEEEAABEMER
statements. To provide an indication about the ABENAEREEEZ A58
reliability of the inputs used in determining fair BRIESHENBEERTES A
value, the Group has classified its financial =g - FERMHAHNTE o
instruments into the three levels prescribed
under the accounting standards. An explanation
of each level follows underneath the table.
As at 31 December 2021 Level 1 Level 3 Total
M2021%E12H318 E—EBR H=ZEBR et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARKEFT
Financial assets at FVPL DAREBESELTTA
BEENERMEE
Wealth management products 281 & & - 5,043 5,043
Senior notes BAEZEE 50,413 - 50,413
50,413 5,043 55,456
As at 31 December 2020 Level 1 Level 3 Total
MR2020%F12 A31H EF—ER E=EL st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFIT AREFIT ARKFT
Financial assets at FVPL DA REESENEFA
Wealth management products  ¥2 & & — 383,785 383,785
Senior notes BEER 83,256 - 83,256
83,256 383,785 467,041
The fair value of financial instruments that are WIFRERMBEBZERTENR
not traded in an active market is determined by ANEERBEERTNERE
using valuation techniques.
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Fk S A=A -

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
The different levels have been defined as
follows:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets (such as publicly
traded derivatives, and equity securities) is
based on quoted market prices at the end of
the reporting period. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Group is
the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data
and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs
is not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is the case
for wealth management products.

The Group's financial assets at FVPL included
wealth management products and senior notes,
fair value of which are estimated based on
unobservable inputs (level 3) or obtained from
quoted market prices (level 1) respectively.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2
and 3 for recurring fair value measurements
during the year. For transfers into and out of
level 3 measurements see (b) below.

B} 55 R 22 B 5

B BAARE T T

3 HEEMER@®)

3.3 DABEMS(H)

(a)

BENEERRLR/ B —F5R

RAEEER (&)
TREBZEFEWT

F—EL HERMSEENS
BMTAMAREEMNITETLAR
RBRAESR) ORA R BERE®R
HHRMTISRETR - NER
BENESREENTSREAS
HERE ZSIAFASE—E
& o

F_ER: WHNERNHEE
e TA(WEIMIETR)Y
DA BEFRBAEERNET @ %
FHERMEENAABEMS
BEMERDRBEERBNEE MG
ite WAt E—2RMTANAAE
ErFERAEERRE AR B
2R MZEmMIAIAZ_fE

FZER  M—EXZEEKRE
AL IERIFAIER T 5 EE - Al
ZEBMTAINAE=ER - 15
BHERNER

AEBURREEFELEES)
AAAEHEaNEREERERE
MERNMELRE  EQREE
DRERTABRGAE(FE=
BA) LT HERE(E—BR)
275 -

FR BEUELREBEFEZS
— ZREZERZEIEEE -
FRE=-ERMENBALRE
o E2ETX(D) -

193



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ¥5 ¥k 2R Bl 51

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Br ZEHAIN - B BEUAREFITE)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 WiEEMEE@
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREEMT(HE)
(b)  The following table presents the changes in by X275 E E2021F 2020 F
level 3 instruments for the year ended 31 ZAJNBLEFEMNE=HRITA
December 2021 and 2020. RS -

Year ended 31 December
BZ12H318LLFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETTT ARKTT

Wealth management products B EM
Opening balance AR AE 4 383,785 1,530
Additions NE 877,361 2,044,001
Gains recognised in profit or loss RiBm R 5,905 4,187
Disposals e (1,262,008) (1,665,933)
Closing balance HiR & 8R 5,043 383,785
() Quantitative information about fair value © BHREBEATUBRGAE
measurements using significant unobservable (BF=ER)NAREBEFENT
inputs (Level 3) is as follow: EERIOT ¢
Valuation Financial assets Range of
Unobservable input  technique(s) at FVPL unobservable inputs
UAREBEFEL
T BRH A& B FFABERENEMEE TR B A BEEE
As at 31 December
®12H31H
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 4
Expected interest rate Discounted cash Wealth management 2.69% 2%-5%
per annum flow products
TE BR 4 ) 2 BLIRIR BN B Em
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(c) (Continued)

Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair
value: the higher of expected rate of return, the
higher the fair value.

The Group manages the valuation of level 3
instruments for financial reporting purpose on a
case by case basis. At least once every
reporting year, the Group would assess the fair
value of the Group’s level 3 instruments by
using valuation techniques.

If the fair values of the financial assets at FVPL
held by the Group had been 5% higher/lower,
the profit before income tax for the year ended
31 December 2021 would have been
approximately RMB2,773,000 higher/lower
(2020: RMB23,352,000 higher/lower).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom
equal the actual results. Management also needs to
exercise judgement in applying the Group’s accounting
policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that may have a
financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

B E b IR ()

3.3 DAREEME (&)
o (&)

—_

TAIEE AEEQ BB
& AHEREES  AAEE
ﬁilﬂ°

AEEBI SR RE MIRZAR
BRERE=-BRTANME -
REERRFE  AKEE2 8
ER{BERTEHEE=BRTA
MRS BEETT RS

HAEEZTENUANRAEBETEZE
Wt AIBENEREENR
I, /5% B E= 20214
12A3MBIEFENRGTAER
AT A& 80,5 A AR
2,773,000 7 (2020 4F = 3 0,38
b AR #23,352,0007T) °

4 EXEGHEERAER

B BRERAFRALEET 0 mMEFHHE
BARLVABBRER - - EEENHNE
AARSENEFTBERRERHE N -

8 R AR B R R R R X
(AT aHEBERH S SR EEN
R TR A AR R RE O M
BARP -
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (continued)

196

(a)

(b)

Expected credit losses on receivables and
contract assets

The Group makes allowances on receivables and
contract assets based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The Group used
judgment in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
past collection history, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of trade and other receivables and contract
assets, as well as doubtful debt expenses in the
periods in which such estimate has been changed.
For details of the key assumptions and inputs used,
see Note 3.1.2 above.

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the
PRC. Judgment is required in determining the amount
of the provision for taxation and the timing of
payment of the related taxations. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Fk S A=A -

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

Estimation of goodwill impairment

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Determining whether goodwill is
impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable
amount of cash-generated units to which goodwill
has been allocated, which is the higher of the value in
use or fair value less costs of disposal. The calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from cash-generated units and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, or change in facts and
circumstances which results in downward revision of
future cash, a material impairment loss/further
impairment loss may arise.

Estimation of the useful life of customer
relationship identified in business
combination

Customer relationship identified in the business
combination (Note 28) on respective acquisition date
is recognised as intangible assets (Note 15). Customer
relationship primarily related to the existing contracts
of acquirees on the acquisition date. A large portion
of the existing contracts of acquirees are with no
specific expiration date. Based on past experience,
termination or non-renewal of property management
contracts with the property developers or property
owners’ association are uncommon. The Group thus
estimates the useful life and determines the
amortisation period of the customer relationship to
be ten years based on the expected contract duration
of the property management contracts.

By} Y5 ¥ 2R BfU 5

B BAARE T T

4 EBEXEEHEF AR =)

(c)

(d)

BENEERRLR/ B —F5R

BB R E T
BEEEFETRENAXES K
BRRE BN REER AR
5B R S SR M TR E R H - B
EEDHEBBFELBER  FEMAR
EnEkEEENREeELEGHNA KD
2 IEREERXARBERER
EEATHRSE ETERALNE
B AR ELABLUMF R
KEERE TFEREHBREIA
AERE- HERRAKEZREIR
BEHzeBAAEEMBERLRES
EYARKRE T AAIEELEEAXN
HEREE—REESE -

RBAGPRINE S BROTE
GESS T

RAEEKERREBEHPHINE
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (continued)

198

(d)

Estimation of the useful life of customer
relationship identified in business
combination (Continued)

However, the actual useful life may be shorter or
longer than estimate, depending on acquirees’ ability
to secure its contracts and relationships with property
developers or renew the contracts with property
owners’ associations in the future. Where the actual
contract duration is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of the intangible assets of customer
relationship and the amortisation expenses in the
periods in which such estimate has been changed.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the CODM. The CODM,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segment, has been identified
as the executive directors of the Company.

The CODM examines the Group's performance from service
line perspective and has identified three reportable
segments of its business:

Property management and value-added services: this
part of business provides property management
services of residential properties and commercial
properties, and related value-added services,
including consultancy services to property
developers, community value-added services,
intelligent community services, Central China
Consumer Club and real estate marketing services.

Lifestyle services: this part of business primarily
comprises tourism services, sales of goods and
provision of catering services.

Commercial property management and consultation
services: this part of business primarily comprises
provision of hotel management services and
management for agricultural and cultural tourism
projects and commercial real-estate operation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

By} Y5 ¥ 2R BfU 5

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The Group mainly operates its businesses in the PRC and
earns substantially all of the revenues from external
customers attributed to the PRC. As at 31 December 2021,
substantially all of the non-current assets of the Group
were located in the PRC. Therefore, no geographical
segments are presented.

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating
segments mainly based on the measure of operating profit
excluding other income, other (losses)/gains-net and
finance income-net which are not directly related to the
segment performance (“segment results”).

(@) Segment results
Segment results also excludes the effects of
significant items of expenditure which may have an
impact on the quality of earnings such as central
administration costs and listing expenses.

Interest income and finance cost are not allocated to
segments, as this type of activity is driven by the
central treasury function, which manages the cash
position of the Group.

SERE R (4)
AEEXEEFEMARER - BHBRIHS
WARERBEIINBERS - HE20215F12 A
31H AREEBAILSH 3F//|b@§?1_ﬂ5/\¢'
B o At 2 51 IR 55 &
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(&18), W F 8RR E WA FRERATH A
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SWEN @
(a) Segment results (Continued) (@) DEHEE(E)
The segment results and the reconciliation with profit DER %= T B R E R AT E A Y
before income tax are as follows: BRINE -
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZ2021F12A31HILEE
Commercial
Property property
management management
and and
value-added Lifestyle  consultation
services services services Group
NMEEER HMEEEEER
BERY E£ERY BHAR% KB

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT  AREFT  ARETn  ARETR

Segment revenue AEIA 3,128,585 542,121 152,220 3,822,926
Inter-segment revenue A EEYA (87,794) (135,131) (1,083) (224,008)
Revenue from external REIMFE P EIUA

customers 3,040,791 406,990 151,137 3,598,918

Timing of revenue recognition U A BERR

— atapoint in time —RERHEH 774,769 337,968 23,010 1,135,747

—over time — R RS 2,266,022 69,022 128,127 2,463,171
Segment results PEEE 670,286 159,420 31,802 861,508
Other income HiplA 34,519
Other losses-net LhEETE (15,162)
Unallocated operating costs KA ERBEM A (66,970)
Finance income — net HEWAFE 12,159
Profit before income tax ST AIME 826,054
Income tax expenses RS (172,666)
Profit for the year FNFE 653,388
Depreciation e 34,271 3,958 2,167 40,396
Amortisation B 15,963 1,572 - 17,535
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 9IERE @)
Segment results (Continued) (@) P& (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZE2020F12A31HILLEE
Commercial
Property property
management management
and and
value-added Lifestyle consultation
Services services Services Group
MEERR BEEEEER
EERSE HE R HARE T5E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETT ARBTFT ARBTT
Segment revenue AEWA 2,383,564 438,813 100,013 2,922,390
Inter-segment revenue DEREBMA (185,024) (72431) (10,436) (267,891)
Revenue from contracts with REEPA Nz e
customers 2,198,540 366,382 89,577 2,654,499
Timing of revenue recognition KARRER
—atapointin time — RE-KR% 717,109 288,566 12,167 1,017,842
— over time — R R 1,481,431 77816 77410 1,636,657
Segment results PEEE 511,385 71,068 9.986 592,439
Other income At A 17,547
Other gains-net A AFE 6,546
Unallocated operating costs RARBERA (73,266)
Finance income-net BERAFHE 13643
Profit before income tax from REBECEEBHAERAT
continuing operations i 556,909
Income tax expenses RS (116,165)
Profit for the year FRFE 440,704
Depreciation ik 17,389 2,074 1,652 21,115
Amortisation 3 3,563 1,527 - 5,090

BENEERRLR/ B —F5R
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

202

(b)

Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets and liabilities are measured in the
same way as in the consolidated financial statements.
These assets and liabilities are allocated based on the
operations of the segment.

Investments in financial assets that are managed by
the treasury function are not considered to be
segment assets. These are investments in wealth
management products and senior notes that are
classified as at FVPL.

The following is the analysis of the Group's segment
assets and liabilities:

As at 31 December 2021

5

FBESBAARE T )

DEREF (@)

(b)

DHEERAE
DEBERABREEMBREMAT
HMRTAFE ZRFEERABRD
MEREBERETOR

B GREERPFIEENEREEN
BRETWE RN HEE - HEMEM®
MREARBENRERDBERNARLE
BEFFEX At AR -

ATRAEENDHMEERAEND
#r

720215128318

Commercial

Property property

management management

and value- and

added Lifestyle  consultation
services services services  Eliminations Group

NEERR BEBERER
RERE EERE RS B piN-1C)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETZ
Segment assets PEEE 4,548,473 374,318 110,630 (489,973) 4,543,448

Unallocated cashand cash ~ RABRE KR SED
equivalents 394,638
Deferred income tax assets ~ ERFTEHEE 43,438
Financial assets at FVPL AARBEFEVAL

BHEREE 55,456
Total assets BEE 5,036,980
Segment liabilities AHEE (2,090,243) (82,887) (71,309) 439,973 (1,754,466)
Deferred income tax liabilities  ERFTEHEE (26,639)
Current income tax liabilities ~ RVERFTEHEE (199,347)
Total liabilities BaE (1,980,452)
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 9IERE @)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) (b) sBEEREE (&)
As at 31 December 2020 M 2020612 A31H
Commercial
Property property
Mmanagement Mmanagement
and value- and
added Lifestyle  consultation
services Services Services Eliminations Group
MEERR BEEEEER
RERE EERE R B F£E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Segment assets DHEE 2,781,460 239,728 74,287 (269,549) 2,825,926
Unallocated cashandcash ~ RPERE R SEY
equivalents 946,263
Deferred income tax assets  EIEFGHEE 10,749
Financial assets at FVPL AAABEEL AR
BNEREE 467,041
Total assets BEE 4,249,979
Segment liabilities AHAE (1,553,985 97,131) (51,177) 269,549 (1432,744)
Deferred income tax liabilities  EEFTETHEE (3977)
Current income tax liabiliies ~ SMEFTGHEE (95,908)
Total liabilities Bafk (1,532,629)
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SWEN @
(c) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts () REEFEFANZWZDE
with customers
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods REBUTEEZRBEERBIED R
and services over time and at a point in time in the RNE—EESERERNMRIEMELE
following major service lines: MU s

Year ended 31 December
BZ12H318LLFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARKTT

Property management and related e YSAREN El) oS

services 1,680,469 1,097,399
Installation and decoration services %2 K SRS 439,300 347,308
Sales of goods BEmiEE 431,759 312,039
Commission income el A 423,520 347,583
Consulting services RS 277,591 284,564
Commercial property management  BEEEEE M AARE

and consultation services income WA 148,209 84,930
Membership managementincome & 8&EUA 70,468 94,378
Travel service income PR 22 AR A UL 60,135 54,810
Others B 67,467 31,488

3,598,918 2,654,499
For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, A =20214F K2020E12 B31H IE &
revenues from CCRE Group contributed 28% and 38% B KREREEENKRADBIEARE
of the Group's revenue, respectively. Other than the EU A B 28% K 38% o (B EE )
CCRE Group, the Group has a large number of REFSHAEASHEMER - HAi]
customers, none of whom contributed 10% or more M EE TR AL A EE KA
of the Group's revenue. 10% A = o
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEEN@
(d) Assets and liabilities related to contracts (d HEFEHNEHEMNEEREE
with customers
The Group has recognised the following assets and REFBDHER NVEERPENBEBN
liabilities related to contracts with customers: BENEE:

As at 31 December

MW12A318
2021 2020
20214 2020 FF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥FT ARETT

Contract assets EREE
Current contract assets MENGHEE 24,486 3,817
Loss allowance (gt (597) -
Total contract assets BHEERTE 23,889 3,817
Contract liabilities BRHEE
Non-current FERE
Property management services W% E IR AR TS (86,574) (50,437)
Current nE
Property management and value- VB 1E RILE AR
added services (537,929) (420,645)
Lifestyle services AR IRTE (2,247) (3,031)
Commercial property management — BEEEEIE MK ARE
and consultation services (4,176) (171)
(544,352) (423,847)
Total contract liabilities SREBERE (630,926) (474,284)
(i)  Significant changes in contract liabilities () BHEEHNEAEZE
Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise REBEHABEEERBHAREMH
from the advance payments made by RIS B P S A R Z Fk T 5|
customers while the underlying services are yet B BEHAEENTTHERER
to be provided, and the increase of contract ES-BEE

liabilities was due to the business development
of property management.
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(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Fk BB BASN » FiE £ BAARE T L)
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEEN @)
(d) Assets and liabilities related to contracts (d HEEFENFAENEERER(H)

with customers (Continued)

(i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract
liabilities
The following table shows how much of the
revenue recognised in the current reporting
period relates to carried-forward contract
liabilities.

(i) BERREEZLHKA

TRITRE R HRE MR HER
WARD ZEBENAENERE
& o

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEEFE

2021 2020
20214 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFIT
Revenue recognised that was s ASHNEBEEA
included in the balance of HRENEER
contract liabilities at the ON
beginning of the year
Property management and value- #3538 I 12 E R 7%
added services 420,645 299,271
Lifestyle services HERTE 3,031 10,998
Commercial property management ¥ & EEIE N A ARSG
and consultation services 171 583
423,847 310,852
(iii) Unsatisfied performance obligations (iii) REITHEHZ
For property management services, the majority MYMEERRBEME - ABHE

of the contracts do not have a fixed term. For
commercial property management and
consultation services, the services are generally
set to expire when the counterparties notify the
Group that the services are no longer required.
The Group has elected the practical expedient
for not to disclose the remaining performance
obligations for these types of contracts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

By} Y5 ¥ 2R BfU 5

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

5 SDEEH @

(d) Assets and liabilities related to contracts (d) HEFENEBNEEREE(#E)
with customers (Continued)
(iii) Unsatisfied performance obligations (iii) KRBTHEH =K (F)
(Continued)
For part of the property management related FLER D Y X E IR B R ILER
value-added services, the Group recognises BmsE AEBRFASKBELEE
revenue in the amount that equals to the right BEAEZR UM A S A RER L 3
to invoice which corresponds directly with the EseiE HEAEBZS AL
value to the customer of the Group's MEAYHREFPHNEEEEY
performance to date, on a monthly basis or JE- AEBBERETRAMNERZ
settlement cycle. The Group has elected the it AR ARBEZEEIAY
practical expedient for not to disclose the BRI ERERT ©
remaining performance obligations for these
types of contracts.
For other property management related value- TEM Y EESIRERIEERE X
added services and lifestyle services, they are EERBME - ETREHAR
rendered in short period of time, which is #BEAE—F KEEDR
generally less than a year. The Group has BEANEE 2T UBHBAR
elected the practical expedient for not to BZERUANNFSBEOE
disclose the remaining performance obligations 7% o
for these type of contracts.
6 OTHER INCOME 6 HitlgA
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2021 2020
20214 2020 FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFIT
Government grants (Note (a)) BT B (K17 (@) 25,535 10,338
Value-added tax deductible (Note (b)) ARG E R (FaE (b)) 8,984 6,754
Interest income from loan to third parties BERFE=ZFHFBUA - 455
34,519 17,547

Government grants mainly consisted of financial
subsidies granted by the local governments. There
are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies
attached to the government grant recognised during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Value-added tax deductible mainly included additional
deduction of input value-added tax applicable to
certain subsidiaries.

BA#EERFEHBFE T8
B BL e B E2021FE 12 A31H IEF
& - BRI T 8 Bh I 4 BT A5 fa]

RARBITE RIS B RAFIR -

AEHNEEREIEBFERARE TH
&R RE IR ER A RRIMEH o
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7 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS — NET 7

Hith (B548), W38

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEEFE

2021 2020
20214 2020 FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT AREFIT
Net fair value (losses)/gains on financial BANEFETABEZNS
assets at FVPL (Note 17) BMEEAAEER), WS
FER (M 17) (25,476) 6,217
Interest income on senior notes BEEENEWA 6,251 =
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) HNE g (B518) FE 3,673 (206)
Others =i 390 535
(15,162) 6,546

8 FINANCE INCOME — NET

8 MBEWAFRE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLELEE

2021 2020
2021 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARSFT
Finance income mERA
Interests income from bank deposits RITFERFB WA 15,612 14,615
Finance cost A& R
Interest expenses on discount of long-term & HAE A FUIBELIR Y F B
payables FZ (1,709) =
Interest expenses of lease liabilities HEBGEM SR (1,744) (972)
(3,453) (972)
Finance income-net RE WA FE 12,159 13,643
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Fk S A=A -

EXPENSES BY NATURE

9

RUEEHS 5 IR

B BAARE T T

Year ended 31 December
BZE12H831BLEE

2021 2020
20214 2020 FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT ARBTFT
Employee benefit expenses (Note 10) BEERAMRZ (K57 10) 745,388 737,698
Construction and installation costs BERLERKAR 409,963 253,508
Greening and cleaning expenses AL RIFRRX 361,732 236,071
Security charges ZRE 349,480 230,668
Cost of goods sold HE KR 311,993 245,158
Utilities UNSZES 3-§ 120,959 87,327
Maintenance costs REKA 94,580 36,997
Depreciation and amortisation charges WEREHEE 57,931 26,205
Outsourcing tourism services costs IR AR TG FNMB A AR 56,004 52,525
Professional service fees BXRGE 31,954 23,933
Office expenses WA 27,146 26,093
Outsourcing labor costs BIINDE 23,361 17,244
Traveling and entertainment expenses EIRRBERS 21,485 27,758
Promotion expenses HEEER 16,497 24,828
Taxes and other levies I R BB 14,071 10,768
Community activities costs HEEBER 11,414 15,425
Listing expenses WX - 17,257
Auditor’s remuneration %R &
— Audit services — ZE R 4,000 3,700
— Non-audit services — FEEZRT 1,653 849
Others HAth 42,843 46,055
2,702,454 2,120,067
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10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

210

FBESBAARE T )

10 ESEEFIFAX

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEEFE

2021 2020

20214 2020 ¢

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARBTFT

Wages, salaries and bonuses TE - e RaF 591,395 655,446

Social insurance expenses MtEREAX

— Pension costs — defined contribution ~ — RKESER— AEMHRK

plans (Note (a)) RINETEI (K772 (@) 57,305 5,076

— Others — Hfb 29,823 17,686

Housing funds FEEF 28,868 22,498

Share-based payment (Note 22) LARR 1 B ERER R (M 5E22) 2,220 6,447

Other employee benefits (Note (b)) Hife 8@F (e b)) 35,777 30,545

745,388 737,698

Employees in the Group's PRC subsidiaries are
required to participate in a defined contribution
retirement scheme administrated and operated by
the local municipal government. The Group’s PRC
subsidiaries contribute funds which are calculated on
certain percentage of the employee salary to the
scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the
employees.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contribution payable in the future years as at 31

December 2021 (31 December 2020: same).

Other employee benefits mainly include team building
expenses, meal and traveling allowances.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By} ¥ ¥k R Bl 51

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued) 10 {EE&EFIFX @)

(c)  Five highest paid individuals € HEEEHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the HZE2021F12A3MBIEFE - AEH
highest in the Group included two (2020: two) hamEH A TEERSE (2020 F -
directors for the year ended 31 December 2021. The MA)EE - BT HER=H (20204 -
emoluments payable to the remaining three (2020: =F) ANTREFBAT

three) individuals are as follows:

Year ended 31 December
HBZ12A31BLEE

2021 2020
2021 % 2020 €
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARBETT

Salaries I& 5,129 4,769
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAT 419 3,000
Pension costs EBREE A 56 8
Housing funds, medical insurance FEAES -

and other BERR R EMTERE

social insurances 86 165
Share-based payment LARR 17 72 EERE AT 5K 315 1,889

6,005 9,831

The number of non-director emoluments fell within IFEEHMERE R AZAT

the following bands:

Year ended 31 December
BZE12B31BLEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥FT ARET T

Emolument bands (in HK$) i i (A TTED)

HK$1,000,001-HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7 7T £ 2,000,000 7T 2 -
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7% 7T £ 3,000,000 7T - 1
HK$3,000,001-HK$4,500,000 3,000,001 % 7T £ 4,500,000 7% 7T 1 2
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11

12

212

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

B BEUAARET T
11 REBEQTINIKRE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEEFE

2021 2020

20214 2020 ¢

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT AREFIT

Opening carrying amount FYREE 970 971
Capital injection pE= 5,298 -
Share of loss FEfL B8 (427) (1)
Closing carrying amount FRIREE 5,841 970

In the opinion of the directors, there is no associate
individually material to the Group.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability and accordingly,
is exempted from Cayman Islands income tax. The
Company'’s direct subsidiary in the BVI was incorporated
under the International Business Companies Act of the BVI
and, accordingly, is exempted from British Virgin Islands
income tax.

Hong Kong profits tax rate is 16.5%. No provision for Hong
Kong profits tax was provided as the Group did not have
assessable profit in Hong Kong for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: same).

Income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations
in Mainland China has been calculated at the applicable tax
rate on the estimated assessable profits for the year, based
on the existing legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B} 55 R 22 B 5

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

The general corporate income tax rate in the PRC is 25%
according to Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (the
“CIT Law") effective on 1 January 2008. Henan Aiou
Electronic Technology Co., Ltd. was first qualified as “High
and New Technology Enterprises” (“HNTE") in 2018 and
renewed in 2021. Jiyuan City Zhongbang Environmental
Sanitation Co., Ltd. (“Jiyuan Zhongbang”) was qualified as
HNTE in 2019. Henan One Family Network Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“One Family Network”) and Song Yun (Beijing)
Information Service Co., Ltd. were qualified as HNTE in
2020. Accordingly, these four subsidiaries of the Group are
entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15% for a three-
year period. Certain of the Group's subsidiaries enjoy the
preferential income tax treatment for Small and Micro
Enterprise with the income tax rate of 20% and are eligible
to have their tax calculated based on 12.5% or 50% of their
taxable income.

12 FrSHiIRXZ ®)

RIEF 20084 1 A1 B AEREC D EFFEHE)
(TREMRBRIE]D - PERM—MREEFREE
T8 5 5. 25% o Az 7 A B 9 BT /B8 A AR B SRR
BEFRIFRBR QTN 2018 FEE [ 5 H Rl
¥ ] ((EFEMEE])ER - WH2021F
B BEREMBERRERRZAERAR(ER
FE R 2019 FEB M E AR -
M —RPEREERAR ([BERE] &
EE(ULR)EERBAERD AR 20205
BIEHEMEE] % At - AE@%
PR B A R A EEH 3FH15% WEEAT
BRHRE - AEBETHEARZHE20%/)
MEHEBEMEHTE - WHERBEER
T U A9 12.5% 85 50% 5157

Year ended 31 December
BZ12H318LLFE

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR#FT ARETFIT

Current income tax BIHAFT1S 77 208,439 120,729
Deferred income tax (Note 25) BEIEFTISHL (M1 et 25) (35,773) (4,564)
172,666 116,165
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12 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued) 12 FiSHBEXR @
The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the z]x%lmgu B HEERBERRERT
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted B EMMEEIREGFE c EREER
average tax rate applicable to profits of the group entities ;zuT 3
as follows:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEEFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARETT

Profit before income tax PS8t B FE 826,054 556,909

Tax calculated at applicable income tax LAE TS R E a9 5k

rates 215,905 143,209
Tax effects of: LA TKIEE’JEW‘??; :
— Preferential income tax rates BARETHEBRRA
applicable to certain subsidiaries Frie i EE X (29,500) (20,007)
— Utilisation of previously unrecognised  — B I AR FER BT 1A
tax losses [igi] (14,937) (2,676)
— Additional tax deductions for research ~ — HFEE Ak A BB SN TE R
and development costs (4,483) (5,786)
— Tax losses and deductible temporary — REREEMSHEED
differences for which no deferred TIEE1E R AT T b
income tax asset was recognised MER 2,968 2,279
— Expenses not deductible for tax — AR A X
purposes 2,430 1,594
— Share-based compensation —RHe 347 1,478
— Additional tax deductions for salaries — ERARKEATLEMNTEI
for the disabled hiring HIER % (179) =
— Associates’ results reported net of tax ~ — Et& AR 2IRELE
(?D BR%IR) 115 _
— Change of tax rate i IR 4 ) - (3,932)
Income tax expenses ST 172,666 116,165
The effective income tax rate was 21% and 21% for the HE2021FN2020F 12 A31ALEE - B
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, respectively. BT BHIED B A21% K% 21% °
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13 EARNINGS PER SHARE 13 BRER
(@) Basic earnings per share (@) BRELXZEF
The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing ERN - ERERZRIEANTIRERE
the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company I FERR A 317 B AR hn e 19
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares SE(TEREBEFERMD (MFE20(0)) °
in issue during the year (excluding treasury shares
(Note 20 (b)).

Year ended 31 December
HBZ12A31BLEE

2021 2020
2021%F 2020 4
Profit attributable to shareholders of 7N &A% B2 15 Kl 2
the Company (RMB’000) (ARBTFT) 619,559 426,587
Weighted average number of ordinary 217 & 38 A% &) AN HE 15 &
shares in issue (in thousands) (FA%) 1,262,888 1,114,716
Basic earnings per share attributable & AN R IR fE(G B AR
to shareholders of the Company BR(ASBEAREITZ5)
during the year (expressed in RMB
per share) 0.49 0.38
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13 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b)

216

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares arising from share options
granted by the Company.

FBESBAARE T )

13 EREM @)

(b)

SRBBERF
SRFRAN D EROMEALFE
R A 0T A BRI B
AR - BEERTE AR MIET
BEEEEY -

Year ended 31 December
HBZ12A31BLEE

2021 2020
2021%F 2020 £
Profit attributable to shareholders of 7N &% B2 & 15 Kl
the Company (RMB’000) (ARBTFT) 619,559 426,587
Weighted average number of ordinary 21T & 5@ A% &) ANHE 15 &
shares in issue (in thousands) (FR%) 1,262,888 1,114,716
Adjustments for share options FEBREEITAE (TR)
(in thousands) 30,014 41,850
Weighted average number of ordinary #+E & E AR EEEN
shares for the calculation of diluted  An#EF35 2 (FR%)
earnings per share (in thousands) 1,292,902 1,156,566
Diluted earnings per share FRAD BRI TREE
attributable to shareholders of the BN (ASBRAREITZY))
Company during the year
(expressed in RMB per share) 0.48 0.37
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

B BAARE T T

14 W% - BERRE

Equipment
and Right-of-
furniture Machinery  Vehicles use asset Total
RERER B Ef FREE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB000
AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFTT ARETT
Year ended 31 December 2020 2020512 A31HILEE
Opening net book amount HEREFE 7,646 4,967 2,017 3,452 18,082
Additions NE 13,175 3451 4,046 35,021 55,693
Acquisition of subsidiaries WeBEH B A E 2,002 1,630 983 = 4,615
Disposals HE (30) - - = (30)
Depreciation charge HEER (8,167) (1,454) (1,056) (10,438) (21,115)
Currency translation BHESR = = - (932) (932)
Closing net book amount BREEFE 14,626 8,594 5,990 27,103 56,313
As at 31 December 2020 R2020€12A31H
Cost R 37,793 11,885 8,976 43,839 102,493
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (23,167) (3,291) (2,986) (16,736) (46,180)
Net book amount REFE 14,626 8,594 5,990 27,103 56,313
Year ended 31 December 2021 2021F12 B 31 ALEE
Opening net book amount HEmFE 14,626 8,594 5,990 27,103 56,313
Additions ANE 16,647 7,342 4,903 45,802 74,694
Acquisition of subsidiaries ) =YNG (=)

(Note 28) 2,889 1,788 391 - 5,068
Disposals HE (177) (29) (127) = (333)
Depreciation charge HEER (12,536) (4,035) (3,471)  (20,354)  (40,396)
Currency translation BEHER - - - (288) (288)
Closing net hook amount HAREREFE 21,449 13,660 7,686 52,263 95,058
As at 31 December 2021 R2021512A31A8
Cost PR 57,013 20,882 13,942 87,985 179,822
Accumulated depreciation ZENE (35,564) (7,222) (6,256)  (35722)  (84,764)
Net book amount REFE 21,449 13,660 7,686 52,263 95,058
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14

218

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Depreciation expenses were charged to the following
categories in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income:

14 Y% - BERRE @)

FEAXFARAEEERERA T ER

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEEFE

2021 2020
2021 % 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARETFIT

Administrative expenses THAX 20,881 12,746
Cost of sales SHE PR 19,363 8,329
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHEAT 152 40

40,396 21,115

No property, plant and equipment were restricted or
pledged as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020:
same).
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)
15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15 EHREE
Order-
Backlog
Platform and  Software
and know-  customer and
Goodwill how relationship others Total
TaE BEIE 0
BE HiRE 2EFEA REAM st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT
Year ended 31 December 2020 2020 12A31BLLEE
Opening net book amount BRRFE 42,319 17,926 11,895 810 72,950
Additions NE - - - 663 663
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEERB AR 12,361 - 6,822 = 19,183
Amortisation g = (2,286) (2,071) (733) (5,090)
Closing net book amount HREEFE 54,680 15,640 16,646 740 87,706
As at 31 December 2020 M2020%12831H
Cost D% 54,680 19,549 20,216 4,502 98,947
Accumulated amortisation R - (3,909) (3,570) (3,762 1,241)
Net book amount HREFE 54,680 15,640 16,646 740 87,706
Year ended 31 December 2021 20215 12A31HILLEE
Opening net book amount BRI FE 54,680 15,640 16,646 740 87,706
Additions NE = - - 2,999 2,999
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEI B AR (K2 28)

(Note 28) 72,458 21,316 107,918 - 201,692
Disposals e - (829) - - (829)
Amortisation #iy - (3,080)  (13,317) (1,138)  (17,535)
Closing net book amount HREEFE 127,138 33,047 111,247 2,601 274,033
As at 31 December 2021 R2021%12831H
Cost B%S 127,138 40,036 128,134 7,501 302,809
Accumulated amortisation Rt - (6,989)  (16,887) (4,900)  (28,776)
Net book amount BEFE 127,138 33,047 111,247 2,601 274,033
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(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (BkBAEBASIN - AL BEUARE T T
15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 15 BEREE#®)

Amortisation of intangible assets has been charged to the BICEE#ECTAGESEEBEET 01

consolidated statement of comprehensive income as FrR

below:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2021 2020
20214 2020 ¢
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥MTFT AREFIT
Administrative expenses THRX 4,030 2,910
Cost of sales HEKA 13,505 2,180
17,535 5,090

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group @@ #HZE2021F128318FE @ AEBWK
acquired several property management companies BETMHEERRA(MFE28) - %5
(Note 28). Total identifiable net assets of these entities KWHEENSBWEB BN ZRE
acquired as at their respective acquisition dates were EFE A AR ¥S88,1550007T © BIE
amounted to RMB88,155,000, including identified AIBREPEER TS ARMAREKA
customer relationships and platform and know-how R ¥107,918,000 7T LA K AR &= B FE R A
of RMB107,918,000 and RMB21,316,000 recognised AR #21,316,000 7T °
by the Group.

() The independent valuations were performed by an (b)) B GEBBEL(GEAET  UEE
independent valuer to determine the amounts of the RNEBR2021E12 A31B IEFERE
customer relationship and platform and know-how ROBEFBERERTAEREMAZSE -
recognised by the Group during year ended 31 REWEBPEECEPFBERERETERE
December 2021. Methods and key assumptions in BMREAREBENTEREEZRE
determining the fair value of the customer WERMT
relationship and platform and know-how as at
respective acquisition dates are disclosed as follows:

Expected life of

Valuation Key the intangible

technique assumptions assets

BILEE

fRER M FERRK FEHSE S

Customer relationship P& Multi-period excess  Pre-tax discount 10 years
return method rate: 22.7%

% BB R A TATRLIRE - 104
22.7%

Platform and know-how & B fiTshER Replacement Profit margin: 10 years
cost method 10%

BERAE FEE - 10% 104F
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

(c)  The excess of the consideration transferred over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets of acquired
subsidiaries is recorded as goodwill. Goodwill was
comprised of the followings:

5 B EE @)

€ EEZFNHEBLCWBAIEMNEE
FENAREER  HEBEABED
fR - EBBRATEIE:

As at 31 December

M12HA31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT ARBTFT
Acquisition of Taihua Jinye Life W IERE R E LR ER Not applicable
Service Co., Ltd. (“Taihua Jinye") NE([FRERE]) 59,641 NiE A
Acquisition of One Family Network Y38 — R 4845 17,533 17,533
Acquisition of Jiyuan Zhongbang g R R E 12,361 12,361
Other subsidiaries H At B A7) 37,603 24,786
127,138 54,680

Impairment test for goodwiill

Goodwill arises from the Group's acquisitions of
subsidiaries and was determined at the acquisition date
respectively, being the difference between the purchase
consideration and the fair value of net identifiable assets of
acquirees. Goodwill has been assessed based on the
related acquiree’s cash-generated units for impairment
testing.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generated units are
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculation use pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a
five-year period. Management determined a projection
period of five years based on expected development trend
of the acquiree and industry experiences. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the
estimated terminal growth rates stated below. The growth
rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the related industry in which the cash-generated units
operates. The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant industry.

EE R E R

BB DEAREEWRENE AR MEE LK
EEHETE - AlEHEEKWED AR5
BEEFEMNAAEBEZEANEZE BEDNE
KA IR S ELE B ETAE
BRI

ReELBunrRE B LENEREER
AEEE R ERARBEEEMEL
hEBRMBBEmMEL 2 RAHRAER SR
B - EEERBRKENNERERBEM
TERR  BETRFNRAY - BEAF
HIRI R IR B R JOARIB T XAt My (5T 4% s 38
REETHESE - ZERXTBERCELE
P E MBI ENRITFI9ERRE - f
ERAMRRXREHRATN - KRR T EABITE
BRANEERER o
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B S A& %A -

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Impairment test for goodwill (Continued)
The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations as
at 31 December 2021 are as follows:

FBESBAARE T )

15 BEE @)

AERERNR ()
R20215F12 A31 8 - EREEAEMKA
MBEB AT

Taihua
Jinye

RERE

One Family Jiyuan Other
Network Zhongbang subsidiaries
Ht

—RMBK BRRE 5] N

Expected growth rate of U A B T8 HA3E & =
revenue

Terminal growth rate after R HF1& MR iRIG R X
5 years

Pre-tax discount rate TiRTALIA %=

7.8%-20.0%

2.5%
22.7%

5.0%-15.6%  10.0%-15.1% 5.0%-25.2%
2.5% 2.5% 2.5%

20.0% 20.5%  20.0%-22.7%

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations as

MN20205 12 A31H - FHEEEMR

at 31 December 2020 are as follows: KAMBRKRROT
One Family Jiyuan Other
Network Zhongbang subsidiaries
Hit
— R ERRE ME AR

Expected growth rate of revenue WA K TEHAE & &
Terminal growth rate after 5 years AFEH R RE
Pre-tax discount rate BipTALIE =

5.0%-31.8% 10.0%-29.8%  2.5%-31.3%
3.0% 3.0% 3.0%
23.9% 21.3%  20.0%-21.8%

According to the result of the impairment testing, the
estimated recoverable amounts of cash-generated units
exceed their carrying amount (i.e. the headroom) as below:

BEAEIRER ReELEAM
s A B S SEB I AR (EI )
T

As at 31 December

R12H31H
2021 2020
2021 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARSFT
Taihua Jinye TRERE 22,961  Not applicable
T3 F
One Family Network — R 77,406 64,098
Jiyuan Zhongbang BERRE 3,633 4,535
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment test for goodwill (Continued)
Management performed sensitivity analysis based on the
assumptions that expected growth rate of revenue or pre-
tax discount rate would be changed by taking into accounts
the volatility of the business and industry in which the
acquirees are engaged. Had the following estimated key
assumption for the forecast period been changed as below,
the headroom would decrease to the amounts:

15 BEE @)
RERE R (&)
ERERAEBRKE R EEERTE
KR ED - B B FEERIE B KSR ATEE IR
RIS T B REDE TR DT o RY50
TR R T B B B L TR
HEERLEUTEE

As at 31 December

R12H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR®ETT

Taihua lJinye R
— Expected growth rate of revenue —TEHUR AE K R TBE 10% Not applicable
decrease by 10% 9,496 TEA
— Pre-tax discount rate increase —IRIARIR R NN 1% Not applicable
by 1% 11,141 TR
One Family Network — K%
— Expected growth rate of revenue — FEHAR AR RETNFE 5%
decrease by 5% 15,504 49,399
— Pre-tax discount rate increase — BEATREIR AL N 1%
by 1% 69,321 51,470
Jiyuan Zhongbang BRRE
— Expected growth rate of revenue — FEHAR AIE R E TR 1%
decrease by 1% 2,871 3,216
— Pre-tax discount rate increase — TARTREER =48I0 1%
by 1% 1,469 1,971

Based on the above assessment and the historical result,
our directors have not identified any reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable
amount is based that would cause the carrying amounts of
the cash-generated units to exceed their respective
recoverable amounts as at 31 December 2021 (31
December 2020: same).

BRI A RES &R - B ZE2021F12
A318 - EEWEEHE AIKRE SRR
BRBREETMAETEEE UGS
ELABUMNEDERRES A KE©HE
(202012 B 31H : #RA) °
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 16 #ZFEREIPHNEMIAE
CATEGORY

As at 31 December

®12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FT AR®TT

Financial assets at FVPL LARBEMEYLFABENE
mEE 55,456 467,041

Financial assets at amortised cost Z#HERLTENEREE

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 19) ReRFSEEW (M 19) 2,264,412 2,217,784
Note receivables, trade and other FEWEIE - B 5 REMERGRIE
receivables (excluding prepayments) (TNefETEARE) (T 18)
(Note 18) 2,153,703 1,238,348
Restricted cash ZRRHE S 1,907 1,035
4,420,022 3,457,167

Financial liabilities at amortised REBERATENESRERS

cost
Trade and other payables (excluding B 5 REMENFHRIE (TR IEERT

accrued payroll and other taxes o REMBMNTT) (HE24)

payables) (Note 24) 919,284 653,890
Lease liabilities (Note 23) MEBEWZ23) 50,183 21,209

969,467 675,099
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)

17 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVPL 17

UAnRBEEFELGABRENS
MEE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT

Financial assets at FVPL DARBEMELFTABZNS
mMEE

— Wealth management products — B ER 5,043 383,785
— Senior notes — BEEE 50,413 83,256
55,456 467,041

(@) Amounts recognised in profit or loss:
During the year, the following (losses)/gains were
recognised in profit or 10ss:

(@) NERBEINESE:
FR-UTUBER) RENBETE

2 .
[

Year ended 31 December
BZ12831HLLEE

2021 2020
20214 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR®FT
Fair value (losses)/gains on DAREEFELFTABRN
financial assets at FVPL SRMEENAAEEF
recognised in other (losses)/ 8),/ W& FHE (Fa7)
gains-net (Note 7)
— Wealth management products — BB EM 5,905 4,187
— Senior notes —BAEEER (31,381) 2,030
(25,476) 6,217
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

By ¥ #h 2R BiU 5

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B S A& %A -

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

PREPAYMENTS

FBESBAARE T )

18 EZRHEMBIRER AN KIA

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARMTF T
Trade receivables (Note (a)) B S EWEIE (M it @)
— Related parties (Note 29 (d)) — @A (MaE29(d) 1,137,223 859,368
— Third parties —%=75 657,831 341,538
1,795,054 1,200,906
Note receivables e 2= 1% 600 4,500
Less: allowance for impairment of trade & : & 5 W BRI E R S
receivables (84,468) (28,775)
1,711,186 1,176,631
Other receivables Hoh fE U IR
— Amounts due from related parties — FEUL AR 5 SR8
(Note 29(c) (Hi#E29(a)) 306,623 40,190
— Utilities — RAEHEE 21,187 6,932
— Deposits —&e 29,829 8,355
— Deposits for potential acquisition — RAIRERE-RMNBARX
of a subsidiary (LR 100,000 -
— Amounts due from the — R B A B FEIE AR RS R
non-controlling interests 1|
of subsidiaries 23,943 -
— Others — Efh 7,060 7,196
488,642 62,673
Less: allowance for impairment of other 3t = i ft fE U R0 (B #4 s
receivables (46,125) (956)
442,517 61,717
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 18 B S R H{hpEUEE R Fa{T5hE

PREPAYMENTS (continued) (&)
As at 31 December
M12H831H
2021 2020
2021 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBTFT
Prepayments TEfTRIE
— Security charges and cleaning —ZRBRFEAAX
expenses 67,840 63,794
— Acquisition of equity interests — YRR A e - 62,000
— Others — Hh 33,841 31,526
101,681 157,320
Total #aEt 2,255,384 1,395,668
Less: non-current portion of other B B FRIB R TEA IR
receivables and prepayments EmENEB D (33,439) (67,127)
Current portion of trade and other B 5 N B e Uk FRIE K FB N ROR
receivables and prepayments R ENE 2,221,945 1,328,541
(@) Trade receivables mainly arise from property ) BHEWZEIERAYWESERE
management services and related value-added KAARAIEERTS -

services.

Property management services income are received Y2 B 18 RIS U A KR FE B8 AR 75 15
in accordance with the terms of the relevant services B FRUCER o (3 P FETE R P93 B AR
agreements. Service income from property BAERT NI BHAOMETERBY
management service is due for payment by the A °

residents upon the issuance of demand note.

The related value-added services to property MR EERENAREEREN

developers are usually due for payment upon the BRBEERMBELEE VR
issuance of document of settlement. FEfT o
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 18 & 5 & H{th FE Uk 3% 18 & FE 43 s 18
PREPAYMENTS (continued) (&)
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the aging analysis of the 2021 F K 2020F 12 A31H - ERNE HJE
trade receivables based on recognition date of trade WEIBEZR BN E S E IR IBRERES ST

receivables were as follows: PN
As at 31 December
M12H831H
2021 2020
2021 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFIT AREFT
0-180 days 0£180H 1,258,325 856,153
181-365 days 1812365 H 272,320 200,751
110 2 years 122% 184,506 111,347
2 to 3years 2E3F 54,453 17,325
3to 4 years 3E4F 14,185 10,009
Over 4 years AFPAE 11,265 5,321
1,795,054 1,200,906

MR2021FE K 2020E12 A31H » EREE -
Z o NEMEWFIEN T EEETE

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, note receivables, trade
and other receivables are denominated in following
currencies:

As at 31 December

MW12A31H8
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR F T AREFT
Denominated in RMB AANRESTHE
Trade receivables Z 5 EWGIE 1,795,054 1,200,906
Other receivables H b pE IR 487,479 61,191
Note receivables B =R 600 4,500
2,283,133 1,266,597
Denominated in HK$ B TTEHE
Other receivables Hfth fE UL RN IR 1,163 1,482
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the fair values of trade and other
receivables approximated their carrying amounts.

Information about the impairment of trade and other

receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk was
disclosed in Note 3.1.2.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

BEZRHMWBWMRERFENKIE
(&)

MR2021F12 318 » B 5 Kk E Ath fE Y zE
HARBEEAERAERES

18

B 5 K E A EUGRIER (B A 5 B 4
EERRHNERNHES1.25E5E -

19 RERBREEFEY

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2021 2020
2021 % 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREFT
Denominated in RMB AAREESHE
Cash at bank RTINS 1,903,433 1,271,487
Cash on hand FERE 140 34
1,903,573 1,271,521
Denominated in HK$ LA ITEHE
Cash at bank RITIRE 354,666 946,263
Denominated in US$ LAZETTEHE
Cash at bank RITIRE 6,173 =
2,264,412 2,217,784

Cash and short-term deposits held in Mainland China are
subject to local exchange control regulations. These
regulations provide for restrictions on exporting capital
from Mainland China, other than through normal dividends.

KRB AR A R IR & R E R E i
EEBHRPIPTRE » ZF RO EAREHF
A (EF IR BRI FEHR S -
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20 SHARE CAPITAL 20 BRA
Number of Equivalent
ordinary Share share
shares capital capital
TEREB B& < BAEEY
HK$000 RMB’000
FET AREFIT
Authorised ETE
As at 1 January 2020 R2020F1 A 1H 38,339,000 383 338
Increase of authorised shares S5 X {738 hn 4,961,661,000 49,617 42,457
As at 31 December 2020 72020512 A 31 H 5,000,000,000 50,000 42,795
As at 1 January 2021 and R2021F1A1B K
31 December 2021 2021512 A31H 5,000,000,000 50,000 42,795
Issued 28T
As at 1 January 2020 M202051H1H 38,339,000 3 3
Issue of shares in connection BB AL EE1TH BRI
with the capitalisation issue HE1T 861,661,000 8,617 7,885
Issue of shares in connection  E2ZARA &) FHA B
with the Company’s listing N 31T 345,000,000 3,450 3,159
Share option scheme-issued  BERR#ERT 81— B 21T
shares (Note (a)) % (K5t @) 1,215,000 12 10
As at 31 December 2020 202012 A 31 H 1,246,215,000 12,082 11,057
As at 1 January 2021 R20214181H 1,246,215,000 12,082 11,057
Share option scheme-issued  BEMIERTE] — B %17
shares (Note (a)) &t (K13 @) 23,719,000 238 198
Cancellation of shares & 538 (B7aE b))
(Note (b)) (968,000) (10) (8)
As at 31 December 2021 H2021F12 A31H 1,268,966,000 12,310 11,247
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20 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(a)

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, 23,719,000
pre-IPO share options were exercised at a price of
HK$0.62 with received proceeds of HK$14,706,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB12,269,000) (2020:
1,215,000 pre-IPO share options). The weighted
average price at the time of exercise was HK$7.14 per
share (2020: HK$6.74 per share).

20 BEA (@)

(a)

HE2021F128318 LEFE -
23,719,000 7 1T (E R 0.62 BT B IX
AABRERBERED EBITE - W
T 153 5118 14,706,000 78 7t (FE R H A
R ¥612,269,0007T ) (20204F : 1,215,000
MERARBEEAERE) - TERD
T ER B SR7.147 T (2020
FGR674ETT)

Treasury shares (b) EFERH
Number of
treasury
shares Amounts
EERHEE k-]
RMB’000
ARBTT
As at 1 January 2021 M2021F1H1H
Shares repurchased (Note (i) SRRt (BYaE () 1,892,000 8,143
Shares cancelled (Note (i) FESERR ) (BYFE () (968,000) (4,260)
As at 31 December 2021 1K2021F12 H31H 924,000 3,883

(i) The Company repurchased 1,892,000 shares of
its own ordinary shares during the year ended
December 2021 (2020: nil). The total purchased
consideration was approximately HK$9,902,000
(equivalent to RMB8,143,000) and was
recognised as treasury shares in other reserves.

(i) The Company cancelled 785,000 shares and
183,000 shares in November and December
2021, respectively. Accordingly, the issued
share capital and share premium were reduced
by the amounts of the shares cancelled.

) ARAFREE2021F12HIEF
JZ 88 611,892,000 % B & & i@ i%
(20205 : &) - BEENREN A
9,902,000/ (& K AR K
8,143,000 7T ) 37 7 E Ah 7% 8 o 7
REEFR -

(i) AR EFR2021F11 B K% 20214F
127 5 Rl 3 357850001 K
183,00017 Bz 15 - At + B & 1T
BRARRKRGO REEDTHERN S
i o
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21 OTHER RESERVES

232

21 HitufEd

Employee
share-based Foreign
Capital Treasury Share compensation  Statutory currency  Total other
reserves shares  premium reserves  reserves  translation reserves
EELNRSR
AERN Hft
B4Rk ERRB  BREE HeRfe  ERME  MMER  REEE
RMB000 RMB0O00 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000
AREFT  ARETT AREFT  AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFL
Balance at 1 January 2020 #2020 1 B 1 AMEE 82,840 - 9432 9,382 21,643 - 123297
Issue of shares in connection with the BERBITEBORA

capitalisation issUe B = = (7,885) - - - (7,885)
Issue of shares in connection with the BANE ETEBNRA

Company's listing B - - 208553 - - - 20855%
Share option scheme-value of employee  EERRIEEI— (EERKEE

services (Note 22) (Hit22) - - - 6447 - - 6,447
Share option scheme-issued shares iRiE B BRIk

(Note 20a) (Hizt206) - - 1165 (541) - - 624
Currency translation differences ERBEER = = = = = (125,188) (125,188
Acquisition of equity interest from BRI E

non-controlling interests (1817) - - - - - (1.817)
Dividend distribution o shareholders FRESERE (Hit2)

(Note 2¢) - - (73,455) - - = (73,455)
Appropriation of statutory reserves ETREREWHE)

(Note ()) = = = = 43824 = 43824
Balance at 31 December 2020 R2020E12 A 31 BES 81,023 - 2,014,792 15,288 65,467 (125,188) 2,051,382
Balance at 1 January 2021 R202151 B 1AL 81,023 - 2014792 15,288 65,467 (125,188) 2,051,382
Share option scheme-valug of employee  EERRIEEI— (BEFRKEE

services (Note 22) (Wi22) - - - 2,220 - - 2,220
Share option scheme-issued shares R B B RTRA

(Note 20(3) (Hrit208) - - 22,781 (10,710) - - 12,071
Repurchase of shares of the Company RARBERG (H#200)

(Note 20(b)) = (8,143) = - - - (8,143)
Cancellation of shares (Note 20(b) Wi (i n) - 4,260 (4,252) - - - 8
Currency translation differences ERHEER - - - - - (22,183) (22,183)
Dividend distrioution o shareholders FREDERE (Hit2)

(Note 2¢) - - (340,833) - - - (340,833)
Appropriation of statutory reserves ETREREWHE)

(Note () = - - - 59,858 - 59,858
Balance at 31 December 2021 R2021E12 83N BIES 81,023 (3,883 1,692,488 6,798 125,325 (147,371) 1,754,380
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21 OTHER RESERVES (continued)

(@) PRC statutory reserves

In accordance with relevant rules and regulations in
the PRC, except for sino-foreign equity joint venture
enterprises, all PRC companies are required to
transfer 10% of their profit after taxation calculated
under PRC accounting rules and regulations to the
statutory reserve fund, until the accumulated total of
the fund reaches 50% of their registered capital. The
statutory reserve fund can only be used, upon
approval by the relevant authority, to offset losses
carried forward from previous years or to increase
capital of the respective companies.

22 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company approved and adopted the option scheme on
3 January 2019. Share options under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme (the “Option”) are granted to eligible
participants (the “Eligibles”) including directors and certain
key employees. Options are conditional on the Eligibles
have served the Group for certain period (the vesting
period). Share Options are granted for no consideration and
carry no dividend or voting right. When exercised, each
Option is convertible into one ordinary share. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or
settle the Option in cash.

Share options granted to employees under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 3 January 2019 and 10 January 2019, 31,680,000 and
13,320,000 Options were granted to the Eligibles with the
same exercise price of HK$0.62 per share.

For vesting schedule of the share options granted to
directors and certain key employees, the share options will
be vested within 24 months immediately following the
listing date.

1 Hithffe

(@ HEDEEME
RIBEFBEEARRERG - BRFINE
BEEI ABETERBAKERR
FEEF R RROIERFOREK
FHMI10%ERER S EEHEES
EEESHMRTEREINHEEMER
H50% < A EREESERNRESH
PARBILERAFRHEBEFERBR
FIENBBARINENR -

22 MARRI3 B ETEAIM R

RRRBR20195F 1 A3 B HLAEMER A IEA
st 8l - BRAFBERBIREE TR
P (R R TERESREEER
BEEANSERSEE([AEBALD -
BRERTHRTREEBRALTARAEE
RGED—ENHR (BBH) - BRENRER
FTARBEEE - B IHERBRFORE - 1T
1% S—hBREIERA—REERK -
AER B0 458 LA 3R 5 i (0] X 45 S B AR DA TE
HEEEME -

BRAHRENBERETOEER FTHE
f% #E

20194138 &2019F1 8108 » 2
B &% A% F 31,680,000 K 13,320,000
DEERE  TEERATR02BT -

IR TEEREEERRENBRERR

BT E - BEAEIS R B T A EA 4 24 (8
AMERE -
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22

234

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 22 D\RiBEROSR @)

Share options granted to employees under the BRABREANERETOEER FTWE
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) BRAE (&)

Movement in the number of share options granted to AR EIFRHE M EBRESE R EAEINERY
employees and their related weighted average exercise TEEMESWT :

prices are as follows:

Number of options

BREEE
Exercise price 2021 2020
TEE 202145 2020 F

At the beginning of the year REA]) HK$0.62 7% 7T 42,210,000 45,000,000
Exercised 217 HK$0.62 7% 7T (23,719,000) (1,215,000)
Forfeited 281K HK$0.62 % 7T (2,610,000) (1,575,000)
At the end of the year RER HK$0.62 7% 7T 15,881,000 42,210,000
Currently exercisable ERIEIES Y HK$0.62 7% 7T 225,000 12,285,000
Fair value of share options granted under the BERLHBREANBRETRE T ZBREN
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme DRfEE
The fair value of options granted on 3 January 2019 and 10 201941 A3 8 &2019F1 510 BB EE
January 2019 under Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme RAFBENBRETE T ZERENAA
determined using the Binomial option-pricing model was BEDEA-BABRETERLEE  ©
approximately RMB20.8 million. BARB208EETT °
The total expenses recognised in the consolidated BE2021F K2020F12 A3 HLLFE - 5t
statement of comprehensive income for share options BT REENBERENGS 2ERERPER
granted to employees is RMB2,220,000 and RMB6,447,000 M B 0 Bl 3 AR % 2,220,000 T R AR
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 # 6,447,000 7T °
respectively.
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)

23 LEASES 23 HE

(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (@) MEEEEEEBERTERRNESE
balance sheet

As at 31 December

R12H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR®TT

Right-of-use assets EREEE
— Leased properties and equipment — THE W R RE (K1 14)

(Note 14) 52,263 27,103
Lease liabilities HEEE
—Current — D) 28,373 10,876
—Non-current —ERE 21,810 10,333

50,183 21,209
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (b) REEZHKBRRPERINESE

statement of comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR®ETT

Depreciation charge EEM
— Leased properties and equipment  — FRE Y & & 45 (K15 14)
(Note 14) 20,354 10,438

Interest expense (included in finance B (Gt A& RAAFE)
costs-net) 1,744 972

Rental expenses relating to short- BEHREEEHEER@AMNE

term and low-value leases SR (FEAEER A &

(included in cost of sales and EHX)

selling expenses) 1,216 330
Cash outflows for lease payments HMENRAR SR 19,742 17,324
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(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Br ZEHAIN - B BEUAREFITE)

23 LEASES (continued) 23 #HE @)
(c) A maturity analysis of lease liabilities as at (c) M2021%K% 20201283187
31 December 2021 and 2020 is shown in the EEENIHBERSMBR TR :
table below:

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2021 2020
2021 % 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETIT

The present value of lease liabilities fAE&EAIREMT :

is as follows:
Within one year —F 2N 30,037 11,376
Later than one year but no later than —Z =%
two years 14,406 9,596
Later than two years but not later than —Z= R F
five years 9,021 1,421
53,464 22,393
Future finance charge KRR e FE (3,281) (1,184)
50,183 21,209
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)

24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24 BS R HEHMESTIE

As at 31 December

R12H31H
2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT

Trade payables (Note (@) B N FIA (M5 (8)
— Related parties (Note 29(d) — @85 (M 29()) 14,188 9,658
— Third parties —%=5 428,098 297,919
442,286 307,577
Other payables H e 5B
— Deposits — & 257,253 160,146
— Property maintenance funds —MEHEESD 103,349 98,587
— Utilities BN 22,461 20,311
— Amounts due to related parties (Note (b)) — FE{~ BBEs 7 3238 (K13t (b)) 19,086 23,770
— Payables due to the then shareholders — — B #TULEERT B R &) & B A%
of newly-acquired subsidiaries HE)FRIE 2,915 12,938
— Payables for acquisitions of subsidiaries — UEEHTE A &) e 518 41,399 5,095
— Others — A 30,535 25,466
476,998 346,313
Accrued payroll EstE S 101,553 237,144
Other taxes payables Hith fE48H1 18 52,520 46,217
1,073,357 937,251
Less: non-current portion of other payables 3 : Hth fE{t kI8 IEENHA =L 5 (20,486) -
Current portion of trade and other payables ‘2 5 K H {th f& < ZBENHA 28 5 1,052,871 937,251
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts of FR2021F R 2020F 12 A31H » E5 K EM
trade and other payables approximated their fair values. ENFENEAEEEAAEERS -
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24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 24 ¥ 5 R E{tfE FRIE (#)

(@) Asat 31 December 2021 and 2020, the aging analysis (@ 20214 K2020F12A31H - ER
of the trade payables based on invoice date were as ZEHHNESENRIECRE DT
follows: W

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TF T ARBTIT

0-180 days 0£180H 340,648 282,175
181-365 days 1812365 H 56,341 16,503
110 2 years 15226 37,636 7,286
2 to 3years 2F3F 6,251 373
Over 3 years 3FME 1,410 1,240

442,286 307,577

()  The amounts due to related parties were unsecured, b ENEBRIRBEAERF 2EKAE

interest-free and repayable on demand. RERIEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

By} Y5 ¥ 2R BfU 5

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

As at 31 December 2021, there was no offsetting of
deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax
liabilities balances within the same tax jurisdiction (31
December 2020: same). The analysis of deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

25 RIEFRSH
R2021%E 128318 - A—HKEERAD
BEFTSHEERBEEFMSHABEEHRTT
ESE RN (202012 A 318 = #HA) »
EEFEEEMNELEHIBBABNOTNAT

As at 31 December

MW12A318
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARE TR AR®TT

Deferred tax assets: FEERRIEEE ¢
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered — B 1218 A B IR E R EE
after more than 12 months HIREE 2,898 3,256
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered — B 1218 A R UL E &5 E
within 12 months HIEEE 40,540 7,493
43,438 10,749
Deferred tax liabilities: BEERIEAE -
— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered — — #5712 1@ A 14 Ug [21 89 & 1E
after more than 12 months HIEAaE (23,555) (3,157)
— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered — — #7121 A AUk [21 &9 & 1E
within 12 months HEaE (3,084) (820)
(26,639) (3,977)
16,799 6,772
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(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (BkBAEBASIN - AL BEUARE T T
25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 25 EEFREH @)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities R2021FE N2020FE - IREMEHEE
during the year of 2021 and 2020 is as follows: LREBENEEHIT -
Deferred tax
liabilities-
excess of
carrying amount
Deferred tax of other
assets- Deferred tax intangible
allowance on assets- assets over
doubtful debts tax losses  the tax hases Total
EEHBEEE
i3 EE —HttERE
BEEE HEEE EREEERR
— RERER —HEESE HAHERNDS @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFIT AREFIT AREFIT AREFT
As at 1 January 2020 R2020F181A8 3,621 3,341 (3,717) 3,245
Credited to the consolidated REFE2EKGERTA

statement of comprehensive

income 3,472 315 777 4,564
Acquisition of a subsidiary WM B AR - = (1,037) (1,037)
At 31 December 2020 #W2020%12831HR 7,093 3,656 (3,977) 6,772
As at 1 January 2021 RK202151818 7,093 3,656 (3,977) 6,772
Credited to the consolidated RRE2EREREA

statement of comprehensive

income 23,799 8,890 3,084 35,773
Acquisition of subsidiaries WK B A R (K7 28)

(Note 28) - - (25,746) (25,746)
At 31 December 2021 MW2021%12831A 30,892 12,546 (26,639) 16,799
As at 31 December 2021, the Group has not recognised HZE2021FF12A318 ' AEBEWA®E
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses and 1B %58 A A R # 36,883,000 7T (202012 A 31
temporary differences totaling of RMB36,883,000 (31 H: AR#86,947,0007T) B Kt T IBE B
December 2020: RMB86,947,000) as it is not probable that N EREERREETRIELE - REALIHEHE
future taxable profits against which the losses can be IS EER G K] 88 A a] B M) R 3K FE R 71
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction. The HRANEAMABEEE - BE(CEMSH
tax losses shall expire in five years from year of occurrence EY RMIEEBERELEEELRINAER
under the CIT Law. &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B} 55 R 22 B 5

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
Deferred income tax liabilities of RMB128,170,000 (31
December 2020: RMB67,240,000) have not been recognised
for the withholding tax that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings amounted to RMB1,281,697,000 (31
December 2020: RMB672,396,000) of certain subsidiaries.
Such earnings are expected to be retained by the PRC
subsidiaries for reinvestment purposes and would not be
remitted to the oversea intermediate holding companies in
the foreseeable future based on management'’s estimation
of overseas funding requirements.

25 RIS (@)

WA E THBAATMHKRE AZRF
A R #128,170,000 7T (202012 A 31 H -
67,240,000 7T ) K FE B TE N B e RIEE FT 15
HAEARE1,281,697,000 7T (2020 F 12 A
31H : 672,396,0007T) ° BRI E 1 E £ 81
B o H KOG - ZERFTEE S B B
BARRERANBIEE - I[H%E—Hﬁﬁﬁ'ﬂi
KA EEREIN RIERA

DIVIDENDS 26 IgB2
2021 2020 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMF 5T ARMFT
Dividends [ies 340,833 73,455

(@ An interim dividend in respect of the six months
ended 30 June 2021 of HK$0.145 per ordinary share,
approximately HK$184,140,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB149,732,000) was declared by the
board of directors of the Company on 12 August 2021
(the corresponding period of 2020: RMB73,455,000)
and paid in cash.

(b) A final dividend in respect of year ended 31
December 2020 of HK$0.18 per ordinary share,
approximately HK$226,304,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB191,101,000) was declared at the
Annual General Meeting held on 7 May 2021. The final
dividend has been distributed out of the Company’s
share premium and paid in cash.

(c) A final dividend in respect of year ended 31
December 2021 of HK$0.337 per ordinary share have
been proposed by the board of directors of the
Company and are subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be
held on 10 May 2022. The final dividend will be
distributed out of the Company’s share premium.
These consolidated financial statements have not
reflected these dividends payable.

@ ARARESZFEN202148H12HE IR
HZE202146 A308 1E/< A A # A H
BB SR EBR0.145E T A E Y
184,140,000 T(HE RO AR
149,732,0007T) (2020 F A HA : ARHE
73,455,0007T) + WIAIRSIRST ©

() R2021F587BHRITHNRRAFRS
FERBZE2020F12A31MH L FE
AR EFREBIR0ISET -
£226,304,00078 7T (FHE R AR
191,101,0007T) ° RAAR EEHA R F]
B ER DK - WEAR SRS -

€ ARREFSCES m@izomiu
H31EI¢¢F,EE€*3KHHH§ ERE
§%0.337 %87 0 7B Hx%ﬁwozzisﬂ
105%??5’91&%;@&7&2&&@&75
Tf@goﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ@$@ﬂm§“
BEFRDIK - ZF4RE M BRRIL K
&Hﬂ&;ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ“% °
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27 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

242

Cash generated from operations

27 RERE

FBESBAARE T )

BH

(@) REmBHRE

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEFE

2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARMTF T
Profit before income tax Fr 15 %53 Bil i ) 826,054 556,909
Adjustments for: FEES
— Depreciation of property, plantand  — %% - R R REFTE
equipment (Note 14) (KiaE14) 40,396 21,115
— Amortisation of intangible assets — BB ER (M 15)
(Note 15) 17,535 5,090
— Allowance for impairment of trade ~ — &5 M EihEURIBM A
and other receivables and contract HEERRBERE
assets 101,499 15,258
— (Gains)/losses from disposal of — HEWE - BE&EE
property, plant and equipment (W), BB (14) 13
— Gains from disposal of intangible —EEEEHERE
assets (10) =
— Net exchange (gains)/losses (Note 7) — (&34, (Uzs) /B 18 %58
(Kt:z7) (3,673) 206
— Net fair value losses/(gains) on — UAREBEELARE
financial assets at FVPL (Note 7) mNEMEEAAEE
B8, (Uezs) #58
(K1:%7) 25,476 6,217)
— Interest income on senior notes — BAEZBNFEWHA
(Note 7) (Hia£7) (6,251) =
— Share of loss of associates (Note 11) — FE{REE A B8
(Ha£11) 427 1
— Finance cost (Note 8) — BB (KaE8) 3,453 972
— Interest income from loans to — AEZFREERD
third parties (Note 6) FEUA (BtaE6) = (455)
— Share option scheme-value of — BRERE— EE RS
employee services (Note 10) BE (ffa10) 2,220 6,447
1,007,112 599,339
Changes in working capital: EBEECEY
— Trade and other receivables and — B SR HEMEWERIENU &
prepayments AT FRIE (844,244) (629,810)
— Contract liabilities —&HEE 127,139 104,277
— Inventories —iFE (8,666) (3,717)
— Contract assets —AHEE (20,669) (733)
— Trade and other payables — B S REAMEMNKIE 23,639 288,119
— Restricted cash — XRHEE (872) (723)
283,439 356,752
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Fk S A=A -

27 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

B} 55 R 22 B 5

B BAARE T T

27 REREEHN @)

(b) The reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial (h) BMEFTHELECBEILHE:
activities is as follow:
Other
payables-
amounts due
Lease to related
liabilities parties
Hth fE
MIE— B
HESE BA 5 RIE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT AREFIT
As at 1 January 2020 R202061H1H 3,142 22,938
cash flows REeERE
Financing cash inflow BEIRESMA - 832
Financing cash outflow AR S (16,994) -
Non-cash changes FESEE
Additions-leases (Note 14) NE —HE (Kt 14) 35,021 =
Finance expense recognised (Note 8) B HERR AR (H1778) 972 -
Currency translation difference b H = &R (932) =
As at 31 December 2020 7202012 A31H 21,209 23,770
As at 1 January 2021 R2021%F1H1H8 21,209 23,770
cash flows ReERmE
Financing cash outflow BVEIR SR (18,526) (4,684)
Non-cash changes FREEH
Acquisition-leases (Note 14) WEE— & (Fat14) 45,802 -
Finance expense recognised (Note 8) B HERRE RIS (A17E8) 1,744 =
Currency translation difference b H = &E (46) =
As at 31 December 2021 R2021F 12 A31H 50,183 19,086
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& RABAIN - FIASEUAARE T L)
28 BUSINESS COMBINATION 28 EBEEH
(a) Summary of acquisitions (@) WHESEME
(i) Acquisitions of Taihua Jinye and other (i) WEZEHRERAMKBALA
subsidiaries
In January 2021, the Group acquired 51% equity R2021F1 A - ZISE B U R
interests in Taihua Jinye at a total consideration IREMS1%BME  BREAAR
of RMB95,281,000. Taihua Jinye is a property 595,281,000 7T ° 2’%%@%%7,\%{
management company located in Hengshui R B A BRI EE R
City, Hebei Province, the PRC. In March 2021, naEl e 2021638 - AEE K
the Group acquired 65% equity interests in BEeERMEEEBRAR
Henan Jin Guanjia Property Management Co., ([8BXR]) K 65%E - BRE
Ltd. ("Jin Guanjia”) at a total consideration of BARHS5,720,0007C c ®ER A
RMBS5,720,000. Jin Guanjia is a property AR A ESNTRYEE
management company located in Zhengzhou BT R2021F8 A * A&EHE
City, Henan Province, the PRC. In August 2021, Wi R AEMMEEERR
the group acquired 51% equity interests in Al ([HEAE/])#51% I -
Luoyang Zhonghong Zhuoyue Property BRER AR 16,556,0007T °
Management Co., Ltd. (“Zhonghong Zhuoyue”) FR A S AR P R B R RS
at a total consideration of RMB16,556,000. MHMEEE QR - @BEXRME
Zhonghong Zhuoyue is a property management SAEMATHEA [ HMWEA
company located in Luoyang City, Henan Al
Province, the PRC. Jin Guanjia and Zhonghong
Zhuoyue are collectively shown as “other
subsidiaries” below.
Details of the purchase considerations, the net W AC(EB DA A 5 Uk 8 B B PR
assets acquired and goodwill on the respective BEEENMPBNFEOT
acquisition date are as follows:
Taihua Other
Jinye subsidiaries Total
RERE HMMBELT wmEt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMFIT ARMFT AREFT
Purchase consideration WEAE
— Cash paid —BEfRE 62,000 15,859 77,859
— Payable — Fé T RI8 38,000 6,797 44,797
— Effect of cash flow WREMITIRA L
discount 4,719) (380) (5,099)
Total purchase consideration W iEH (B 4258 95,281 22,276 117,557
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28 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(a)
0]

28 ¥ BE@m)

Ssummary of acquisitions (Continued) (@) WHBSEME#E)
Acquisitions of Taihua Jinye and other (i) REZZHXEREMHB AL
subsidiaries (Continued) (&
The assets and liabilities recognised as a result B BEN S W E B RN E
of the acquisitions on the respective acquisition ERBEHIAT
date are as follows:
Taihua Other
Jinye subsidiaries Total
RERE HMMELF et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREKFT
Property, plant and VI~ BB KRG
equipment 5,008 60 5,068
Intangible assets B EE
— Know-how — RITFRER 21,316 - 21,316
— Customer relationship  — B F IR 90,742 17,176 107,918
Trade and other receivables & 5 K& £ fE UL 7118
and prepayments DS S ARG 55,655 21,666 77,321
Cash and cash equivalents IR&NIREEEY 6,967 727 7,694
Trade and other payables & 5 I £ i e~ 5k 18 (65,725) (10,188) (75,913)
Contract liabilities BHBE (22,628) (6,875) (29,503)
Deferred income tax BELEFERARE
liabilities (21,452) (4,294) (25,746)
Net identifiable assets Fir il B o A 2 B3
acquired BE 69,883 18,272 88,155
Less: Equity interest held by 3 : JE¥ERRHE RIS A
non-controlling interests Eo)iiea (34,243) (8,813) (43,056)
Add: Goodwill - 59,641 12,817 72,458
Net assets acquired Frus i 5 & &= 95,281 22,276 117,557
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28 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

246

(a)

Summary of acquisitions (Continued)
(i)  Acquisitions of Taihua Jinye and other

28 ¥ BEA6t@)

(@) WHEEEHMEE)
(i) WKEBFZEHRERAMWHEL A

subsidiaries (Continued) (&)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisitions during HE2021F12A31HEFEK
the year ended 31 December 2021: BEANRSMLFE
Taihua Other
Jinye subsidiaries Total
RERE HHMMELR #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARSETT ARETT ARETT

Cash paid [EEREEE
Cash consideration paid BENEERE 62,000 15,859 77,859
Less: cash considerations g : BAFEBE MR

paid in prior year SRE (62,000) - (62,000)
Cash considerations paid ~ FRENBEERE

during the year - 15,859 15,859

Less: Cash and cash B BEEIR e RIR

equivalents acquired SEEY (6,967) (727) (7,694)
Cash outflow during the year 4 RIR <7 H (6,967) 15,132 8,165

The goodwill is attributable to the workforce
and the high profitability of the acquired
business. It will not be deductible for tax
pUrposes.
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Fk S A=A -

28 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)
(@) Summary of acquisition (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Accounting policy choice for non-
controlling interests

The Group recognises non-controlling interests
in an acquired entity either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets. This decision is made on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. For the non-controlling
interests in acquisition of Taihua Jinye, Jin
Guanjia and Zhonghong Zhuoyue, the Group
elected to recognise the non-controlling
interests in at its proportionate share of the
acquired net identifiable assets. See Note 2.3
for the Group’s accounting policies for business
combinations.

Revenue and profit contribution

The acquired businesses contributed revenue of
RMB210,248,000 and net profit of RMB31,490,000
to the Group for the period from the respective
acquisition date to 31 December 2021. If the
acquisitions had occurred on 1 January 2021, the
Group's consolidated pro-forma revenue and net
profit for the period ended 31 December 2021
would have been RMB3,609,508,000 and
RMB654,739,000, respectively. No contingent
liability has been recognised for the business
combination.

By} Y5 ¥ 2R BfU 5

B BAARE T T

28 ¥ BE&H @)
(a) WH=EHME(H)

(ii)

(iii)

BENEERRLR/ B —F5R

PR ER IS TR SE

AREBR R EERIZIEERE
S RBERMN R HEAFEE
R b I HE AR B UL R B R Y SRR
PR SR o LLIRTE THH2 (8 Bl Y 1Y
ERETT - HRRERERE
SEREP AR BRI ER
MmE - NEEEBLEERMWE
B R] 8B 3 B EE AP MY L B RERR E
EhiEs - BRAAKREERBEAH
VEETR - B2HME23

W as R FIE & gt
NEBWRBEBEZE2021F12 A
3N BEME - B EBAANEE
BB A A R #5210,248,000 7T
Ko 45 7 A B ¥ 31,490,000 7T © i
U RE =N 2021461 A1 H 34
RNEBHE2021F12A318 1k
HIR AR & 1B 5 e R AT 5
Bl A A R 3,609,508,000 7T & A
R % 654,739,0007C © % £ 5t %
BEHERIABE -
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29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

248

(a)

Name and relationship with related parties

29 EAEtAE RS
(a) BIEE S BB R EIRIN 5 MBI

Name Relationship with the Group

=18 BR A5 B W BA R

Mr. Wu Controlling shareholder of the Company
HABERE RN BRI R

CCRE Group A group controlled by Mr. Wu
BEMESR FA A S AT B R S B

Central China Management Company Limited and
its subsidiaries (“CCMGT Group”)
PREEERARREMBAR((HREXER])

Henan Drawin Technology Industry Group Co. Ltd. and its
subsidiaries (“Drawin Group”)

ARAEREENEEXEBERATREWE AR
(TEER&EE))

Biyang County Jianheng Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.

WG HEEREMERERR AR

Zhumadian City Zhenghua Land Real Estate Development
Co. Ltd.
HEEMEEEMEHEREBRAA

Henan Jianye Haima Real Estate Co. Ltd.
HEREEREXBRAR

Henan Jianye Taihong Real Estate Co. Ltd.

FRRERREERRAA

Henan Jianye Aimi Digital Film Culture Communication
Co. Ltd.

ARMEEREFTEE L ERERAR

Zhengzhou Jianye Eighteen City Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BMNEETIWEXERAF

Henan Aijia Household Products Co. Ltd.
BN ERERAREBRAR
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A group controlled by Mr. Wu

A AR SE A S

A group controlled by Mr. Wu

AT EE

A joint venture of CCMGT Group

FREXKEENEEDRE

A joint venture of CCMGT Group

FREXKEENEEDRE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEWESENEGEDLE

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group
BEMEEENGEMPE

A joint venture of CCRE Group

BEERMESENAEDRE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMESRENSERLE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMMEERNSERE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ¥5 ¥ = By 51

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)

29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@)

Name and relationship with related parties
(Continued)

29 EAEEAS RS @)

(@) BEARET B8N 2@ TS HOBAMR ()

Name
=L

Relationship with the Group
BRAC 5 B WY BA R

Xiangcheng Zhiteng Urban Construction Co. Ltd.
BNERBTERER AR

Zhengzhou Jianye Wudong Digital Film Co. Ltd.
ENEZERRENLEL AR AR

Zhengzhou Jianye Zhengxi Digital Film Co. Ltd.
BMNEREARUEZARAT

Zhengzhou Jianye Zhengzhong Digital Film Co. Ltd.
EMNEERPREUELARAA

Henan Jianye Real Scene Performance Cultural
Development Co. Ltd.
EREESEL L BEREGR QA

Zhengzhou Renji Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.
M CEFERZEERAA

Dengfeng Zhiteng Real Estate Co. Ltd.
EHEREZEARAA]

Zhengzhou Shengaing Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.

BMNBEEHEREZEFR AR

Shengiu County Forest Peninsula Real Estate Co. Ltd.
MEGHAMREEBEER AR

Henan Hongge Curtain Wall Co. Ltd.
M EALE B AR AR

Zhengzhou Shenglong Real Estate Co. Ltd.
EIMEREEZEFRAR]

Henan Yuzhu Real Estate Co. Ltd.
AEBRKREFEARAT

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEHESENSERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMWESENEEDLE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMESEENGERE

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group
BRMESENSGERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group

BREMWESENAERR

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEHMESENSERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEWESENEEDLE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMESEENGERE

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group
ERMESENGERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEHMESENSERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMWESENEEDLE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMEEENGERE
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29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

250

(@

Name and relationship with related parties
(Continued)

29 BBAERS ®)
(a) BEmES &R SRS MR ()

Name
=L

Relationship with the Group
BRA 5 B YRR R

Xinmi City Emperor Resettlement Industry Co. Ltd.
MEMRLEREEARAR]

Zhengzhou Fengtai Real Estate Co. Ltd.
EINTTERBEEBR AR

Zhoukou Zhonghang Real Estate Co. Ltd.
AOhMmEXRER AR

Zhoukou Greentown Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.

BERSBEHEREER AR

Nanyang Jianyuan Real Estate Co. Ltd.
mAEEREEXERAR]

Xuchang Jianteng Real Estate Co. Ltd.
FERREXRARAT

Henan Jianye City Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.
EREREERZEER AT

Zhengzhou Jiangang Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BMNEBEEXER LA

Jiaozuo Lvjian Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.
EEREEHERBEAR AR

Zhengzhou Jianye Wisdom Real Estate Co. Ltd.
HBMNEXEZEERRAA

Zhengzhou Jianze Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BMEEEEFRAA]

Henan Bailihui Industrial Co. Ltd.
AEBENEEEERAA

Yima lJianling Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.
BEERERHEREBRETAF
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A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMESENSERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMWESENEEDLE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMESEENGERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
ERMESENSGERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMESENSERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMWESENEEDLE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMESEENGERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
ERMESENSGERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMESENSERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMWESENEEDLE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMESEENGERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
ERMESENSGERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEHMESENSERE
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)

29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 29 FEAHETT X5 (40

(@) Name and relationship with related parties (a) FAEES B REERAE S5 WER (&)
(Continued)
Name Relationship with the Group

=L

EASKE AR

Anyang Zhongrun Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.

ZEHBEEHEREZEGRAR

Luohe Jianwen Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BAEXBEFRAT

Zhoukou Jianrui Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BAOmEREFXAR AT

Zhengzhou Jianwen Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BMNEXEZXERLQA

Jiaozuo Jianteng Real Estate Co. Ltd.
EERBEEXARAA

Luoyang Zhuohong Real Estate Co. Ltd.
RS ELBEFEARAT

Henan Guoxuan Real Estate Co. Ltd.
NEEEFEERR AT

Puyang Construction City Development Co. Ltd.

EEERERER AT

Hebi Rongyi Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BEREEXARAA

Henan Acrobatics Group Co. Ltd.
MEEMEREEBRAR

Henan Shuixiu Performing Arts Media Co. Ltd.
AEKE RREHEFR AR

Henan Haoyu Cultural Tourism Co. Ltd.
AARFXCIRERR A A

Henan Haoyu Cultural Development Co. Ltd.
MEAZRFXERBR AR

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEHESENSERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMWESENEEDLE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMESEENGERE

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group
BRMESENSGERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEHESENSERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMWESENEEDLE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMESEENGERE

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group
BRMESENSGERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEHESENSERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMWESENEEDLE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMESEENGERE

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group
BRMESENGERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEHESENSERE

BENEERRLR/ B —F5R
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29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

252

(@

Name and relationship with related parties
(Continued)

29 BBAERS ®)

(@

Name
=L

Relationship with the Group
BRA 5 B YRR R

Puyang Haoyi Trading Co. Ltd.
EETZEREFRAA

Puyang Haoyi Property Service Co. Ltd.
ESTREYFERE AR QA

Henan Bingxue Acrobatics Co. Ltd.
AFEKEHEBR AR

American Friesen Performing Arts Co. Ltd.
ERBHERERGRETE LA

Henan Jianye Taihong Commercial Management Co. Ltd.
N EARERAEFEEAR AR

Linzhou Jianye Baicheng Trading Co. Ltd.
MMNEXAUREEBR AR

Zhengzhou Yisheng Jianye Property Service Co. Ltd.
EEM B E RIS AR AR

Huixian City Tengye Education Consulting Co. Ltd.
BETREHEEAEGRAR

Dingli Jianye (Shenzhen) Asset Management Co. Ltd.
BORECRINBEERERAF

Jiangsu Aljia Household Products Co. Ltd.
AIEHNERERARERAR

Linzhou Heavy Machinery Real Estate Development Co.
Ltd.
MINEREMERZE BRG]

Luoyang University Science and Technology Park

Construction Co. Ltd.
B REREEERBR AR
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A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMESENSERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMWESENEEDLE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMESEENGERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
ERMESENSGERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMESENSERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMWESENEEDLE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMESEENGERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
ERMESENSGERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMESENSERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMWESENEEDLE

A joint venture of CCRE Group

ERMWESENAELE

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group

ERMWESENAELE
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)

29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@

Name and relationship with related parties
(Continued)

29 EAEEAS RS @)

(@) BARRT B8N E2EAME TS HOBAMR ()

Name
=L

Relationship with the Group
BRAC 5 B WY BA R

Luoyang Jinjian Urban Construction Development Co. Ltd.
REMERMmERERGR AR

Luohe Jingcheng Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BN SN EZEBRAA]

Luohe Liangchen Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BARREFRBR AR

Nanyang Wufu Real Estate Co. Ltd.
AT hAREXEBRAR]

Henan Rongxing Real Estate Co. Ltd.
EEEEXBRAR]

Zhengzhou Lvchen Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BMEREZGRAR]

Fugou County Yingbin House Real Estate Co. Ltd.
KBGROENEXEBR AR

Huaiyang District Tianzhu Real Estate Co. Ltd.
EERAREEFXEBRAR

Henan Jianye Drama Fantasy City Operation Management
Co. Ltd.
T REXBEONESERER AR

Shanggiu Baile Real Estate Co. Ltd.
HMEALEXERAR]

Yanling Jianye Green Base Construction Co. Ltd.
ESfEEEg A ERERAR

Ruzhou Jianheng Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.
EMNmEEEERZEER AR

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEHESENSERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMWESENEEDLE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMESEENGERE

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group
BRMESENSGERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEHESENSERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMWESENEEDLE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMESEENGERE

Ajoint venture of CCRE Group
BRMESENSGERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group

BREMWESENAERR

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEHMESENSERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMWESENEEDLE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMEEENGERE

BENEERRLR/ B —F5R
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29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@

254

Name and relationship with related parties
(Continued)

29 BBAERS ®)
(a) BEmES &R SRS MR ()

Name
=L

Relationship with the Group
BRA 5 B YRR R

Meng City Jianxin Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.
AN EEEHEREER AR

Yanling Jianye dining Hall Catering Co. Ltd.
BEEERREERBRAA

Hebi Jianye Green Base Construction Co. Ltd.
ME RS e I REARAT

Hebi Jianye Dining Hall Catering Co. Ltd.
BEEXAREERKERAA

Luoyang Jianzun Real Estate Co. Ltd.

REREBEXAREEAA

Huangchuan County Chen He Real Estate Development
Co. Ltd.

EBREEHEREERAR

Fugou County Yingbin House Real Estate Co. Ltd.
KEGLEREXRBR AR

Huaiyang District Tianzhu Real Estate Co. Ltd.
EERAREEFEBRAR

Luoyang Hongkun Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BB E X BR AR

Zhengzhou Dazhang Real Estate Co. Ltd.
EINRZBEBRAR]

Luohe Jingde Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BN EEEERAA]
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A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEEMEEENSERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMWESENEEDLE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEMESEENGERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
ERMESENSGERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEEMEEENSERE

A joint venture of CCRE Group

ERUESENAELE

An associate of CCRE Group
BRMESE B E N F

An associate of CCRE Group
BEMWERENEE AR

An associate of CCRE Group
BEMES BB E QA

An associate of CCRE Group
BEEMESENE S A

An associate of CCRE Group
BRMESE B E N F
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29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@)

Name and relationship with related parties
(Continued)

29 EAEEAS RS @)

B BAARE T T

(@) BEARET B8N 2@ TS HOBAMR ()

Name
=L

Relationship with the Group

EASKE AR

Shanggiu Hesheng Real Estate Co. Ltd.
HEAREXEERAR

Henan Aokeliyuan Real Estate Co. Ltd.
MERREEEXBRAR

Xinxiang Zunfu Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BT EREXARAR

Nanyang Jianheyuan Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.
miEEe REHEREERAR]

St. Andrews Golf Club (Zhengzhou) Co. Ltd
ELEEHSRREL (BN ERA

Zhengzhou Financial Island Construction Development
Co. Ltd.
BMeRmESRERERERAA

Zhengzhou United Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BN EBEBRA

Henan Yulv Investment Co. Ltd.
R RIKIEEER AT

Henan Lingtai Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.
AEEREHEREERAF

Hebi Hetai Real Estate Development Co. Ltd.
BEMMEEHMEREERA

Shanggiu Mingde Real Estate Co. Ltd.
P SREEEFR AT

An associate of CCRE Group
e -3 el NG|

An associate of CCRE Group
BEMESEEE AR

An associate of CCRE Group
EEME S E AR E AT

An associate of CCRE Group
BRERMESBREE QA

An associate of CCRE Group
e -3 JEl): NG|

An associate of CCRE Group

A KBRS A R

An associate of CCRE Group
BEMESEMEE AR

An associate of CCRE Group
EEME S E AR E AT

An associate of CCRE Group
BEMES BB E QA

An associate of CCRE Group
e -3 el NG|

An associate of CCRE Group
BEMESENEE AR

BENEERRLR/ B —F5R
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B S A& %A -

FBESBAARE T )

29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 29 FEAET X5 (&)
(b) Transactions with related parties (b) EEREEETHIRS
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, H E2021% 202012 A31H 1 F
the Group had the following significant transactions B AEEEUTERNEHSTRS -
with related parties.

Provision of goods and services to companies
controlled by Mr. Wu, joint ventures and associates of
CCRE Group and CCMGT Group:

FASLEEMMEGIAR ZEMWESE
EHREZEENSELERBER
AR A B an R AR -

256

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEFE

2021 2020

2021%F 20204

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥FT AREFIT

Commission income B A 394,635 325,160

Installation and decoration services ZHE R FIERE 343,522 278,891

Consulting services A RIS 147,735 210,375

Property management and related Y5518 N AR R AR 7S

services 146,317 98,927
Commercial property management and &3 & &S 18 KA IR TS

consultation services income WA 137,813 81,167

Sales of goods Emifes 123,086 74,450

Membership management income EEEWA 68,581 94,340

Travel service income IR AR UIA 31,002 28,307

1,392,691 1,191,617

Central China New Life Limited / 2021 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By} ¥ ¥k R Bl 51

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)

29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 29 FEBE(T X5 (&)
(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (b) EHREREBANRS (&)
Receipt of goods and services from companies ML EMZERINAF - BEMES
controlled by Mr. Wu, joint ventures and associates of meEhERBEATAKINE R
CCRE Group: KRS

Year ended 31 December
BE12H31BLEE

2021 2020
20214 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARMFT
Tourism service costs IR AR FS K AN 28,298 10,401
Cost of goods sold HEK AR 3,932 13,256
Others Hip 2,272 575
34,502 24,232
Additions of right-of-use assets NEFEHAEEE

— Office rental —WRERE 4,259 15,793

Interest expenses for lease liabilities HEAEMNERAY
— Office rental — R EEE 549 558

ERAEXRSARNAEEN LR XH
BIEPET AR HEH 2HH
FE R RFGETT °

All of the transactions above were carried out in the
normal course of the Group's business and on terms
as agreed between the transacting parties.

(c) Key management compensation (c) FEEBAESHM
Compensations for key management other than BRICEESBMEBRESUINNEEE R
those for directors as disclosed in Note 33 is set out ANEWFBEZI T
below:

Year ended 31 December
BE12A3MBLEE

2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT ARBETFT
Salaries and other short-term employee ¥4 & 2 {45 B S %28 7
benefits 18,789 20,485

BEFETARAT/ —B-—FFR 257
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29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

258

(d)

FBESBAARE T )

29 EAEtS RS (@)

Balances with related parties (d) EERAEETS K4S ER
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2021 2020
20215 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFIT
Trade receivables H 5 IR
— CCRE Group and its joint ventures ~ — i ¥EMES @ HEEE
and associates 1% K T 1,128,778 858,524
— CCMGT Group and its joint ventures — REEXEENHAE
and associates (o Y& /N 8,276 640
— Drawin Group —HZREHE 169 204
1,137,223 859,368
Other receivables (Note(}) H A EUHIR (HfaE (/))
— CCRE Group and its joint ventures ~ — ZEEEBRHEAS
and associates (oY /N 286,101 40,020
— CCMGT Group — TREXEE 20,522 170
306,623 40,190
Note receivables U=
— CCRE Group and its joint ventures ~ — EEMEEBNLEAE
and associates TEREER T 300 4,500
Prepayments SR e
— CCRE Group and its joint ventures ~ — EZEMEEENHEALE
and associates E R E QTR 620 —
— Drawin Group —HEREHE 18 -
638 -
Contract assets BHEE
— CCRE Group and its joint ventures ~ — X MESBERESE
and associates EREHE QT 21,310 -
— CCMGT Group —HREXEE 2 =
21,312 -

Central China New Life Limited / 2021 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
By} ¥ ¥k R Bl 51

SERPI - AESBAARE T T

(Allamounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (F&

29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29 BEEBARS @)

(Continued)
(d) Balances with related parties (Continued) (d) EEREEESAVEER ()
As at 31 December
M12B31H
2021 2020
20215 2020 £
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARMTFT
Trade payables B SR
— CCRE Group and its joint ventures ~ — ZEMEEBLHEAE
and associates R E N F] 14,132 9,515
— Drawin Group —HREHE 56 143
14,188 9,658
Other payables (Note(ii) EAth FE AT IR (Bt (//))
— CCRE Group and its joint ventures ~ — ZEEEB LR HEAS
and associates EREE QT 19,063 23,770
— CCMGT Group —HREEEE 23 =
19,086 23,770
Lease liabilities HEaE
— CCRE Group — EEMEEE 12,884 12,065
Contract liabilities EHEE
— CCRE Group and its joint ventures ~ — E@EMEEENEAED
and associates EYS3 N 4,940 11,697
— CCMGT Group —HREEEH 66 -
5,006 11,697

(i) Other receivables due from related parties are unsecured (i)
and interest -free. Except for (i) the balances paid as
deposits, which are repayable upon the maturity of
relevant period according to the respective contracts, (i)
the balances in relation to Jianye+ platform collections,
which are settled monthly, the remaining balances are

repayable on demand.

(i) Other payables due to related parties are interest-free (i)

and repayable on demand.

BENEERRLR/ B —F5R

Hth fE W B 77

FRAEERELE -

BROERSZEXNMERBREESS

HWNAEE

MEREFEE -

H

ftbfE
B -

SHEmREE - () BRIEXE+
FRbEERTIIRAGE

HERERRA

RARE T IR R % B RBREKR
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (kBB - A S EAARE T L)

30 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE 30 mEHESMH
REPORTING PERIOD
In January 2022, the Group completed an acquisition of 51% 202F 1R - AEETARE —HWEER
entity interest of a property management company, at a NAE IR RE BReREARKE
cash consideration of RMB33,660,000. 33,660,000 7T ©

31 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 31 AAREEABRNHEEH

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December

®12H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204

Note  RMB’000 RMB’000
Mz AREFR ARETT

Assets BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RHT B A RIMIRE 118,049 107,797
Property, plant and equipment LER V=Y 9,461 15,906
127,510 123,703
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables HAth pE U RIR 1,181,584 821,623
Financial assets at fair value through NARBEFETFT ABR
profit or 10ss HNEmEE 50,413 83,256
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBSEEY 200,987 945,288
1,432,984 1,850,167
Total assets HWEE 1,560,494 1,973,870
Equity B

Equity attributable to shareholders &2 FRREGER
of the Company

Share capital A&z 20 11,247 11,057
Other reserves (Note (a)) EfEE (M aE @) 1,581,757 1,955,603
Accumulated losses E&tEE (41,467) (10,821)
Total equity s 1,551,537 1,955,839
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31 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 31 AR EEAERNREEESH @)
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2021 2020
20215 20204

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mz AR®FRT ARETT

Liabilities =N
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE
Lease liabilities HERE 1,302 6,534
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables E T RUR 2,281 5,966
Lease liabilities HEBE 5,374 5,531
7,655 11,497
Total liabilities wamE 8,957 18,031
Total equity and liabilities BEREEEE 1,560,494 1,973,870
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the RARABIEEABRN202F3A16AKE
board of directors of the Company on 16 March 2022 and EeiE  YHARAEZESESRAESE -
was signed on its behalf.
Wang Jun Wang Qian
& %
Director Director
EE EE
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31 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 31 ARREEEERREGEES @)
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
(a) Reserve movement of the Company (@) AQTFELE
Employee
share-hased  Foreign Total
Capital  Treasury Share compensation  currency other
reserves shares  premium reserves translation  reserves
EEX
R RER 2t

ArfRE  ERRO  BBEE  NMERE MER  RRER
RMB000  RMBOOO  RMB000 RVMBO00  RMBUO0  RMB000
ARBFT ARMTT ARETT  ARETT ARBTL AREFI

Balance at 1 January 2020 R2020E1 B1BMES 100,000 = 9432 9,382 - 118,814
Issue of shares in connection with  E2& AL &1 TA BRI

the capitalisation issue ESH - - (7,835) - - (7,885)
Issue of shares in connection with  E2RA 7] £ BRI

the Company's listing ESH - - 2,085,535 - - 208553
Share option scheme-value of  EBRXIERTEl — (REMRE

employee services (Note 22) EEEY7) - - - 6,447 - 6,447
Share option scheme-issuied REE —BET

shares (Note 20) Tt (#rzt 20) = - 1,165 (541) - 624
Currency translation differences  fE X 25 = = = - (1774477)  (174477)
Dividend distribution to FAREDERE

shareholders (Note 26) (Hizt26) = = (73,455) = - (73,455)
Balance at 31 December 2020 #2020F12A 318 H

g 100,000 - 2014792 15,288 (174,477) 1,955,603
Balance at 1 January 2021 R2021E1B1HK& 100,000 - 2,014,792 15,288  (174,477) 1,955,603
Share option scheme-value of ~ ERE=HEI— B2 R

employee services EE - - - 2,220 - 2,220
Share option scheme-issuied ERETE—BRG

shares kin - - 22,781 (10,710) - 12,071
Repurchase of shares of the YNSE-AE] )

Company - (8,143) - - - (8,143)
Cancellation of shares RS - 4,260 (4,252) = - 8
Currency translation differences  E X Z#E - - - - (39,169  (39,169)
Dividend distribution to ARE D ERE

shareholders - - (340,833 - - (340,833)
Balance at 31 December 2021 2021512 A 318K

g 100,000 (3,883) 1,692,488 6,798  (213,646) 1,581,757
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32 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ¥5 ¥ = By 51

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B SEHBIN - FTELBUARE T L)

LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
Group's capital commitments mainly related to the
development of the intelligent platform and financial
sharing system. The details are set as below:

32 AERJAAER

(@) BEAXREE

HE2021%F K2020612 A31H 15
B AERNENREREFEEHEZ L
ARV EZRFEHMFERE - F15

AT

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2021
2021
RMB’000

2020
20204
RMB'000

AR¥FT ARBETIT

Intangible assets mEE 5,260 6,191
Property, plant and equipment Yz - B N 441 1,013
5,701 7,204

Contingencies

The Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020:
same).

(b) WAREIR

R2021F 12 A318 » AEBEBET(
BEAHXAEEQ020F12A318 : 48

) -

BENEERRLR/ B —F5R
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33 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS 33 EEFEMEESS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (@) E=FH
The directors received emoluments from the Group HE2021F12831HEFE - EF(R
(in their role as senior management and employee EEZAAESIUERERELE
before their appointment as directors) for the year E5M BAEFBESHMENT - A
ended 31 December 2021 as follows, and no director FRBESEWNESR S RET A
has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments &
during the year:
Housing
allowances,
other

allowances Contribution
Share-based  and benefits  to pension

Fees Bonus payment in kind scheme Total
TR
R A Hibzi Bife
Name #g e ®¢ EEMAR  NEUEA e fst

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRTR ARETR ARBTR ARBTZ ARETT AREFZ

Executive directors WITES
Wang Jun () ) 3,452 - - 15 - 3,467
Cai Bin (i) 2 251 - 385 4 2 642
Wang Qian (iv) R (1) 3,887 451 - 15 - 4,353
Non-executive Directors ~ F#fTEES
Wu Lam Li Zif 90 - - - - 90
Min Huidong = 90 - 479 - - 569
Independent Non-executive BYXHTES

Directors
Leong Chong (i) 233 200 - - - - 200
Luo Laura Ying (i) EL (i) 200 - - - - 200
Xin Zhui (i F3k(i) 200 - - - - 200

8,370 451 864 34 2 9.721
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33 DIRECTORS' BENEFITS AND INTERESTS 33 EEEMRES @)
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (@) EZEHM(AE)
The directors received emoluments from the Group HE2020612A3MBLFE 22 (R
(in their role as senior management and employee HEZAAREFI AR REEERE
before their appointment as directors) for the year BN BASEESHMeNT - B
ended 31 December 2020 as follows, and no director G A A B S B ok [R) B T ER AT B
has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments e
during the vyear:
Housing
allowances,
other
allowances  Contribution
Share-based  and benefits o pension
Fees Bonus payment inkind scheme Total
EREE
AR & Hit Bffe
Name 4 ik ®e  EWONT  NEDEN HEES Eh
RMB000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000  RMB'000

ARBTT ARNTT

ABBTT  ARETT ARETT ARETT

Executive directors HTES

Wang Jun (i () 3,152 = - 16 - 3168

Cai Bin (ii) =y (1) 1,352 3,000 834 31 2 5269

Non-executive Directors ~ FH{TES

Wu Lam Li Zif 57 - - - - 57

Min Huidong HER 57 - - - - 57

Independent Non-executive BYFHTES

Directors

Leong Chong (i) 253 126 - - - - 126

Luo Laura Ying (i L (i) 126 - - - - 126

Xin Zhui (i F3k(i 126 = = = = 126
4,99 3,000 834 47 2 8,929

(i) Wang Jun was the chairman of the board of directors of
the Company and the chief executive officer of the
Company, and resigned the position of chief executive
officer on 14 February 2022.

(i) The directors, Leong Chong, Luo Laura Ying and Xin Zhu
were appointed as directors in April 2020.

(i) Cai Bin were appointed as director in October 2019 and
resigned on 26 March 2021.

(iv)  Wang Qian were appointed as director on 26 March 2021.

() FTHRARAREZEEIRBRAARERE
HITE WHR202F2A 148 HEE
EITE — B

(ih ERRP BLRFIRN202054 %

RERES -

(i) ERR2019F10AEEFEAREEIR
202143 A 26 Bi58F ©

(iv) TENR2021F3A26HEZRITAES -

BEFETARAT/ —B-—FFR 265



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ¥5 ¥ 2R BiY 5

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (kBB - A S EAARE T L)

33 DIRECTORS' BENEFITS AND INTERESTS
(Continued)

266

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors' retirement benefits and
termination benefits

There were no retirement benefits paid to or
receivable by directors during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 by defined benefit pension
plans operated by the Group and there were no
director’s termination benefits subsisted during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
the Group did not pay consideration to any third
parties for making available directors’ services.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favor of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

Saved as disclosed in Note 29, during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealings entered into by the
Company or subsidiaries, undertaking of the
Company, where applicable, in favor of directors.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Saved as disclosed in Note 29, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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33 EEEMRER @

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

ESRAERNRERET

R E 2= 20214 K% 202012 A31H 1
FE EFVERBARNEEEED
BE X RS EE S T
AR F - B REE 2021 6 & 2020
F1R2ANBUEFERTFEARNES
BERRAEA o

RREHESHREMEE =S REMN
KE

B E2021F 2020612 8318 Ik
FE  AREARREH-ESRE M A
EAS=AXZHEHE -

MES ZFESEFNEARR
RZEESNHEERRHENER
BEEREEMRZHNESR

BRPSE29 TR ER & 51 - OB E 2021 F
K2020F 12 AN BILFE - AARIK
ARBIMBEBRAR (ER)BEAES

RRBAFLEMER - EERREHE
X5 °

EERRS  ZHIASHHIHNEK
B

B P TE29 B 3¢ 8 & 51 0 102021 F |
2020F 12 A31H - BRIV ERAEH
XBER BARRIRZ2ET RAEAR
AEFENETERIRREEERR
BNEMERRS  ZHFEREH -



(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (Fk S A=A -

34 SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Group as at
31 December 2021 and 2020 are set out as below:

B} 55 R 22 B 5

B BAARE T T

B S 2 =)
REFEN2021E KR 2020FE 12 A3MEHNEE
WEBRRFFBWT

Place of incorporation ~ Registered/issued Principal activities/ Attributable equity
Company name and kind of legal entity  and paid-up capital place of operation interest of the Group
MRt HR B/ ROR
ARER ERERER EHREX TEER CERE rEEELER
31 December
12A318
2021 2020
20214 20206
Directly owned:
EEER:
Sky Joy Limited BV, Limited liability US$1/USS1 Investment holding in BVI 100% 100%
company
AABRAR RRAARNE AR (EIVAET REBRBREENE
A7 REER
Indirectly owned:
MRS
Central China New Life (Hong ~ Hong Kong, Limited liability ~ HK$10,000/HK$Nil Investment holding in 100% 100%
Kong) Limited company Hong Kong
BENEE(BB)BERAR  BA - BBRLF 10,0007,/ FH T REBUZREER
Henan Central China New Life  The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB700,000,000/ Consultancy Services in 100% 100%
Service Co., Ltd. company RMB700,000,000 Henan Province
AEREMEERKARRR  PE - BRAF ARB7000000007T/ RWEEREHEARE
AR ¥700,000,0007
Henan Central China Property  The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB300,000,000/ Property management 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd.* company RMB300,000,000 services in Henan
Province
MEERNEERARAT hE - BRAR AR¥3000000007T,/ RARERENEER
AR300,000,0007 %
Henan Zhizun Housing Agency  The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB100,000,000/ Real estate marketing 100% 100%
Co., Ltd.* company RMB100,000,000 services in Henan
Province
AEZEREFNBRAF hE - BRAR ARB1000000007/ RABERERMES
AR 100,000,000 7T R
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34 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34 WEBAT @)
Place of incorporation Registered/issued Principal activities/ Attributable equity
Company name and kind of legal entity  and paid-up capital place of operation interest of the Group
&R B/ BOR
ARER EEERER BEHREX TEEY/LEnY rEBEGER
31 December
12A31H
2021 2020
20215 20205
Indirectly owned: (Continued)
BEEs : (8)
Henan Central China New Life  The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB100,000,000/ Tourism services in 100% 100%
Travel Service Co., Ltd.* company RMB38,050,000 Henan Province
WERENERRERBER  FE - BRAF ARE100,0000007T,/  RARE R kRS
N AR 38,050,007
Henan Central China New Life  The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB100,000,000/ Hotel management 100% 100%
Hotel Management Co., Ltd.*  company RMB16,000,000 services in Henan
Province
ARRENETEEERER  PE BRAF AR¥1000000007T,/ MAREREEEER
AF] AR 16,000,000 7T AR
Henan Central China New Life  The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB50,000,000/ Management Consulting 94% 94%
Agricultural Development company RMB22,000,000 services in Henan
Co., Ltd.* (formerly known as Province
Henan Songyan Agricultural
Development Co., Ltd.)
AEREMEEREERAR TE BRAA AR¥50000000T/ EBRABHEHFER
REI(AIRE - WEEARER AR22,000,0007 A PR
BBERATA)
Henan Aiou Electronic The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB8,000,000/ Technology services in 93.33% 93.33%
Technology Co., Ltd.* company RMB3,000,000 Henan Province
AL EFRRARAA HE - BRAR ARES000000,/  RARERERIiRS
AR 3,000,000 7T
Henan One Family Network The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB100,000,000/ Technology services in 100% 100%
Technology Co., Ltd.* company RMB100,000,000 Henan Province
A —RBERRBERAT hE - BRAR AR100,0000007T/  RWEE Y BHIMRE
AR100,000,0007C
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34 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34 WEBAT @)
Place of incorporation Registered/issued Principal activities/ Attributable equity
Company name and kind of legal entity  and paid-up capital place of operation interest of the Group
A& ER B/ BOR
AREH ERERER ERREX TEER/KERY AEEELER
31 December
12A318
2021 2020

2021 % 2020%

Indirectly owned: (Continued)
BERs : (8)

Song Yun (Beijing) Information ~ The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB10,000,000/ Technology services in 80% 80%
Service Co., Ltd.* company RMB10,000,000/ Beijing
BER)EERBEBLE  FE - BRAA ARE100000007L/  RIERUEEHERE
AR 10,000,000 70
Xinyang Nanhong Property The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB3,000,000/Nil Property management 100% 100%
Service Co., Ltd.* company services in Henan
Province
EHETHEINEREERAR T8 BRAA ARE30000007,/2 WABRERSNEER
FR%
Henan Central China New Life  The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB10,000,000/ Management Consulting 100% 100%
Business Management Co., company RMB10,000,000 services in Henan
Ltd.* (formerly known as Province
Henan Central China Jing
Yuecheng Commercial
Management Co., Ltd.)
AAREMEEHEERER B BRAA AR¥10000000T/ EBRRABHEHEER
AR (BRI ERERNS AR 10,000,000 7 i AR
HEERBRAR)
Linzhou Liuhe Property The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB3,000,000/ Property management 51% 51%
Management Co., Ltd.* company RMB3,000,000 services in Henan
Province
WHTAENEREERAR P& BRAA AR 3,000,0007T, RABERENEER

AK#3,000,0007 BR#%

Zhengzhou Jiaxiang Property The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB3,000,000/ Property management 51% 51%
Management Co., Ltd.* company RMB3,000,000 services in Henan
Province
BNERNEREBRAF HE - BRAR AR#3,000,0007,/ WAL RENFER

AR 3,000,0007 R
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& RABAIN - FIASEUAARE T L)
34 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34 WEBAT @)
Place of incorporation Registered/issued Principal activities/ Attributable equity
Company name and kind of legal entity  and paid-up capital place of operation interest of the Group
&R B/ BOR
ARER EEERER BEHREX TEEY/LEnY rEBEGER
31 December
12A31H
2021 2020
20215 20205
Indirectly owned: (Continued)
BEEs : (8)
Jiyuan City Zhongbang The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB10,000,000/ Property management 51% 51%
Environmental Sanitation Co., ~ company RMB3,100,000 services in Henan
Ltd. * Province
ERMRERERAEMAR  HE  BERAF AR¥10000000T,/ WABERENEER
AR3,100,0007T g%
Taihua Jinye Life Service Co., The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB50,000,000/ Property management 51% Not applicable
Ltd.* company RMB5,000,000 services in Hebei
Province
REREEERBERAF HE - BRAR ARB50000000T,/ RALERENEER NER
AR5,0000007T R
Luoyang Zhonghong Zhuoyue  The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB3,000,000/ Property management 51% Not applicable
Property Management Co., company RMB3,000,000 services in Henan
Ltd.* Province
REPLEBNEERER hE - BRAR ARE3000000,/  RABERENEER TER
AA] ARH3,000,0007T g%
Henan Jin Guanjia Property The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB10,000,000/ Property management 65% Not applicable
Management Co., Ltd.* company RMB1,000,000 services in Henan
Province
MEEERMEERERAR  FE ERAA ARE10000000T,/ RARERENEER TaR
AR 1,000,0007T %
Henan Jianye Vehicle Life The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB1,000,000/Nil Technology services in 70% Not applicable
Technology Co., Ltd.* company Henan Province
ERXEEEINEERAR  FE - BRAF ARE10000007,/F  RARERERIRS TER
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34 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34 WEBAT @)
Place of incorporation Registered/issued Principal activities/ Attributable equity
Company name and kind of legal entity  and paid-up capital place of operation interest of the Group
A& ER B/ BOR
AREH ERERER ERREX TEER/KERY AEEELER
31 December
12A318
2021 2020

2021 % 2020%

Indirectly owned: (Continued)
BERs : (8)

Henan Central China New Life  The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB20,000,000/ Tourism services in 100% Not applicable
Culture Tourism Operation company RMB2,000,000 Henan Province
Management Co., Ltd.*

MEREMERUCREEE  TE - BRAF ARE200000007T,/  RABEHSHERE TER
ERERAT ARH2,000,0007T

Henan Central China Shared The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB10,000,000/ Technology services in 100% Not applicable
Home Network Technology company RMB5,350,000 Henan Province
Co., Ltd.*

MERELAZZEMENEE  PE - BRLA ARE100000007T/  RABELERMRE TaR
YN AR 5,350,000 7T

& The English name of the subsidiaries represents the best effort ~ * MEBARMNEXERRARAEEEREER NP ELS
by the management of the Group in translating their Chinese X&E AAETEFAMNEETE -
names as they do not have an official English name.
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B B R

A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated 7N @ % T X Bt B 45 20438 2= 0@ B B EE 2
assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for MG A EBEREAEE  BENRIFHEIREZS B
the last four financial years prepared on the basis as hereunder  Z#T :

stated is as set out below:

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS HeXE

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
202145 20204 20194 20184 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Revenue WA 3,598,918 2654499 1,754,402 693,988 460,532
Profit before taxation PR AT A 826,054 556,909 307,541 71,867 52,901
Income tax gt (172,666) (116,165) (74,702) (19,897) (13,775)
Profit from continuing operations REFELE EBOME 653,388 440,744 232,839 51,970 39,126
Loss from discontinued operation RECKRREEBRER = = (5,054) (69,737) (42,602)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRFE/(FB) 653,388 440,744 227,785 (17,767) (3,476)
Attributable to: PATNFEL
Equity shareholders of the Company AR RIERKE 619,559 426,587 233,954 19,471 23,411
Non-controlling interests IEEiRiER 33,829 14,157 (6,169) (37,238) (26,887)
Eamings per share (RMB cents) SREMN(ARES)
— Basic — AR 0.49 0.38 026 1.35 1.03
— Diluted — & 0.48 0.37 0.26 051 0.62

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY #4FaEE - AERERS

As at 31 December
R12A318
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20215 2020% 20195 20185 0174
RMB'000  RVMBO00  RMBOO0 ~ RMBOOO  RMB'000
ARBTR AREFL ARKTT ARETT ARETT

Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE 451,809 222,865 101,257 283,294 277,508
Current assets MEEE 4,585,171 4,027,114 1,362,187 1,040,548 1,062,312
Total assets EEAE 5,036,980 4,249,979 1,463,444 1,323,842 1,339,820
Liabilities =1
Current liabilities MEARE 1,824,943 1,467,882 1,017,667 625,941 452,282
Non-current liabilities FrBaE 155,509 64,747 64,128 600,586 787,954
Total liabilities EEAE 1,980,452 1,532,629 1,081,795 1,226,527 1,240,236
Net assets EEFE 3,056,528 2,717,350 381,649 97,315 99,584
Equity B
Total equity attributable to equity AREEGRR AR

shareholders of the Company ek 2,954,233 2,691,344 369,442 116,671 109,360
Non-controlling interests 3¢ 102,295 26,006 12,207 (19,35¢) (9,776)
Total equity - Ek ] 3,056,528 2,717,350 381,649 97,315 99,584
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